651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - Draft

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  July 27, 2017, NCPA Commission Meeting

Item #1 — Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Vice Chair Gary Plass called the meeting to order at 9:10 am at Ironstone Vineyards, Murphys,
California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance are shown on
the attached attendance list.

Item #2 — Approve Minutes of the June 29, 2017, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Bonnie Gore to approve the Minutes of
the June 29, 2017, Commission meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice vote of those
members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Vice Chair Plass asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

Item #3 — General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Thanked NCPA's Hydro staff for their efforts and time in putting together a great tour of the hydro
project.

- Gave an update on NCPA's Support and Shared Services Agreements and provided a copy of the
monthly status report.

- Gave a brief update on the State Legislative Staff Tour that took place earlier in the week. Thanked
those members that hosted and were able to be part of the panel discussion in Healdsburg.

— NCPA's Internship Tour was held this week. NCPA and Member interns participated in a two-day tour
of NCPA facilities.

— Update on the Lodi Energy Center Gas issues. Met with PG&E to discuss natural gas and
infrastructure concerns.

— The state’s cap and trade legislative policy passed this week. NCPA received an invite from the
Governor’s office to participant in the bill signing ceremony.

- AMP (MOU) JPA regarding the advanced metering program. Delegates are meeting in Chicago on
August 15 to discuss implementation details.



Item #4 — Executive Committee

Committee Vice Chair Gary Plass reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee discussed and recommended approval of the Nominating Committee’s
Executive Officers, which is item 18 on today’s Agenda.

Nominating Committee Member Roger Frith provided an update on the Nominating Committee’s
appointment for the following NCPA Committees: Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Committee

Chair Teresa O’Neill and Vice Chair Bonnie Gore. The Finance Committee Chair was discussed, but
an appointment was not recommended at this time.

Committee appointments will take office at the NCPA Annual Conference in September.

Item #5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 13, 14, 15, and 17 on today’s
Agenda. The Committee recommended Commission approval of all items.

Item #6 — Finance Committee

Monty Hanks reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission meeting. A Request
for Proposal for Financial Advisor Services was released in July with interviews of the selected firms
scheduled on August 3 in Alameda. The next Committee meeting is on August 9.

Item #7 — Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. However, the Committee is holding a Special Meeting on Monday, July 31 to
discuss item 20 on today’s Agenda.

Item #8 — Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Gary Plass reported that the Committee did not meet. Chair Plass reported that
NCPA held its annual State Legislative Staff tour this week. Thanked the cities of Biggs, Gridley and
Healdsburg for hosting. Gave an update on legislative developments. NCPA’s Annual Conference
will be held September 27-29 at the Silverado Resort in Napa and online registration is now open.
The next Committee meeting is scheduled on August 23 at NCPA's Roseville office.

Item #9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

No member announcements or meeting reports discussed.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled from Consent.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19. The motion carried by a majority
of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.

BART, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner were absent.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
July 27, 2017



Item #10 — NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended June 30, 2017 — approval by all members.
Item #11 — Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended June 30, 2017 — accept by all members.

Item #12 - Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file by all members the disposal of scrap
brass impellers from the failed cooling pump, e-waste and metal.
Fiscal Impact: The report as no direct budget impact to the Agency

Item #13 ~ Resolution 17-62, TCB Industrial, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for service, inspection, consultation on turbines, generators, auxiliary equipment, and
hydraulic systems; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members,
SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or
his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TCB Industrial, Inc. for service,
inspection, consultation on turbines, generators, auxiliary equipment, and hydraulic systems, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

Item #14 — Resolution 17-63, Gold Electric, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for electrical maintenance services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA
Facility Locations (except LEC), Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Gold Electric, Inc. for electrical maintenance services and support, equipment rental,
and maintenance of electrical communication, control and security systems, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA (except Lodi Energy
Center), its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Item #15 - Resolution 17-61, Compliance Services, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Generation
Plant Facilities, Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Compliance Services, Inc., with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $1,500,000 over five years for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,500,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
July 27, 2017



Item #16 — Resolution 17-66, Amendment #1 to Aon Risk Services West Inc. Consulting Services
Agreement — adopt resolution by all members approving an amendment (Amendment #1) to the
Consulting Services Agreement with Aon Risk Services West, Inc.

Fiscal Impact: NCPA's insurance program premiums and brokerage fees are budgeted as part of
the aggregate Property, Liability, and Workers Compensation insurance cap estimates, which are
charged off proportionately at approximately 80% for Property Insurance and 20% for Liability
Insurance based on total premiums paid. The fees and premiums in total are then allocated to
projects based on insured values at each plant site, with the liability insurance charged to
Administrative & General costs. The proposed cap of $25,000 does not have an immediate impact
unless there are more insurance claims for Aon to administer.” For the GRC inspection services,
there is a $5,000 fee to administer this program, which is already included in the FY2017-18. No
additional budget request is needed to approve these amendments.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

Item #17 — Resolution 17-64, Delegate to the General Manager authority to enter into one or more
agreements, with a total not to exceed for all agreements of $2,500,000 for repair, restoration
and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir and related facilities at the NCPA
Hydroelectric Project — adopt resolution by all members delegating the General Manager authority to
enter into one or more agreements, with a total not to exceed for all agreements of $2,500,000 for repair,
restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir and related facilities at the
NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

Fiscal Impact: Annual average hydroelectric generation attributable to the Beaver Creek Dam is
approximately $1,700,000. The Project is currently estimated to cost less than $2,500,000. As of May,
2017, the costs were estimated at $1,000,000; however, Staff Report 159:17 noted that “If the projected
Project costs increase as the work proceeds, staff will return to the Commission for additional
authorizations as may be necessary.”

In February 2017, the NCPA Commission passed Resolution 17-16 finding and declaring a state of
emergency with respect to the NCPA Calaveras Hydroelectric Generation Project and authorizing the
General Manager to take such steps as necessary to obtain funds to maintain, repair, restore, or replace
the project. Staff has notified the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and NCPA’s
insurance broker of the 2017 loss. In a letter dated June 13, 2017 NCPA'’s Insurance Underwriters
indicated that coverage is afforded for damages to the dam structure, tunnel, penstock, and associated
equipment at the Beaver Creek Diversion dam, but that no coverage is afforded for land including the
upstream creek which has built up sediment. Discussions are ongoing with the Insurance Underwriters
to further clarify the extent of coverage specifically for this project. NCPA's insurance deductible is
$500,000. In similar Beaver Creek storm-related sedimentation historical losses, NCPA received FEMA
reimbursements due to the 2006 flood incident, but not due to the 1997 incident. FEMA requires that the
applicant demonstrates that it first pursued insurance reimbursement prior to FEMA providing funding.
FEMA reimbursement looks favorable for a substantial part of the non-insurance project costs.

To date, $550,000 has been collected for Beaver Creek Sediment removal as part of ongoing
Hydroelectric Project Capital Development Reserve funding. An additional $125,000 is proposed for
collection as part of the FY18 budget, resulting in a total of $675,000 available after July 1, 2017.
Remaining needed funds are proposed to be drawn from the McKays Cleanout Capital Development
Reserve Account and/or the Hydroelectric Project Maintenance Reserve Account. Both funds can be
refunded by FEMA or insurance reimbursements if they ultimately materialize.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on the Beaver Creek sediment removal.

Motion: A motion was made by Gary Plass and seconded by Bonnie Gore to adopt resolution delegating the
General Manager authority to enter into one or more agreements, with a total not to exceed for all agreements
of $2,500,000 for repair, restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir and

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
July 27, 2017



related facilities at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of
those members present.

BART, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner were absent. Port of
Oakland abstained.

Item #18 — Election of Officers and Executive Committee Members — election of a chairman and vice
chair of the Commission and election of 3 at large representatives to the Executive Committee. The
Nominating Committee nominations for the 2018 Officers and Executive Committee members are:

Chairman Bob Lingl

Vice Chair Roger Frith
Executive Committee member Mark Chandler
Executive Committee member Teresa O'Neill
Executive Committee member Greg Scharff

Nominating Committee member Roger Frith reported that the Nominating Committee met and
recommended approval of the FY 2018 Slate of Officers and Executive Committee members as noted
above. Vice Chair Plass reported the Executive Committee met and approved the Nominating
Committee’s recommendation of the Slate of Officers and Executive Committee members. Vice Chair
Plass opened the floor for nominations. No other nominations were given. Officers will take office at
the regular scheduled meeting of the Commission in September 2017.

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’Niell and seconded by Bonnie Gore to adopt resolution
approving the FY 2018 Slate of Officers and Executive Committee Members. The motion carried by a
majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

BART, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner were absent.

Item #19 — Resolution 17-65, Approval of Resolution Commending Gary Plass — adopt resolution
by all members Commending Gary Plass.

Vice Chair Roger Frith read and presented a resolution expressing appreciation for Gary Plass’
dedication to NCPA.

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Bonnie Gore to adopt Resolution 17-65,
Approval of Resolution Commending Gary Plass. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of
those members present.

BART, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner were absent.

Non essential Members and staff left the meeting for item 20.

CLOSED SESSION

Item #20 — Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and
City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims no. 14-817C.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable action
taken on closed session item 20.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
July 27, 2017



NEW BUSINESS

No new business discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The July 27, 2017, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:25 am.

Respectfully submitted,

/i

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
July 27, 2017



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of July 27, 2017

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
ALAMEDA %beao&} i
e v cyg-ez/é‘%/f‘f

=
GRIDLEY ' ? CZ‘ ey //”@5%7/4/?&7 " \M

HEALDSBURG /1{ Do & Haged //W

LODI WMM/\ 7Y

LOMPOC
PALO ALTO EL7 Sy, canis %
PORT OF OAKLAND ‘7) asil W
L

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

REDDING

ROSEVILLE ,/%W,
& /\ ~z=J o
o= / | P —

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

SANTA CLARA 7 et a 5/5&74//

TRUCKEE DONNER

UKIAH ™ Rva




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of July 27, 2017
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Jave Lucehac iy JICFA
e /»QM/U\ Y = L1
e/ Civviname/ NZh—
4z z//zfm/ LoZ/
Janice \Nnandech LodC
Leu _Speer JCPA
EOM-(L @MCM NC 64
Amhw Survecset A/Cfﬂ
-\_Ljnnmé' (pré ?OSLUI.”&
Coul u,mw:::\a__g Rceg.,.'ue
ARSIt Bpry \ SRy
UUQ,Y\&A ong O < q JeAn Qo OVP
Katuleea Highes Cacrod St Cloa , SUP
m/1 i /“locq bitr1¢s /i)/of-% /L"iC/‘ff(’; S
Mowty Hawes NCPA ’
UUNW\ &MW howboc
chl mﬁj-f/h %tf‘?f 3
R"W‘\"\ Rowes & O Neepe
[€ A@,(-\\/,s A ans@unin




y,
F 4
)

NCEPA CONSENT CALENDAR

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: /l |a’)_) ‘ |7

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # D to# ‘0\

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:
# )

| ,
ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: @M/T { %W

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda

+£

BART X

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Tl

Lompoc ~

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland \5 0nd \5

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

K| KL

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

4K

Ukiah

e

A

Plumas-Sierra 5

7
ATTEST: ( ! Xﬁ}k@k
Cary\A‘.?/adé“eA@

Assistant Secretary to the Commission




Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: MU@(\W\ \j 48 d{ (\LLW\ %'\‘:’\_l\

VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda
BART Y
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc

Palo Alto

F R T

Plumas-Sierra _ \ﬂ _
Port of Oakland b g

Redding Y
Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake ]:
Truckee Donner ]/:

Ukiah

H

%

Passed and adopted thig'2 th day of July 2017, by the above vote on roll call.

Y, —_ )

GARY PLASS/ / LV b CARY A. PADGETT. )

Vice Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic:

1 m

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

\&

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

<
@]
=]
m

LR ] ] e

ABSTAIN

ABSENT

%

X
S

Passed and adopted this 27" day of July 2017, by the above vote on roll call.

/

GARY PLAS
Vice Chair

ATTEST: | ﬁb{g @&f

CARY A.'PADGETT

Assistant Secretary



‘TI" A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.: 5

Date: August 16, 2017
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: August 2, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.






\ I/ 651 Commerce Drive
_ A FUBLLE AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

Y 4
y N C I A phone  (916) 781-3636
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: August 2, 2017, Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair

Melissa Price at 9:02am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference
and/or on-line presentation were Alan Hanger (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert
(Gridley), Monica Padilla and Jim Stack (Palo Alto), Basil Wong (Port of Oakland), Steve Hance,
Kathleen Hughes, and Peter Virasak (Santa Clara), Willie Manuel (Turlock). Those attending in
person are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from
BART, Healdsburg, Truckee-Donner, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

Approve Minutes from June 7, 2017 and July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meetings — A
motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending approval
of the meeting minutes for the June 7, 2017 and July 5, 2017 Facilities Committee Meetings. A
vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-
Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Martech First Amendment — Staff
recommended approval of a First Amendment to the five year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Martech. This Amendment would expand the not to exceed amount from
$200,000 to $500,000 and expand for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members. Martech provides various machining services
required for plant operations, including balancing, AC/DC rewind and rebuild services, and
hydroelectric services. This is an enabling agreement, and no funds are being committed at this
time. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Alan Hanger
recommending Commission approval of a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Martech, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount to $500,000 and expanding for
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — The Avogadro Group, LLC First
Amendment — Staff recommended approval of a First Amendment to the five year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with The Avogadro Group, LLC. This Amendment would modify



the vendor name and expand for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members. The Avogadro Group, LLC provides various testing
services, including but not limited to source, rata, and emissions testing. This is an enabling
agreement, and no funds are being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report was
available for review

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval of a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
The Avogadro Group, LLC, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, not to exceed $250,000 over five years and expanding for use at
any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”") or SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Summit Crane Company of
Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane — Staff recommended approval of a five year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane
with a not to exceed amount of $500,000. Summit Crane provides various crane services,
including on-site crane safety training, crane equipment, and crane operators. NCPA has similar
agreements in place with Titan Crane & Rigging and Maxim Crane Works. This is an enabling
agreement, and no funds are being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report was
available for review

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Summit Crane
Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane for crane equipment rental, safety training, and
crane operators, with any nonsubstantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

6. Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Kinectrics North America, Inc. — Staff
recommended approval of a five year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with
Kinectrics North America, Inc., with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000. Kinectrics North
America, Inc. is based in Ontario, Canada. They provide specialized generator testing and
assessment services, as well as other various technical assistance. NCPA has similar
agreements in place with a number of other companies such as Adritz Hydro, HDR Engineering,
Quality Generator Services and Siemens Energy. This is an enabling agreement, and no funds
are being committed at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Shannon McCann
recommending Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Kinectrics North America, Inc. for generator testing and assessment services, with any
nonsubstantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA"), or by
SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc,
Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

7. Amendment to Facilities Agreement Project Schedules — Staff recommended approval of an
amendment to the Facilities Agreement Schedule 2 to include the Antelope Expansion Phase 1
Solar Facility project as an NCPA Project. Staff shared background on the functionality of the
Facilities Agreement, as well as background on the Expansion Solar Facility. This project was
entered into via a Renewable Energy PPA, and was designated by the Commission as an

August 2, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2



NCPA Project at the time of approval. Adding this project to the Facilities Agreement Schedule 2
will allow this project to be governed under the terms of PPA/Facilities Schedules.

Adding this project to the Facilities Agreement is a legal technicality which obligates the
participants to cover all project and administrative costs; there is no expected impact on Power
Management and Administrative Services budget with the addition of this new project.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Monica Padilla recommending
Commission approval to amend the Facilities Schedule 2 of the Amended and Restated
Facilities Agreement to include the Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility as a NCPA
Project. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto,
Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Roseville. The motion passed.

8. Discuss Hydro Shares Allocation Methodology — Staff discussed updating the methodology
used for allocating hydro shares. Shares are currently allocated based on flows from New
Spicer Meadows being above 400 cfs. When flows are above this threshold, the NSM
generation units are bypassed, with no additional generatlon being produced. If a participant
changes its share of releases when the flows are above 400 cfs, then its share of generation will
change, despite the fact that NSM generation is not increasing.

Staff is proposing that generation produced at NSM be allocated to participants in proportion to
their water release schedules when total NSM releases are less than 400 cfs. When NSM
releases are above 400 cfs, the allocation would be based on ownership shares. Staff explained
that this would only apply with discretionary releases, and will not affect load following.

Staff intends to take Member feedbadk into account and fine tune the proposed update before
bringing it forward for a formal vote in the September Facilities Committee Meeting.

9. Revenue Allocation Policy — James Takehara reported that there have been no changes to
the policy recommendations since the last meeting. James once again reviewed the rationale of
the UD subgroup in forming their final revenue allocation recommendations. He clarified that the
revenue allocation policy would apply to proceeds received for the provision of power
management and administrative services to third parties and would not apply to revenues
received for services that are not a part of the Nexant Cost Allocation Model structure. James
reitereated the need for future policy development, as directed by the UD’s and Facilities
Committee members; those directives will be captured in the Staff Report and Resolution
submitted to the Commission.

There was discussion on the wording of the motion, specifically the use of the term “fixed rate”
to describe the pricing, as well as the definition of “revenues” (what is and is not included,
dealing with the potential future issue of excess revenuss, etc.). As a result of this discussion,
the Facilities Committee Meeting thought it best to update the white paper with some of the
details requested by members, as well as referencing those details in the Resolution. Voting on
this item will be deferred until the September 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting, to give
members an opportunity to review the updated white paper.

10. NCPA Capacity Pool Prices — Staff recommended Commission approval of the System and
Local Resource Adequacy Capacity prices for CY 2018 NCPA Capacity Pool. Staff gave
background on the Resource Adequacy Program pool members, and the development of the
Pooling Agreement Schedule 4. Under this agreement, the Pool has to establish and adopt
prices for system and local area capacity, which must then be approved by the NCPA
Committees. The FY17 prices for Local were $2.20/kW-Month and System Capacity prices were
$1.00/kW-Month.

NCPA determines their recommended capacity prices through informal pricing surveys
conducted on the open market. Staff shared the System Capacity and Local Capacity results of

August 2, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3



this year’s informal survey. NCPA strives for rates that are equitable for both buyers and sellers.
Members asked about the deadline for making a final decision on whether to transact in the
Pool. Tony will distribute the 2018 Balances from the CAISO for each member sometime in the
next day or two. Members should expect an email from Tony shortly after the August
Commission Meeting, after which Members will have roughly two weeks to make a final decision
on whether to participate.

There was a discussion on whether the CAISO will be revising RA Capacities on operating
reserves (how reserve value is calculated for reserve projects). Tony explained how the Flex
Capacity rules are structured. James also explained that the CAISO may eliminate long-start
units from supplying Flex Capacity units in the future, which could result in NCPA having to add
Flex Capacity rules into the RA program (however, this is not likely to be implemented until
FY19).

Motion: A motion was made by Monica Padilla and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval to establish the following as the System and Local Resource Adequacy
Capacity prices to be used in the CY 2018 NCPA Capacity Pool: System Capacity - $1.00 / kW-
Month, Local Capacity - $1.85 / kW-Month. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa
Clara. The motion passed.

11. Extension of Natural Gas Pipeline Contract — Staff gave background on the natural gas
pipeline agreements NCPA currently has in place. Historically, NCPA has been extending these
agreements yearly. Staff reviewed the benefits of renewing the NOVA/Foothills contracts. When
NCPA extends these contracts for 1 year, the full tariff rates are charged. Extending beyond 1
year results in reduced tariff rates. NCPA has extended for a 5 year term in the past, however,
at the end of the term the gas market was down and the pipes were not producing revenues, so
the Committee began yearly renewals after that.

The Pipeline contracts work in conjunction with NCPA’s Asset Management Agreement (AMA)
with Noble. The AMA is evergreen, and is simply renewed on an annual basis 6 months before
expiration. To date, Noble seems interested in continuing to manage the pipelines.

Melissa Price expressed an interest in viewing historical data prior to making a final decision on
whether to extend beyond 1 year. Tony will distribute historical data to members and bring this
item back for a formal vote in the September 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting.

12. Impacts of Water Delivery Disruption at the STIG - Staff shared background on the water
supply disruption that occurred at STIG/LEC last month. Staff explained the circumstances
surrounding the water shortage. During the outage period, STIG was kept on a forced outage to
allow available water to be used for LEC; this decision was made because STIG did not face RA
fines, and LEC was already on a scheduled run.

Staff explained that there were no margin opportunity costs during the STIG outage period. Staff
shared background on the current bidding strategy for STIG; because of this current bidding
strategy, the unit would not have run during this period even if there had been sufficient water.
NCPA did have to purchase power in the Day Ahead market since STIG was unavailable. The
cost of that purchase was $1,000.

This outage highlighted issues with the STIG/LEC cost compensation mechanism. Staff will be
looking at the current compensation mechanism, and developing Facilities/PMOA schedules to
address situations where shared capacity limitations are directed towards one project at the
possible expense of the other. Staff will also be working on addressing water reliability issues.
Once staff have developed a way to address these situations, they will bring it back before the
Committee for a formal vote.

August 2, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4



13. Planning and Operations Update

Merced: Scheduling for Merced is going well, the prescheduling group continues to
work with Merced on the transition (with a focus on learning reservoir/flow level
requirements)

PCWA: Dennis continues to work with his Dispatchers to prepare operating
manuals for PCWA. Tony and IS continue to focus on integration.

TO18: The TO18 proceeding continues to advance. This is still in litigation, and
NCPA continues to monitor the progress. James will be arranging a call with SOT
participants to discuss TANC costs and how proceedings are going. Testimony
was filed a few weeks ago, and there will be another opportunity for comment.
PG&E is scheduled to submit rebuttal testimony in October, and the trial is
scheduled for January 2018.

TO19: PG&E has filed TO19. In this filing, their proposed rates for TAC seem to
have gone down, while expenditures have increased by $100,000.

TAC Restructuring Proceedings: NCPA have filed comments. NCPA's comments
focused on maintaining existing cost structure. NCPA has been meeting with
PG&E twice a month with the objective of getting a Planning Process into place for
all PG&E projects.

CAISO RFP for Black Start Services: Alameda submitted as available unit; if
accepted, this will be brought forward to Facilities for a formal vote.

CAISO Newsletter: Dave reviewed some interesting articles of interest to members
that appeared in the most recent CAISO Newsletter, including articles on resource
adequacy mechanisms and market performance and planning.

14. Schedule Next Meeting Date — the next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for
September 6, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:04pm.

August 2, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes






A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.:__6

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Date: August 24, 2017
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: August 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

N C PA phone  (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web Www.ncpa.com

Minutes

Date: August 11, 2017
To: NCPA Finance Committee
From: Trisha Hubbard, Administrative Assistant

Subject:  August 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

Finance Committee Attendees:
Consultants in attendance-call

Committee Members Attended: in:
Madeline Deaton, Chair Alameda attended Mike Berwanger PFM
Ann Hatcher Santa Clara  absent Rian Irani PFM
Melissa Price Lodi call-in Gene Carron Orrick
Matt Michealis Gridley call-in Mark Bauer Orrick
Philip McAvoy Roseville attended Tyler Old PFM

Jack Medall PFM
Member Staff NCPA Staff in attendance:
David Hagele Healdsburg call-in until 10 :30 Monty Hanks
Taran Narayan Palo Alto call-in Sondra Ainsworth

Randy Howard

Jane Luckhardt

Trisha Hubbard

1. Call Meeting to Order
Madeline Deaton called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m.

2. Roll call — Roll call was conducted as listed above. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

3. Approve the May 10, 2017 Meeting Minutes
Motion: a motion was made by Philip McAvoy and seconded by Melissa Price recommending
approval of the May 10, 2017 Finance Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Madeline Deaton (Alameda), Melissa Price (Lodi), Matt Michaelis (Gridley), and
Philip McAvoy (Roseville). The motion passed.

PUBLIC FORUM

Ms. Deaton asked if anyone wished to address the Committee on matters within the jurisdiction
of the Committee. There were no requests for public comment at the site or at any of the
teleconference locations.




August 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 2

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

4. Report on Current Financial Market Conditions or Issues
Michael Berwanger of PFM reported that interest rates have dropped since his report during
the May 10" Finance Committee meeting. After record issuance in 2016, year-to-date
issuance has fallen approximately 13%, with supply in July approximately 19% lower;
municipal bond funds have continued to report net cash inflows. Lack of supply is keeping
rates low. Rates continue to be in a good position for NCPA'’s borrowing needs and financing
opportunities. SIFMA and LIBOR have remained relatively flat throughout July. NCPA'’s
variable rate portfolio continues to benefit from these low rates. Wall Street expects one
more rate hike this year. Melissa Price requested a chart showing the trend in past interest
rates from quarter to quarter. Mr. Berwanger will follow up with the committee with a chart as
requested. The UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) recently announced its intention to
phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021; however, there is currently no strategy to transition to a
replacement index. There are unanswered questions regarding whether the change will
impact existing debt or only new debt. More information will be forthcoming as developments
occur. No action is necessary at this time.

Based on the time it takes to prepare for a refunding, the committee asked PFM to discuss in
more detail NCPA's refunding opportunities. The Hydro Project No. 1 Revenue Bonds, 2008
Refunding Series C is callable on July 1, 2018. A current refunding can be executed as early
as April 3, 2018. Committee members recommended that staff move forward with looking
into this Hydro refunding opportunity and directed staff to begin the underwriter RFP process.
Staff will provide an update to the Commission at the August 24" Commission meeting.

5. Debt and Interest Rate Management Report
Monty Hanks reported on the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for period ending
June 30, 2017. Key highlights that were presented and discussed with the committee are as
follows:
Fixed Rate Debt: No new fixed rate debt has been issued. Staff continues to receive
refunding opportunities for the Hydro Project No. One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding
Series C. Staff plans to continue monitoring the savings and will most likely explore a
refunding. The bond insurer for the 1992 Hydro bonds, National Public Finance Guarantee,
was downgraded by S&P. However, the debt issue is not subject to Rule 15¢2-12 because
of their issuance date prior to the effective date of such provisions.
Variable Rate Debt: The Agency has a total of $86.7 million of outstanding variable rate
debt. The reset rates continue to trade at or better than SIFMA for the Series A bonds (tax-
exempt) and one month LIBOR for Series B bonds (taxable) despite the recent Moody’s
downgrade of the BMO on May 10™.
Interest Rate Swaps: As of June 30, 2017, NCPA had $86.7 million of outstanding swaps, all
related to the Hydro Project bonds which act as a hedge against the variable rate debt. The
total fair value of the interest rate swaps was a net liability of $15.2 million. This amount has
improved from the June 30, 2016 net liability of $22.3 million due to a rise in interest rates
and time value.

Motion: A motion was made by Madeline Deaton and seconded by Matt Michaelis
recommending that the Commission accept the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report
for period ending June 30, 2017. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Madeline Deaton
(Alameda), Melissa Price (Lodi), Matt Michaelis (Gridley), and Philip McAvoy (Roseville).
The motion passed.

6. NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines
Staff is seeking a recommendation for the Committee to recommend that the Commission
approve changes to the NCPA Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 as follows: 1)



August 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 3

minor language clean up 2) updates to the Permitted Investments attachment 3) changes to
the Investment Fund Obijectives attachment and 4) removal of the Authorized Financial
Institutions attachments. Monty Hanks reported that the Investment Policy and Guidelines
were last updated in November 2016. He is recommending further changes based on
observations he has made since joining NCPA in February this year. The main objective with
the recommended changes is to create an Investment Policy that more closesly matches the
State Code which will allow the Treasurer-Controller to create a balanced portfolio managing
a modest amount of default risk through diversification, duration, and adequate liquidity while
respecting the goals and constraints dictated by the Policy. Staff believes by implementing
the recommends changes to the Investment Policy, there is a potential of adding
approximately $500,000 annually of additional interest income and member savings through
a reduction of current liquidity and implementing a diversified portfolio of investments.

Motion: A motion was made by Philip McAvoy and seconded by Madeline Deaton
recommending Commission approval of the changes to the NCPA Investment Policy No.
200-100 as follows: 1) minor language clean-up; 2) updates to the Permitted Investments
attachment; 3) changes to the Investment Fund Objectives attachment; and 4) remove the
Authorized Financial Institutions attachment A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Madeline
Deaton (Alameda), Philip McAvoy (Roseville) Melissa Price (Lodi), and Matt Michaelis
(Gridley). The motion passed.

The Committee directed staff to review, develop and bring forth a new investment strategy for
the Committee’s review at the next regular Finance Committee meeting in November.

7. Finance Committee Charter
Staff is seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Finance Committee Charter
in order to better define the roles and responsibilities of the Finance Committee as described
in the Agency Bylaws. In accordance with the Amended and Restated Commission Rules of
Procedure (aka — NCPA Bylaws) the Finance Committee’s role is to provide financial
oversight for the Agency and is described as reviewing and reporting all financial, accounting,
or auditing matters referred to it by the Commission, Executive Committee, the Chair, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Agency, or by the General Manager. The purpose of the
Finance Committee Charter is to better define the Finance Committee’s purpose,
responsibilities and duties, structure and operations, and frequency of meetings and
requirements that will provide assistance to the Commission in fulfilling their responsibility in
respect to the policies, practices and strategies that relate to the management of the financial
affairs of the Agency.

The Committee members recommended further edits to the draft Charter including removal
of the Nominating Committee statement, update the alternate language, add language stating
that an alternate Committee Chair may be designated and call special meetings. Staff will
make the recommended changes, distribute to the Committee and bring back to the next
Finance Committee meeting for final review and approval. No action taken.

8. Finance Committee Chair Appointment

Staff is seeking a recommendation to approve and ratify the appointment of David Hagele,
Council Member for the City of Healdsburg, as a member and Chairperson of the Finance
Committee. Current Chair Madeline Deaton requested to end her term on the Finance
Committee effective at the end of August 2017 due to her personal schedule. The
Nominating Committee discussed David Hagele as a potential replacement for Madeline as
he will bring a wealth of financial experience to the Finance Committee. However, the
Nominating Committee didn’t have an official recommendation for Madeline’s replacement
due to not knowing the timing of her stepping down as the Chair. The members of the



August 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 4

Finance Committee as well as NCPA staff thanked Madeline for her time, effort and
contributions during her time with the committee.

Motion: A motion was made by Melissa Price and seconded by Philip McAvoy recommending
that the Commission approve and ratify the appointment of David Hagele, Council Member
for the City of Healdsburg, as a member and Chairperson of the Finance Committee. A vote
was taken by roll call: YES = Madeline Deaton (Alameda), Melissa Price (Lodi), Matt
Michaelis (Gridley) and Philip McAvoy (Roseville). The motion passed.

Selection of Financial Advisor Firm and Award of Contract

(NOTE: Representatives from PFM as well as Orrick excused themselves from the call at
12:30)

Three firms were interviewed on August 3" by a panel consisting of Monty Hanks, Sondra
Ainsworth, Philip McAvoy, Ann Hatcher, and Madeline Deaton. Of the three firms, two were
considered very qualified, however, PFM’s overall pricing was the lowest. The interview
panel felt that continuity was an important factor as well due to the impending Hydro debt
refunding. Staff is recommending award of the contract to PFM; however, a meeting has
been scheduled for August 16 to dicuss and review terms and conditions. Following that
meeting, staff will prepare the Financial Advisor Agreement and distribute to the committee
for review. A Special Finance Committee meeting will be held early September to seek the
committee’s recommendation of Commission approval of the agreement. The Agreement will
be taken to the September 29" Commission meeting for approval.

NEW BUSINESS

10.

11.

12.

NCPA FY2017 Audit

Sondra Ainsworth reported that the NCPA FY2017 audit is underway. She reviewed a letter
that Baker Tilly Virchow Krause (Baker Tilly) requested be provided to the Committee
members for their review and acknowledgement. The letter covers Baker Tilly’s auditing
standards, requirements, and responsibilities as well as those of the committee. Sondra
indicated that she could ask for an acknowledgement of the committee members’
responsibilities related to the audit process during the September special meeting.

Other Items of Interest to the Finance Committee
No other items were discussed.

Next Finance Committee Meeting
The next regular Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for November 8, 2017 at 10am.

A Special Meeting will be held early September to address the Financial Advisor Agreement.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:57 p.m.



651 Commerce Drive

A PUBLIE ACEHSY Roseville, CA 95678

( N C F A phone  (916) 781-3636
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-76903
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8

Date: August 17, 2017
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: April 19, 2017, Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral
Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
5 PUBLIC AGENTY Rosevilie, CA 95678

N C PA phone (916) 781-3636

3 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693
web WWW.Ncpa,com

Minutes

Date: August 14, 2017
To: NCPA Legislative & Regulatory Affairs C
From: Carrie Pollo, Legislative and Regulal

Subject:  April 19, 2017 Legislative & Regula

Chair Gary Plass, Council Member, C
followed by introductions of all in attend

attendance list. Participal ry Lesk&:and Ann McCormick from

Monica Padilla and Debbie Lloyd, City

Berlin.

PUBLIC FORUM

"City of Biggs, and seconded by Madeline Deaton,

Motion: A motion;
utes from the February 22, 2017 regular meeting. All were in

City of Alameda, to

Item #3 — State Legislative

Mario De Bernardo, State Government Relations Manager, reviewed state legislative issues
including: SB 100 (de Ledn); other renewable energy bills; cap and trade; other clean energy
proposals, small cell, data collection, and two bills sponsored by The Utility Reform Network

(TURN).

He provided background and analysis on SB 100, which would establish a 60% RPS by 2030

and a 100% clean energy standard by 2045. Mario explained the work that NCPA is engaged in
to develop amendments that address the potential challenges created by the bill. NCPA's initial
reactions to the bill include concerns related to increased ratepayer costs, stranded investments,



L&R Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes April 19, 2017
Page 2

reliability, and over generation.

Mr. De Bernardo discussed two other renewable energy related bills. AB 920 (Aguiar-Curry)
would create an RPS procurement requirement for baseload energy. AB 1070 (Gonzalez
Fletcher) would establish consumer protections related to rooftop solar panels.

Regarding cap and trade, he provided analysis on the various bills in play: the Governor’s
budget trailer bill, AB 378 (C. Garcia), and AB 151 (Burke). Mario discussed how NCPA's

legislative strategy is generally focused on protecting investments in natural gas plants and
preserving the direct allocations of electric utility allowances.

He also discussed other bills focused on clean energy issues. There are two bills that would
establish utility subsidies for energy storage: AB 1030 (Ting) and SB 700 (Wiener). AB 1088
(Eggman) would establish various state clean energy goals for multifamily residential units. Both
AB 1405 (Mullin) and SB 338 (Skinner) would require utilities to take action to serve net peak
load with more clean energy resources.

Lastly, Mr. De Bernardo provided background and legislative strategy on bills regarding small cell
permit streamlining (AB 649, Hueso); increased data collection (AB 1293, Irwin; AB 1431,
Arambula; and SB 356, Skinner); and two TURN sponsored bills: AB 79 (Levine) and SB 520
(Mitchell). AB 78 would require more accurate greenhouse gas emission accounting of
unspecified resources on a utility's power content label. AB 520 would require POUs to pay
intervener funding for transmission related proceedings at the 1ISO, CEC, and FERC.

Item #4 — Regulatory Affairs Update

Scott Tomashefsky, Regulatory Affairs Manager, gave updates to the committee including: 1)
Developments being undertaken by the State to establish utility-specific greenhouse gas (GHG)
goals; 2) An update on the California Air Resources Board’s Scoping Plan, and; 3) A status report
surrounding CARB'’s proposed cap and trade regulation amendments. It was noted that the
Scoping Plan continues to be the State’s overarching document that outlines policy direction for
carbon emissions. It is scheduled to be adopted in June 2017.

Mr. Tomashefsky explained that NCPA's key policy objective on climate is to continue the cap
and trade program beyond 2020 and secure the direct allocation of allowances to NCPA
members and electric utilities, and that the agency will continue to work closely with the Joint
Utility Group, its public power partners, as well as the CEC and CARB to shape policies and

refine tools.
Item #5 — Member Services

Jonathan Changus, Member Services Manager & Regulatory Affairs, updated the committee
regarding energy efficiency. In the 2016 Annual Energy Efficiency Report, POUs spent $154
million, resulting in 825 GWh of energy savings. He provided the committee with important
upcoming regulatory reporting dates, including:

June 1
« Power Source Disclosure/Power Content Label
» Annual SFg Emissions Report
+  GHG Emissions Data (AB 32)



L&R Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes April 19, 2017
Page 3

June 19
» CEC Workshop on Proposal for 2030 Doubling of EE
» Annual Targets, including POU portion
June 30
» Use of GHG Allowances Report (AB 32)
» RPS Triennial Compliance Report (SBx1 2)
July 1
« Solar Program Status Report (SB 1)

October 1
» 2020 Energy Storage Procurement Target Update

Item #6 — Western Area Power Administration

Maury Kruth updated the committee on several Western issues including: 1) the CVPIA
Restoration Fund Credits; 2) Western’s 2025 CVP Power Marketing Plan; 3) Reclamation’s CVP
Cost Allocation Study; and, 4) Governor Brown’s California WaterFix project.

Item #7 — NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference Issues Briefing

Marty Kanner, President of Kanner and Associates, gave an update on the political climate in
Washington, DC, stating that tax reform, regulatory reform, and the budget are key policy issues.
He also provided an extensive issue briefing for committee members in preparation for the
upcoming NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference. Key issues reviewed included tax-exempt
financing, hydropower licensing reform, workforce development, wildfire funding reform, and the
long-term viability of CVP power. He explained that legislative meetings are scheduled in both
the House and Senate with key committee staff as well as with Senators and Representatives,
and that regulatory meetings are also scheduled with FERC and NERC.

Brent ten Pas, Federal Government Relations Representative, discussed the logistics of the
upcoming Federal Policy Conference in Washington, DC, going over the featured speakers for
the program, the Commissioner advocacy training, and the policy conference app. As well, he
also passed out the most current meeting schedule.

ADJOURNMENT

The Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Committee meeting moved to adjournment by Vice Chair,
Teresa O'Neill, City of Santa Clara, at 4:14 pm. All were in favor.



B0 ATENLY

NC

PA

NDRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 24, 2017

SUBJECT:

July 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth ..

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o 0 X

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify:

(]
O
City of Palo Alto [J Plumas-Sierra REC
O
O
O

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 189:17



July 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)
August 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the August 24, 2017 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited July 2017 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

QM& A

RANDY S.\HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 189:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2017 8%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric
Other Plant Cost $ 1,328,351 § 1,328,351 15,603,994 9%
Debt Service (Net) 3,188,179 3,188,179 38,258,150 8%
Annual Budget Cost 4,516,530 4,516,530 53,862,144 8%
Geothermal
Other Plant Cost 1,770,248 1,770,248 27,184,263 7%
Debt Service (Net) 411,312 411,312 4,935,743 8%
Annual Budget Cost 2,181,560 2,181,560 32,120,006 7%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 254,600 254,600 2,626,932 10%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 57,170 57,170 834,641 7%
Other Plant Cost 123,474 123,474 2,095,083 6%
Debt Service (Net) 474,410 474,410 5,692,922 8%
Annual Budget Cost 655,054 655,054 8,622,646 8%
Lodi Energy Center
Fuel 1,492,526 1,492,526 14,877,170 10%
Other Plant Cost 1,296,069 1,296,069 19,794,554 7%
Debt Service (Net) 2,201,387 2,201,387 26,416,640 8%
Annual Budget Cost 4,989,982 4,989,982 61,088,364 8%
Member Resources - Energy 5,650,692 5,550,692 53,389,034 10%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 302,615 302,615 3,457,156 9%
Western Resources 2,329,601 2,329,601 30,119,880 8%
Market Power Purchases 1,496,987 1,496,987 19,318,025 8%
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 5,179,673 5,179,673 233,822,294 2%
Net GHG Obligations - - 445,917 0%
27,457,294 27,457,294 498,872,398 6%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 315,189 315,189 2,466,609 13% (a)
Wheeling Access Charge 8,645,781 8,645,781 96,760,295 9%
Ancillary Services 164,792 164,792 2,639,380 6%
Other Charges - - 1,058,438 0%
9,125,762 9,125,762 102,924,722 9%




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2017

MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation
Regulatory Representation
Western Representation
Member Services
Judicial Action

Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs
Contract Admin, Interconnection Sves & External Affairs
Green Power Project
Gas Purchase Program
Market Purchase Project

Energy Risk Management
Settlements

Integrated Systems Support
Participant Pass Through Costs
Support Services

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales
Load Aggregation Energy Sales
Ancillary Services Sales
Western Resource Energy Sales
Transmission Sales
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS

(a) Variance due to increased generation from the hydroelectric plant.

PERCENT OF

YEAR ELAPSED
8%
This Actual Year FY 2018

Month To-Date Budget % Used
110,557 110,557 1,976,008 6%
17,385 17,385 837,639 2%
16,879 16,879 829,636 2%
26,133 26,133 436,078 6%
- - 625,000 0%
410,331 410,331 5,864,452 7%
166,954 166,954 2,647,017 6%
27,232 27,232 424,174 6%
55,283 55,283 1,151,828 5%
176 176 17,746 1%
4,008 4,008 88,131 5%
6,302 6,302 130,141 5%
5,815 5,815 206,836 3%
39,941 39,941 774,377 5%
32,856 32,856 318,562 10%
86,112 86,112 1,525,907 6%
1,894 1,894 - N/A
1,007,858 1,007,858 17,853,532 6%
37,590,914 37,590,914 619,650,652 6%
9,484 569 9,484,569 70,367,243 13%
1,832,601 1,832,601 151,018,772 1%
280,469 280,469 2,731,442 10%
- - 18,026,100 N/A
9,198 9,198 110,376 8%
1,677,820 1,677,820 15,712,788 1%
13,284,657 13,284,657 257,966,721 5%
24,306,257 $ 24,306,257 % 361,683,931 7%




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of July 2017

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,089,696
4,988,253
301,385
414,690
3,655,903
21,859,097

$ 32,309,024




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

July 31,

2017 2016

(in thousands)

45,567 $ 38,618
30,032 29,755
2,907 345
3,193 969
114 106
9,764 9,162
1,073 451
92,630 79,406
45,393 43,640
152,925 143,916
342 335
198,660 187,891
1,501,737 1,500,756
(945,294) (914,536)
556,443 586,220
821 212
557,264 586,432
235,789 248,968
233 44
1,084,596 1,102,741
47,407 53,676
13,506 9,093
60,913 62,769

1,145,509 $ 1,165,510




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
July 31,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 30,327 $ 20,562
Member advances 993 993
Operating reserves 20,225 18,810
Current portion of long-term debt 41,635 39,350
Accrued interest payable 4,965 5,265
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 98,145 84,980
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 64,589 57,774
Operating reserves and other deposits 143,062 132,542
Interest rate swap liability 15,173 22,261
Long-term debt, net 709,993 751,708
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 932,817 964,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,030,962 1,049,265
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 72,097 74,227
Pension deferrals 4,460 6,599
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,557 80,826
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (41,355) (42,330)
Restricted 50,716 50,992
Unrestricted 28,629 26,757
TOTAL NET POSITION 37,990 35,419

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,145,509 $ 1,165,510




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
One Month Ended July 31,
2017 2016
(in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 31,951 § 27,559
Other Third-Party 26,539 19,869
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 58,490 47,428
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 31,229 22,340
Operations 4,319 4,432
Transmission 11,076 8,872
Depreciation 2,581 2,560
Maintenance 1,009 837
‘Administrative and general 1,013 712
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 51,227 39,753
NET OPERATING REVENUES 7,263 7,675
OTHER (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense 3,371 (3,530)
Interest income 1,781 (989)
Other 355 4,693
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES (1,235) 174
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (705) (551)
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (1,645) 158
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 3,678 7,456
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 34,312 27,963

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 37,990 § 35,419




60S'SPI°T § 0zT'091 §  798'S 96LTY - § 900°IZr €0LT SYETY VLY €8E £01°88
£16°09 905l - - s = - £€0°C €S ey 1€8°1
905°€1 908°¢l - = : - - = B
LOV'LY - - = - - - £€0°T 323034 1€8°7
965 780°1 PILOY] 798°S 96LTY - 900712y €0LT TIE6E 1€6°6€€ TLT98
€€ [ili 607 = = = - : - 2
68L'SET 8299 - - - £€8°17 - 0ze'l Spspl 9§
¥9T'LSS £€9°T 867 = A 685°SSE SE6'1 S8p'81 106'071 £TY'LE
128 (22 - - - L01 - - - 0L9
£hb95s 685C 867 - - 785'5S€E SE6°1 S8l 106°0¥1 £5L°9¢
(P6Z°516) (69L°T) (og) - (9€L°L) (651°89) {o1€%¢) (1p€op) (€L£7sT) (1pzTes)
LELTOST 85€°S £99 C 9€L’L 1¥9°€Th 32413 97849 YLTY6E 66895
099861 £vvT8 : £19'7¢C < $OL LT = 69 97T°5¢ STHHT
Tre 821 = - - LL < z ¥8 IS
$T6TSI 796°CS - 08981 - 910°92 - 0€6°S 08$1€ LSL'LL
£6£°SH £5€'6T - €E6°E - 1191 - Lig z9¢8°¢ L19%9
05926 000°S SSE'S £81°0T - 088°S1 89L 8ST°¢ TSE'BI ¥S8°€T
* {ooc'eL] <8T°S £€5°01 - 687°€1 (599) 965°CT 1S0°L1 12061
£L0°1 243 81 - 5 80T Lz 61 444 454
¥9L'6 - - - - e Sov'l 9 6L0°1 LTS
yl oL - 144 * # = = s =

€61°c s6l - 866°C c = - - - -

L06°T 98T°C €1 809 - - - - - -
T£0°0€ 7€0°0€ - - - - - - - -
L9S"SY $  £SPSy $ 6¢ - - $ L 1 1 - [

P3UIqUIO)y foudny FERTNE UOISSIWSURI ], U ON 191U AfIaug uQ ON sampoe JLIIO3ROIPAH [eWLIAYI0D)
BEliiTeY JOqUIS] % 1Pmod uoIssiwsuel y, po1 1D rende)
PatROSSY paseyoang adnny
SHOANOSTE NOISSINSNVYL 2 ONILYIANAD
L10T ‘1€ A

UONEUIGUIOD) U PTRUIIT

SIDYNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ATNIFITA ANV SLASSY TVLOL

SAYNOSAY 40 SMOTLLNO AII¥dA9d TV.LOL
S[BLIJJ3P uoIsuaq
199p Jo SuIpunyal Uo 1500 §S30XY
SHONENOSTY 40 SMOTALNO AT dHA3d

SIFSSV TV.IOL

spredaxd pue susodap Joy1Q
sjasse AlojepnSay
SLASSV ¥IHLO

INVTd DILOF T TVIOL
ssa15o1d-ul-3}10M UONONNSUO)

uoneaidop PoTeINIOE ($537]
301A19s Ul Juepd ouloa|g
INVTd DP9 T

S1ASSY AALOMLSHY TYLOL
9[qeAIR0AI JS19IU]
SIUSUNSIAUL
siuoreanbo yses pue yse)
S1ASSY QALORILST]

SLASSY LNTHIND TV.LOL
xsweiSoud Jayo pue Lousfy woy ang

sasuadxa predaig
sorjddns pue A1ousau
3[qeAI9931 1S21PIU]

BEUiTe]

swedmpnred
3]qRAIDAI SIUNOIDY
SIUSWISAAU]
sjusfeAlnba yses pue yse)

SLASSY LNTTIND

SLASSY

(pap1wo s,000)
SNOILVIOJHOD YIMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AINADV HAMOd VINHOII'TVD NUAHLION

NOILLISOd L3N JO INHNALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOLLVIAHOANI TVIONVNIA ¥4H.LO



60SSHI'L $ 0TT091 798°S $ 96L'TY $  900°1ZY $ LT SPETY § bLY'ESE $ col'sg
066°LE 899 TLO'S (S6vY) 798°8 (0L) 6LL 81Z°€1 $56°€1
679°8C 899 TL0°S (612°7) 950°T1 o) 10LC {Lze) 8L 11
91L°0S - - 9L7'D) 62Tl - 0EE’S T68°6T 185°S
(Sse'1p) # - - e’y (zsT's) (Lo€'91) (sLE'e)
LSSOL 6T5°L 867 S81°TY S60C 186 186°C T8Y°61
09 ¥ 09t - S = ¥ - -
L60TL 690°€ 867 - S81°Ty $60°T L86 186°¢ 78461
796001 €20°TST 6 16T°Ly LS6°69€ 8L9 6LS"6€E SLT99E L99°PS
L1876 L€0°LYT [13 ££67T L19TpE - 88EFE £8¢' 1€ 9T Tk
£66°60L - - 3 106°07€ = 88€'VE ¥81°0LE 0T8T
£L1°ST - - - - - - £L1'ST -
790'eyl [a2 e 6¢ ££6T 9IL1 . ¢ 970'91 906°L1
6859 6859 - - - = - - -
Sv1°86 7667 Y4 85€TT 0pE'LT 8L9 161°¢ 768°vT &4
$96'% S - - YL9T - 816 SIEl 8S
SE9° 1Y - - SsE01 09L'¢ 019'zT 016’y
§TT0T - = STl LL9 319 052 €179
£66 - 70T - - - - - 16L
LTE0E $ T66% 152 $  8s£'TT $ 6eL'l $ 1 $ LlL $ 69T
paulquo) AJURTY FERITNEN 1SST 1] 1L 12ua) Assug U ON $an|I0R,] QUIOI[0IPAH [eULI3Y}ORD)
PO Jaquisy 2 1mog PO 10 rende)
PaieIossy paseyoing oydum
SEOUNOSTI NOISSTINSNVEL % DONILVYINTD
LTOT ‘1€ Alnp

NOILISOd LN ANV SA4N0STY 40
SMOTINI AIIII4Ad ‘SHILITIAVIT TVIOL
NOILISOd L3N TV.LOL
polILIS3IUN
penusay
51055€ [endes ul JUaUISIAUL 1IN
NOILISOd LAN

SAANOSTY 40 SMOTINI AFTIFIHA TVLOL
S[E113JOp UOISUSJ
supa1d Alorendoy
SENINOSTT 40 SMOTINI ATIIIFA

SHILITIEIVIT TV.IOL

SALLITEVIT INTIND-NON TVLOL

19u 1qep wisl-guo
Kypiqer] dems a1e1 153.193U]
sysodep Jaylo pue saalesal SunessdQ
Aupiqery uosuad 19N
SHILITIEVIT INTNI-NON

SHILITIEVIT LNTHEND TVLOL

3]qeAed 159191U1 PALIODY

193p uua1-8uof Jo uorpod wainy
soat9s01 GuneradQ

SIOUBAPE JOQUIS]A

sasuadxa ponusoe pue sjqeded sjunosoy

SHLLITIEVIT INTNND

SALLITIEVIT

(pammwo s,000)
SNOLLVIOJHOD YAMOJ AALVIDOSSV ANV
ADNADV YAMOd VINHOAI'TVD NYIHLYON

NOILISOd LAN A0 INFIWHLV.LS DONINIFNOD

NOILVINJOANI TVIDNVNIA ¥AHLO



UONRUIGUIO]) UT PAIRUNMIT

066°LE $§ 899 $ TL0S s (s6vp) $ - $ 988 s (o) $ 6LL § 8IzEl § pS6El $ Papus poliad ‘NOLLISOd LIN
TIEYE (95¢€) 1732 (89L°¢) S 8029 001 99L LEL'EL €L0°€1 1eaf jo Sumuidag ‘NOLLISOd LAN
8L9°¢ $20°L 085 (LzL) 5 959°C (oL1) €1 (6L8) 188 NOLLISOd LAN NI (ASVHE0aQ) SYTIONI
(591 (6LL) [ (8v6) = - @ 3 oSt (go1) SINVIJILYVd OL SANNATY
(soz) - - - - 181 - (s (z59) (8L1) SLNNOWY TTaVIZAODTY TINLNI
(5€21) 050°1 4 80T - (1z6) - {901) (87L°T) 08T SHSNAIXH YAHLO TVIOL
ss€ 5 - 2 2 91T - L8 [ - feele]
18L°1 666 4 80T - ¥91 - (Ly) L11 8¢ 30Ul 183.31U]
(1Le's) - - - = og'nD s (or1) (998°1) (85) asuadxa 152100
SHNNAATY (SASNAIXH) YFHLO
€9T°L €SL vs €1 = 96€°€ (891) L9T 9LS T 788 SHNNIATY ONILY¥HdO LAN
LTT1S (evL) 8L6 €861 - [7ARS 897 o€ €E1°T 0L0C SHSNIIXH ONILVYHdO TV.IOL
- 1 - - - 61 € [ L1 [ «Jou ‘saseyoind (sopes) Auedurooraiuy
£10°1 (69L) 79¢ - - LbE 9 8¢ L6 95 [€10UST PUE JAREASIUWIPY
600°1 - 2 s - 124 76 vE $8¢ 324 SOUBUWIELY
185°C sz 8 - = LIzt st 81 o8 449 uonewaldeq
9L0°11 = - 89L°01 : 9T 6T S 414 9¢ UOISSTUSURI ]
61EY » ¥09 £0¢ - £00°C L9 08 444 050° suoneradgy
Pt - - z16°0¢ : LIg : . - - semod paseyaing
SHSNAJXH ONILYHYAdO
06485 ol [Z231 966' 1 0LS'L 001 1£9 60L°C 56T SHNANHATY ONILVYIO TV.LOL
6€5°9C - 3 €EL°91 “ $50°E 43 89 986°¢ 605°T Aueg-puy 1 12410
156°1€ s ol $ 68t°1 $  £9T°5T $ - [ 1134 $ (s9) $ €95 $ (LLo) (374 $ siuedoureg
SANNAATY DNILVITIO
paurquoy Asuasy $IVIAIRS UOISST! 11, ISST 1L 191U3) ABISUY uQ oN sanpoe JLIJO3[R0IPAH [LITIEIGETS)
BYRO JOqUIDI % somog 1pog 10 {eude)
paerossy paseyoing srduynn
SHOYNOSTY NOISSTASNV UL 2 ONLLVIANED
LTI0T ‘I€ AIng papu YIUOI duQ 34} S04
(payuio 5,000)

SNOILLVIOJYOD ¥AMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AIDNADV HHMOd VINIOII'TVD NUIHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI STONVHO ANV SASNAIXA ‘SHINTATYH 40 INTINALV.LS DNINIGNOD

NOLLVINMOANI 'TVIONVNIA dAHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

July 31, 2017
Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 6,098,230
PAST DUE:
1-30 Lodi Support Services Training 1,041
31-60
61-90
91-120
Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 6,099,270

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2018.xIsxJul Rpt 2017



A PUBLIC ABENLY

NC

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 24, 2017

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended July 31, 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth =, (. METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o
o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify:

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 190:17



Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending July 31, 2017
August 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $27,537,780 of which approximately $7,192 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $318,162 to Debt Service and $27,212,426 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $246,131,343 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $244,895,645.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.141% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.156%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $152,366,000. July maturities totaled $3.5 million and monthly receipts totaled
$39 million. During the month $22 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 11 basis points (from 1.02%
to 1.13%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 1 basis point (from 1.22% to 1.23%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of July 31, 2017 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

q\%ﬁ& A~

General Manager

Attachment

SR: 190:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

JULY 31, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

July 31,2017
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 24,830,464 $ 71,960,606 96,791,070 35.37%
Special Deposits 1,417,705 0 1,417,705 0.52%
Construction 964,257 3,976,122 4,940,379 1.81%
Debt Service 318,162 12,210,458 12,628,620 4.58%
Special & Reserve 7,192 157,984,157 157,991,349 57.73%
$ 27,637,780 $ 246,131,343 273,669,123 100.00%
Portfolio Investments at Market Value 244,895,645

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
July 31, 2017
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) (NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 33,906,587 $ 118,946 $ 10,000 $ (18,013,806) $ (11,164,808) $ (11,198,876) $ (6,341,957)
Special Deposits 4,956,703 7 - (8,392,472) - 3,850,411 414,649
Construction - 15,231 - - - - 15,231
Debt Service - 39 1,063 (32,014,146) (5,609,561) 5,884,773 (31,737,842)
Special & Reserve - 303,892 3,497,317 - (5,531,920) 1,463,692 (267,019)
$ 38,863,290 $ 438,115 $ 3,508,370 $ (58,420,424) $ (22,306,289) $ - $ (37,916,938)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

July 31,2017
(NON-CASH)  (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 11,164,808 $ (10,000) $ (3,102) $ - $ - $ 11,151,706
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - (594) - - (594)
Debt Service 5,609,561 (1,053) 5,353 - - 5,613,861
Special & Reserve 5,531,920 (3,497,317) (4,154) - - 2,030,449
$ 22,306,289 $ (3,508,370) $ (2,497) $ : $ - 18,795,422
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 2,497
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 18,797,919

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency

Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

July 31, 2017
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.141% 1.156%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.100% 1.065%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.346% 1.361%
Capital Facilities 1.125% 1.125%
Hydroelectric 1.419% 1.375%
Lodi Energy Center 1.613% 1.300%
INTEREST RATES
1.75
150 g O 5|
KEY INTEREST RATES 1.25 — -
PRIOR .00 4%_91‘_:37‘;:’/“2)—» —
CURRENT  YEAR 075 T ’ 5
0.50 / £ s
Fed Fds (Ovrnight) 1.16% 0.40% 0.2 T
T-Bills (90da.) 1.13% 0.29% | 000
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.05% 0.33% Feb Mer Apr May Jun Jul
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.23% 0.53%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.19% 0.62% =
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.52% 0.83% —+—TBILL (90DA)  —&— FED FUNDS
—mtme TBILL (1YR) —t— TNOTE (3YR)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
July 31, 2017
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 4379 $ 4,170 $7,925 $4,637 $ 3,993 $ 152,366 $ - $ 177,470 65.57%
US Bank Trust Money Market 7 7 0.00%
Commercial Paper 5,000 5,000 1.85%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 63,046 63,046 23.29%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 25,143 25,143 9.29%
U.S.Treasury Bill 0.00%
Certificates of Deposit 10 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $ 97,575 $4,180 $7,925 $4,637 $3,993 $152,366 $0 $ 270,676 100.00%
Total Percents 36.05% 1.54% 293% 1.71% 1.48% 56.29% 0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands,

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



09s'eL'gL

p5e9C

08d8V0ELE

860'E¥'9L

2921

we Jz:p}

£102/80/80

Ly LZ0Z/BLIL0 0P LLL'9L 9L0ZBLIL0 Q0L 000'0Z2'gL o08an g UEO] BWOH [elopa
169°18¢'t 95€92 LdWODIEELE 960'STZ'Y £l 292"} LZ0Z/BLILD SLL'082'Y 910Z/02/.0  Opp'L 000'682'% 208N 1pai) wied jejepad
6L2°210'S ovTIT TAZOOSELE 8/8'GL0'S oerL 148 6L0Z/92/LL  P9E'/P0'S 5L02/82/80  0SZ'L 000286'7 208N Bi |euoneN [esapady
S9E'E86'S 88192 VIAOOSELE 680°Z66'G ostL [3:14 8L02/22/LL  102'600'9 viozezizr  Szo'L 000'0.6's 2084an By |evoneN |esopad
o 15002 LSO0LSAS 0 0000 L s} €L0Z/L0/20 0000 0 asn sueg sn
6L0'€SL 61002 6L00/SAS 6L0'€SE 2000 L 610'e51L €L0Z/L0/1L0 2000 6L0'eSL so8an opled Jo ueg uorun
ZLL'661'62 2000/ 0000LSAS Z)1'66L'62 £26'0 L ZLL'66L'6T €L02/L0/L0 €260 Zhi'esl'sT Elal wiseAu| Aoueby (ea07

antesay BufjesadQ |essuan

zro'esz’ic § vee'soL'iz  $ 9z} 509 vie'ssz'iz  § vLT} ves'ovz'lc  $ sbeiaAy pue [ejo) pung
000°260°G 15€9Z B6ELEDOELE 8S6'€L6'Y 0SE'L 260°'L 0z0z/82/L0  000'/60°G 910z/8Z/20  0SE'} 000°/60'S 204n Biy leuonen (elepad
000'860'S 0€£9z SBrOOSELE  §58'v20'S ose'L 818 6L0Z/82/0L  000'860°S 9L0z/82/v0  0SE'L 000'860'G 208N By feuonen [esspay
856'7/6'S 18492 YLAODSELE 659'9L6'C 69€'} €8y 8L0Z/22/LL  0£9'000'y viozigLzL  Sz9'l 000'296°€ 208N By jeuoneN [esepad
000'0LS'Y £2292 TISSYOELE B89L'VOS'Y 000'4 892 8L0Z/L2W0  000°0LS'Y S10Z//2v0  000'L 000015 208n eg Ue0T SWoH fesepad
0 85002 8500/SAS 0 0000 L 0 €10Z/L0/1L0 0000 0 asn jueg SN
6Ly'vE £200L €200/SAS BLb'PE $00°0 L BLY'PE £L0Z/L0/20  S00°0 6LP'vE 208N oD 40 ueg uolun
S9Z'SYS'T 2200L TZOOLSAS S9T'SHS'T €26°0 L S9T'SYS'T €L02/L0/1L0 €260 S9Z'SYS'T 4Iv1 wisaau) AousBy (2007
Juno2ay Buiduejeg ydos

viL'ee $ vil'se $ ¥26°0 1 vii'ee $ 260 vLL'6E $ abesany pue |ejo) pung
viL'6e SP00L SVO0.SAS tLL'sE €260 L rii'ee €L0Z/L0/I0 €260 #LL'6E wiseAu| Aoueby (e00
100V uolony 9HO ddiN

L9v'0ev'ss  $ LszTve'sL $ z£L0 sie 6cr'08b'sL  $ 0240 £sv'Lie'sl § abelany pue jejo) pun
000'202 €092 ZEAVOVELE 900202 00Z'C 6E9'L T20Z/9TIL0 000°20Z LLOZIOEILO 00T 000202 204dn WA UBOT SWOH |elopay
000'00S'S S8€9Z YHAVOVELE SP8'SEY'S 005'L £8b'L 1202/€2/80  000'00S'S 9L0Z/eziLL  00S'L 000'005'e o0dan 1A UEOT SWOH [eseped
100'284'L §5€92 08d8VOELE 8/2'€59'L LivL 192'} L20Z/6LL0 B0L18LL 9L0Z/6L/L0  0OF'L 000'68L'L 208n eg Ueo" SWOH [eJepe4
£5¥'226'6 LE29T LOav3aLELE  [65'8€6'6 osv'L 299 6L0Z/0€/50  006'€86'6 5L0Z/60/90  0SL'L 000'0£8'6 o04an W UeoT] sWoH |eleped
0€5'529'e 08292 ord43€ele  Zvo'vzo'e 00E'4 Sy 8L0ZMBLILL  8P6'vZo'e sloz/Le/ies 06Tk 000'929'c 208an Wpau) uued [esopeS
0000 Y0£0E POEOESAS 000°0L 0500 29 L10T/20/0L  000‘0b LL0Z/20110 0S0°0 000°0k asn ueg Sn
29v'0€8'vZ 05002 0S00/SAS Z9r'0€8'v2 1000 3 297'0e8'vT €L0Z/0E/90 1000 zov'oes've asn ueg SN
90L'SLL 100 ¥LO0LSAS 90L'GLL 2000 L 90L'SLL €102/L0/L0  Z00'0 90L'GLL oo8n oji[ed 4o juegq uotun
S16'2ep'0C 00002 0000/SAS §L6'CEV'0T €260 L Si6'2er'0T €LOZILOILO €260 S16'2er'02 Elial wisanuj Aousby (2007
000°000°'s LOL0L LOLOZSAS 000°000'G 0010 L 000'000°G vLOZ/9Z/LL  00L'0 000'000'G asn W'N ueg sn
enjep buikien # Juswijsaaul dISND  onjep 1oxey PIRIA Auney ajeq asud ajeq ey anjep pajels ueipolIsny / sa3snu ] Janss|

Ainbz 0} sheq Auney paseyaing aseyoung }sasapy

.puog

Bunesadp
L1L0Z/LE1L0

| obed

Moday s Jainseal)

KouaBy Joamod eluiogijen uIayuoN

AINEY BINDSE VINBOST VI NUIFIHAN

VdON



S69'€E0°6LL $

"156'66L'8LL  $

we fgi} 1102/80/80

Apapenb ajqejjed JWTHA £E¥9ZH uaWIsAAU|
Alsa1senb uayy ‘gT/9z/T 319e1IED DNTHL £0L9ZH JuaWISaAY]
Aisarenb uayy ‘gT/9z/T B1qelied DINTHL ZOY9TH JusUNSSAU]
Ajiapsenb ajqejied JWTHS SBE9TH WaUNISAAY|
Apapenb siqejied  YINNG 89£92# Juswisaau]
Apsuenb ajqelie)  WIANNG LSE9Z# JuswIISAAU|

awnAue ajqe|e)
awnAue 3jqe|jjedr
awzAue aqeje)
aswnAue ajqejjed

8244 9SE9Ti JusuUnsAAU|
81Hd SSEIZ# JuBWISAAU|
GTH PSEITH JusLISaAU|
€344 SEEITH# JudwISAAY|

Apsnenb ajqejled  YIAND ZEE9Z# JuswsaAUL
Apapenb agejie)  VIAINA 0EE9ZH JuaUISIAU}

LLOZ/LE/LO 4O SE JeWINOr 331G |leM 9Y) Wosj saoud piq JO SJUSWBIEIS URIPOISNY [39)sMu| Woly SaoLd Uo paseq S| an|eA Jexe Jusung

"POYIaW JOBXS UR 3SN SI3YJ0 || ‘polfjeLu sjeluixosdde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SYJUOW g UBY) SS3| UM SJUBLLISIAU}
*sadAy e usamiaq uosuedwos Joj siseq e apiroid 0} Jeak Aep §9¢ e Uo paseq umoys si Ajunjely 03 pJ3IA JusjeAinbg puog,

$90°L £95 sivziL'eLl § 0oL’k Ziv'zee'sil § :$TVLOL ANVED
Z'pie'zs ¢ 89970818  $ 8zE'L 6LL 1s5°298'28  $ 16€°L LeL'siz'ze abesaAy pue [e30] pung
000'80F'€ £EYOT SPNEOYELE 0LL'SOV'E 05LT 699'L Z202/52/20  000°'80r'S 2102/52/50  0SL'T 000°80Y'S 208N 1A UE0T SWOH fesspay
000'29% 20092 TEAYOPELE LO'L9Y 00z2 689'} 2Z0T/92/L0 000°L9Y 2L0Z/08/L0 00T 000°29% 208N N UE0T SWoH |esepad
000'629'04 GEEOT GHAOILELE 000'085'0L 069'} Loy’ L202/20/90  000'629°0L 9L02/20/90  069'L 000'629'0L 208N Ipel) uied jeiepay
000'00€"L 89€9Z SMEEDYELE 98'L9Z'L 0054 96¢'} L202/82/50  000'00E‘L 9.0z/0E/80 005t 000'00€"L 208n By [euonen feseped
000'Z9L°s Ze£92 SINEDOELE  82E'650'S 5zZ9'L £6€'L 1202/52/S0  000'29L'S 9102/52/50 529’ 000°29L'S 208N By |euonieN jesepa4
anjep Bulfiren # JUBIIS3AUL dISND  anjep jaxel PI2IA Aumep ajeq 20Ud ajeq ajey anjeA pajels ueipojsng / 9jsnit Janssy
Amnbz 03 sheq Rumey paseyaing aseysing 152193}
Lpuog

Z abed

L102/1€/L0

Moday sainseal]

Kauaby 1amod eiulofijed UIayLON

anIpsay BunesadQ jeieusn

AINMIEY B3MD2 VINEOITVD NUIBLEON

VdON



$62'00S'C

L6192

siNav3aZELE

v88'€05'C

wd pgig

4102/20/80

oS’k z6L 610Z/20/0L  6ER'E8F'T SL0Z/L2IZ0 0STL 000'515'C 1asn WA UBOT BWOH {eiopa
rOE'EL6 8229z LOAVILELE bOS'EIB vee'l 199 610Z/0£/S0  988'0Z6 SL0Z/20/90  OSL'E 000°£06 1asn IN UBOT BWOH |eiopad
ze9'0g 6792 9r196.2L6 S78'0E 080'} v8lL 810Z/L0/Z0  828'0¢ 110282120 090°L 000'tE asn Ainseal 'g'n
199V 9Al9saY 291198 1990 039

g6s'sic'oL ¢ icg'sEl'ol  § 8ce’l 126 £65's.€'9L  § 8ee’L €65'se'9L  § abelsay pue |ejo pung
000’116 y0r9T TEAVOVELE 820'LY6 00z 6€9'L 2202/9Z/L0  000°LY6 210Z/08/L0 0022 000'Lv6 208N IN UBOT SWOH [BIpa
000'002°6 69€92 EMEEDYELE 9LZ'09Y'6 005t 96g’L 1Z0Z/82/50  000°00L'6 SL0Z/0E/80  Q0S'L 000°002'6 208N Bin feuoneN feiepa4
0 6500. 6500/SAS 0 0000 1 0 €L0Z/10/20 0000 0 asn ueg sn
vsL'oL yE00L PEO0LSAS PSL'OL 2000 3 vsL'ol €102/L0/20 2000 vSi'oL 204n ojileD Jo yjueg uolun
6EP'VTL'S 1200L 1ZO0LSAS 6£P'bTL'S €260 L 6EV'VTL'S €L02L0/IL0 €260 6EV'V22L'S 41 wiseau} Aousby (2007
BaA19s9Y Buluoissiwwossg oen

000°005°L  $ oLr'ser’t  § osL'L z8b 000°00S‘L  $ ost'L ooo‘00s‘L  $ obeIaAY pue |ejo) puny
000'005'L 20€92 OMIBOVELE OLP'SEY'L oSkt z8y 8L0Z/9z/LL  000'00S'L 910Z/92120 06k} 0000051 o08an N UBOT BWOH [e1opad
0 £9002 £900/SAS 0 0000 1 0 €1L02/10/0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
0 51002 SLOOLSAS 0 Z00°0 ! ] €102/L0/0 2000 0 o08n ojife0 Jo jueg uolufn
] z£00L ZE00LSAS O 95E0 ! ] €L021L0/0  95€0 ] Bl ugseauj Aoueby eoo
aA19S9Yy |e1oads [ewlay)oan)

0SL'LS $ spL'ts  $ 650°L sl YyLLS $ ovo'L 00085 $ obesany pue [ejo pung
052'25 £ProT SPNGBLZLE SYL'LS 6501 vl LL0Z182CL  phLiIS 1102/82//0  6E0°L 000'85 1asn Ainsess| ‘g’
AIAIBS 1480 V91.0Z 09D

eov'zzL  § EIT T 00L'L vl T 080°L 000'92L  $ ebelsAy pue |ejo] pung
60V 221 fAgqerA VEOMSBEELE /88121 0oLt sl 8L0Z/20/L0  €68'LTL LLOZIZIO 080 000821 Ldasn B4 Ue0" BWOH |esepay
9JIAIRG 1097 VYZ10Z 09D

168'8€2 $ 058°8€Z $ ool'L ¥Si 298°8e2 $ 080'L 000°0bZ $ abeJaAy pue [ejo] puny
168'86C Loy VEDMSEEEIE 058'8ET 00L'L sl 810Z/Z0/L0  798'8€T LL02/82/10  080'L 0000V 14asn e UE0T BWOH |esepad
anjep butfue) # JuewiseAu| dISND  anfep jexel Rumew a1eq aaud ejeq a1y anjep pajels ueipojsny / adysni] Janssj

0} sheg funepw paseyaing aseyaing P T
991A19 193 |euLayjo9an)
LL0Z/1E1L0

| ofeyq

uoday sJainseasj
Kauaby 1omod eiuiogijen ussyuon

s

AINIEY HIMDE ¥ NS0TV NBIHIEON

VdON



£10'682'¢c  $

‘'op6'lL0'eT  $

[ : 1 3

vaeg

wd pg:z L1102/20/80

Apayienb uaia ‘8T/92/1 319€(12D JINTHA YOVIZH UBLAISIAU
Auanienb ajqej|e)  WIANNG 69€9zi uaWISaAL]
Auapienb ajqef|e)  WIAIND EEE9Z# JuSWISaAU
Apanienb ajqejied JNTHA ZOE9Z#H JuBWISIAU|

LLOZ/LEIL0 3O SE [ewinof Jaang |fem oY wouy saoud piq 1o SjuaLalels UeIPoiSny ja93sns ) woiy saoud uo paseq st anjep J9XJB JusLIng

"POYJaW JOBX3 U 2SN SISLJO e ‘poyjaw ajewixoidde te asn Ajunjew o} syjuowl g UBY} SSI| Y}IM SJUBLIISIAUL
'sadA} je usamyaq uosuedwod Joj siseq e apiaosd o} Jeak Aep gog & uo paseq umoys si AjunJely o3 piaLA Jusjeainb] puog,

1zo‘o8z'ez ¢ ope’L £65'662'€C  $ :STIVLIOL ANVYD
6L8'vps'L  § voL'viS'E  $ S19'L bIEL 9.8'vps'L vig'L 000°spS‘L  § abeJeAy pue jejo punyg
000°215'L ££€9T SINEDSELE  LZ8'98Y'L STl £6¢°} LZ02/STIS0  000°ZLS') 9L02/SZ/IS0  SZTY'L 000'215°L 1asn Bl feuonEN (R19pa4
61812 05v92 SPN9BLZLE 21912 6501 6vL L10Z/82RL 92812 L102/82/20  OvO'L 000'8Z asn Ainsesil 's'n
N0y YSA VZLOZ 08D
Ler'vb'e  § sLo'shr's ¢ 08yl £SL ess'sev's ¢ L8e'l ogo'ssv'e  § ebesany pue [ejo) pung
anjep Builues # JuaunsaAuj dISND  anjepjenel PIRIA Aungen aeq e ajeq ajey an[ep pajels ueiposny j aajsniy Janss|
Anbg o3 sfeq Kunyep poseyaing aseyoing jsasau|
puog

Z abed

L102/Leil0

Moday s ainsesas)

Aousby Jomod eluojien uiayuoN

100V 9A13S9Y 92IAISS 1980 OID

AINIDY HZA0S VAEDITYY NYIHIEON

VdON



¥900L

¥900LSAS

wd ge:z 1102/20/80

0 0 0000 L 0 €102/L0/20 0000 0 asn Aueg sn
0 91002 9L00.SAS 0 2000 3 s} €L02/10/1/0 2000 a o08n oyed jo ueg uolufy
0 €800 €E00LSAS 0 95€°0 L 0 €L0Z/L0/1/0 9580 0 Ellal wsau AusBy o0
0 €000 0000.SAS O 1280 L i} €L0ZIL0IL0 2280 0 Ellal wysenu| Aousby 200y
9A19SaY |e1dadg oupAH

vZ'1L69 $ 68.'689 $ 06L°L 6971 16£°169 $ G/81L 000689 $ ebelaAy pue [ejo] pung
152169 2eroT EVEBOVELE 582689 062} [T LZ02/60/180  L6E'L69 240Z/8210 S84 000689 asn WA UBOT BWioH [eiepal
JUNO22Y 3jeqaYy VYZ1L0Z 01pAH

859°L89's  § vac'ore’'s  § €91 680L 88.'889's  § 9i8’L 000'c99's  $ abesany pue |ejo) pung
060'6€5'S £¥292 62533€EIE  L1816V'S 089’} 660°L 0Z0Z/P0IR0  181'9¥S"S §L02/82/80  0SLL 000'82S°'S asn 1pa1) wie4 jesapag
8952t LS5¥9Z 9OENXEELE  LPG'ThL oov'L 669 6L0T/L0/L0  L09'ZhL 210Z/82110  SlEV 000°GEL asn eg Ueo eWoH lesope4
V0L0Z Aisay ad1A198 JqaQ 04pAH

891086 $ 659'6.6'C § ooL’4 v5L 808'6.6'C $ 080'L 000'v66T  § abelaAy pue ejo| purn
891'086'C y¥y9C VEOMGREELE 659'6/6°C 0oLt vk 8L0Z/O/L0  808'626'C L102/8T//0  080'L 000'v66'Z iasn eg Ueo" swWoH [esepag
891A19g 1qaQ o4pAH

ZZi'oLe's  $ 119896 § oLzt 1% spr'e86's  $ S6E'L 000°996'c  § ebesoAy pue jejo) pung
00L'evb'T 00€92 LOAJ3EELE ¥SB'EEP'T 090'L 6€S 6L02/22/L0  1L0S'0SY'T 910212020 0ST'L 000'2£¥'T asn Upai) une jelapay
ceTr'zes't 68192 YLAODSELE 2S9'PES'L ost'L £8Y 8102/ZILL  ¥bT'eES'L yLOZIZLIZL STl 000'625°L asn By |euonen fesepe s
sanioe4 jeniul oipAy

0LL'900'0L § 10z'2e6'sL  § 8LL'L sLb 02'900'9L  $ gLl ors's00'sL sbesaAy pue [ejo) pung
000°02€'S (0] 43CT4 SHAEDOELE PPE'ELZ'S 0s€'t 188 6L0Z/0E/CL  000'0ZE'S 9L0Z/0€/90  0SE'L 000'0Z8's o08an BiiA |eUONEN |esopa
000°122'€ ¥0E9Z OMIBDVELE PrLLLT'E osL'L z8r 8L0Z/9Z/LL  000'42C'S 9L02/62120  0SL') 000°122'e 008N WA UBOT BWOH [e1epagy
000°€66'€ 6£€£9C 08V6OVELE EVE'6.6'E 0560 zee 8L0Z/6Z/90  000'€66'€ 9L0Z/62/90 0560 000'€66'€ 208n WA U0 SWoH [2sopa
0 25002 ZS00LSAS O 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0  000°0 0 asn jueg sn
6 1£00.L LE00LSAS 6 2000 3 6 €L0Z/10/0 2000 6 008N oJl[ed 4o yueg uoiun
rar'ziv'e 8200L 8Z00LSAS 19L'2i¥'e €260 L 192°ZLv'e €10Z/10/20 €260 L9L'Tiv'E Elal wisanu} Aousby eoo
anjep buifuey # Justuysaau| dISND  eniep 3axyep PIBIA Runjen ejeq adud ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsng / avjsnit Jonss]

Anbg orsheqg  Aumen poseyoing aseyaing 1sasau|
puog
0JpAH ansesay "Aaq [eyde)n
L1L0Z/1E1L0

| obedq

uodoy sJainsealj
Kauaby Jamod erulojien usayjon

AINIEY HIMO VB0V NUIHIHDN

VdON

Parreiyis



wd ge:z L10Z/20/80

Apsnienb ajqejled YNNG 6SEIZ# JuBUIS3AU|
Auayienb ajqejied  WINNG OFEITH IUBWISIAU|
Alaenb ajqejed JWTHE 6EE9ZH IUBWISIAU]
Aayrenb ajqe|ied JINTHS €0E9Z# JusUnRSaAY]

LLOZ/LE/L0 JO SB [euINOf J235S |[BM 243 Wwol) saoud piq 10 SJUsWaleIs Uelpojsny /e8)sni ) woly seoud uo paseq st anjep JXuel Jus.LNg

‘poyjaw Joexs ue 3sn SISYlo jje ‘poyjaws sjewixosdde ue asn AJunjew o) SLUOW § UBYY SSI LYIIM SJUSW)SIAU|
‘sadA} jje uaamjaq uosuedwiod 10} siseq & apiroid o) Jeak Aep Gg¢ e Uo paseq umoys si Ajunjey 0} pistA Jusjeainb3 puog,

vsgzgo'se ¢ ‘wo'sLo’'ss  $ SlEL voL zes'zio'se $ 6Lyl 0L2'9805¢  $ ISTIVLOL ONVHED
688°9LZ'Y $ LLo‘zoc'y $ -1 84 L.51 0g0'9LZ'y $ clee 000°8LZ'Y $ abelany pue [ejo], pung
80T'/zZ6'S 2586¢C 2aavia/ele 65¥'9L0'y 08e’g 9z9'L zz0zIeLILO 2£2°'926'e 2102/60/20 GlET 000826 asn A UeOT BWOH [elapad
0006 65892 /6SED9ELE O¥Z'L6 0es'L 5%t Lcoe/setia 000'v6 9102/8¢2/.0 0es'L 000'v6 asn By [euonen [esepey
10z'o0L 12 ATA 6Z53JSELE ¥SU'66 089°L 660'L 0202/70/180 62€'00L $102/8¢2/80 Qss'L 000001 asn Hpa1) ulieH [esepsy
08r's6 2592 9r19642L6 8SP'S6 080°L 781 8102/1L0/20 69Y'G6 2102/8¢2/.0 090} 000°96 asn Ainsessj §n
vHSa Z10Z 04phAH
000'005'L $ oiv'ser’ts ¢ [¢]:150% 8y 000005t $ QsLL 000°005'L $ abielany pue jejo) pung
000'00S't £0€92 OMIBOPELE OLP'SEP'L ast'L 28k 8102/92/1L 000'005°L 9102/92/20 0SL'L 000'005'L 209N 1\l UBOT BWOH |elepad
onjep Buihuen # JusulsaAul dISND  anjeA jaxely PISIA Rumey ayeq aoug ajeg ayey anjep pajels uetpojsn f @asnit lanssy
Ainbg 0} sheq Kunep paseyoingd aseyaing 1saa9u|
puog

¢ abey

L10Z/1€/L0

uodoay sJainsead|

Aouaby 1omod elulojijen ulayuoN

anlosay [e1adg oIpAH

AINIEY UIAN04 ¥ RETITVE NHIHINON

VdON



wd ge:z 2402/20/80

Auanienb ajqejje)  YIANNA 8SE9ZH# WBWISAAU|
2102Z/1£/20 }0 se [ewinor 121§ [[eMm 8y} wouy s3oud pig Jo SJUSWSle)S UeIpoISnY /a3jsnu ) woyy saoud uo paseq si anfep Jasuely Jualing

‘poyjaw Joexa Ue asn sieyjo |je ‘poyjawr ajewxoidde ue asn A3unjew o) SYJUOW g UBYY SSI| UM SJUBLIISOALY
‘sadf} e usamjaq uosuedwod 1oy siseq e opiaoid o} Jeak Aep ga¢ B U paseq UMoOYS SI AJunjely o} plaiA JusjeAnbg puog,

le8's26's ¢ ‘L§2'866's  $ sZL'y Siy L6€‘iZ6's  $ seLlb 000'826's  $ 'STVLOL ANVED
L1€8'05S'L  $ 1526281 $ vize S8S1 §12'ess'L 90€C 000'6¥s't  § abesany pue |ejo) pung
886'VhY'L S¥8SC 29avaLELE 96¥'GLYL ovee 9z9'L 2eozieLo Qe ibt'L Z{02/ELIZo GlET 00Q'€ri'L asn JN U0 SuWoH {eJepsd
000'LL 8GE9C L6SEDYELE $16'89 0es’L 16¥°L 1202/8¢!1L0 00012 9102/82/.0 0es’L 000°V2 asn B [euonieN Jesspad
6v8'vE £Sv9C SINS6.ZLE  9P8'vE 650°L (5142 210¢/8¢/ch Sh8've 210218210 ovo'L 000'GE asn Anseal| 's'n
2AI19S8Y 9AS jqeQg -ded 'de)
000'6LeY  $ 000'6LEv $ 8120 1] oLL'gIE'y $ 1020 000'62E'y § abeleAy pue jejo} pung
000'69% SeraC VYEMIE8SELE  000'69Y Z.80 0 £102/10/80 L7980 £102/0€/90 6580 000'69¥% 1asn By feuoneN [eispey
000'0.1 8L¥9C YEMIG8SELE  000'0LF 2620 o] £102/10/80 1TL'89% £102/62Z/€0 0820 000°'0L¥ 18sn By |euonen [eiepay
000047 90¥9C ZMIBEELE  000'021 0290 0 £102/10/80 v1.'89 2102/8Zi20 6090 000'0.¥ 1asn N ueoT 8WoH [eJspad
000'€60'L S0r9T ZMI6EELE  000'e60'L 0€90 o} 2102/10/80 Z1L9'680'L 2402r20/Z0 0290 000°€60°L asn N UBOT] BWOH [elapad
000'6€6 16€92 ZMI/BEELE  000'6E6 S090 0 2102/1L0/180 €lL'oes PARIA YA G650 000'6€6 19sn N UeoT] SWoH [elapay
000'69¢ PEPIT V.IMIS8EELE  000'691 €160 4] 2102/10/80 £.2'89% 2102/ E/SO 0060 000'69% 14asn eg ueoT euwoH |eispad
000'69F 92raC VIMISBEELE  000'69Y €280 4] 210Z/10/80 9/6°/9% 2102192170 0L8°0 00069 14sn eg UeoT] sWoH |esopady
enjep Buikiien # JUsUiSaAU] diSND eniep javen PIBIA Runew ejeq 20Ud sjeq ajey anjep pajels [ESRYESTTE Janss|
Amnb3z 03 sheq Rumen paseyaing aseyosng jsaseyy
~puog
921AI9g 198 saiijioe] ded
L102/LEIL0

| obed

Hoday s Jainseal)

Aouaby Jamod eluiojijen uisyloN

AINICY H2MIS VNSOV NBIHIEON

VdON



000'09€'y

LEE9T

2Z993¢eele

LET0ZEY

659'L

€6E°L

000°09€

wd g¢:z £102/20/80

1202/5TIS0 9102/80/90  099'L 000°09Ey asn WpauD wire [esopa4
SPOOLLY [elo{2=r4 €ZWODSELE EE£'69L Y 1260 1z 210Z/82/180  096'LLL'Y pLOZ/OE/S0  S.8°0 000°0LL'y asn By [euonEN [Bsopad
968z S0062 S006/SAS 96£C 0010 L 96€°C €L0Z/10/20  00L'0 96E°Z asn IsniL jueg gn
pun4g ¥Sa 0L0z L# enss| 937

1zg'00L  $ zsL'ooL $ 60°L zzl erv'ooL  $ 650°L ope'cor  § sbelaAy pue [ejo pung
LeL'8ve arv9z OAdSSEELE  60.'SKE 880°'L zzL LL0Z/LO/ZL  689'8YE 2102/82/120  020°L 000'05€ 1asn eg UBOT SWOH [BJepad
P2 1GE 6EV9T OAdSSEELE  £69'LSE 690'L zeL LL0Z/L0/CY  plplsE LL0ZIOE/90  0SO'L 000'€5E 1asn eg UBOT] BWOH [e1epady
9ve ZL06. ZL06/SAS 9vE 00L0 L 9be €L0Z/L0/L0  00L'0 ove asn JsnuL yueg sn
pun4g sa 90102 ¢# snss} 937

vri‘'ese § 850828  §$ 6L0°L zzL 089°228  § 090'L 60g'le8 ¢ abeJaAy pue [ejo) pund
80v°28Y L¥¥9T 9AdS8EELE  08E'LEY 980°L zel 21021021 95E'lSy 1L02/82/.0  0LO'L 000'6EY 1asn eg Ueo] sWoH [eJepad
12r'ork 8EYOT 9AdSBEELE  BYEOVY 690'L zzL 200Z/L0ZL  SLO'OPY 110Z/0E/90  0S0'L 000°Zkt 1asn eg UBOT] SWOH [BJepad
60€ 11062 LL0B/SAS 60E 0010 3 60€ €L0Z/L0/20 0010 60€ asn Isnip ues SN
pund sa voL0zZ Z# onss| 031

sze'ssr't  $ z8L'ssP'L  § 6L0°L 44} ssi'ssp’L $ 090'L sLL'lor's  § abeloAy pue |ejo) puny
lse'9zL ooz 9AdSBEELE OLE'9TL 880°L T LL02N0CL  0LT'92L 2102/82/1L0  0L0°L 000'6Z2 Lasn eg Ueo] SWOH [esepad
$6E'62L 26792 9AdSBEELE  662'6CL 690°L zzL 10T ZLL'8EL L10Z/0S/I30  0S0'L 000'z82 1asn eg U0 SWOH [eIspad
£/l ¥006. Y006.SAS €L 0010 L €Ll €L02/10/20 0010 £/l asn isnip ueg sn
pund sa g010¢ L# anss| 937

osc'zes't  § £12°268r  § 6L0°L zzL zI9'168'L  $ 090°L 89c'26E°L  § abeiaAy pue ejo) pung
9/b'c69 Shr9T OAdSSEELE  ZEV'EB9 880 zel 110Z/L0/ZL  £6€'S69 1102/82110  0L0°L 000'969 18sn eg UeoT SWoH jesspad
905869 9ErIT OAdSBEELE  €11'869 690°L zzl 210210/ 158'269 L10Z/0€/90  0SO'L 000'L02 Lasn e UBOT SWOH [eI8pa ]
gog €006/ €006/SAS 89¢ 0010 L 89€ €10Z/10//0  00L0 89€ asn IsnuL vueg sn
pund s voLOzZ L#snss| 937

£p8LL $ £Ve'LL $ v26'0 3 £V8'LL $ ¥26'0 £re'LL $ oBeJaAy pue [Bjo] pung
£va'Ls 9r00L OV00LSAS €V8'LL £26'0 ! £ra'LL €L0Z/LO/IL0 €260 £l wysenuj Aouaby eoo]
anjep Buifue) # JusW}saAU] diSND  anjeA Jaxep PIAIA Rumep ajeq adug ajeq orey anjep pajels uelpojsnY J aajsnu) Jonss)

Anbg o3 sheq funyey paseyond aseyaind Jsasaug
+puog
303y uoINy HHO 031
LLOZ/LEILO

) abegq

poday sJainseas)

KouaBy Jamod elul0j1eD UISYLION

AINBEY HIMDL VMBS YD NEIHIHIN

VdDON



10%°'959°2L2

wd gg:z L102/20/80

swnAue ajqe|led  g4d LEE9ZH JUBUNSAAU]

LLOZ/LEILO0 4O SB |LINOf J33.3S |[EM 3t} wouy s3aud pIq Jo SJUBLSIEIG Uelpojsny jaa)sni] Wolj saoud Uo paseq S1 an|ep Jasuel Jusung

*POYBW JoeX3 UB 3ash S1aLio jle ‘poyjow ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o} SYHUOLL g UBYY SSI| YJIM SIUBLUISAUL

'sadA} |je usamyaq uosiiedwod 4o} siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep G9¢ e Uo paseq umoys st AjLnjeyy o} plaIA JusfeAinb3 puog,

$ zieovsLe § oog’} 9.9 865°'269°2 § ele’l zreosp'iz § 1STVLOL ANVHD

90Z'26L°LL  § 6£9'c90°LL 1084 SiL z9z'sLl'lL A 89L'60L°LL  § abeiany pue |ejo] puny
000°000'c Lre9T ZrNES9ELE 0SL'2€6'C 00€'} #90°L 0Z0Z/0E/90  0006°'000°S 910Z/0€/90  O0E'L 000'000'c 208n By |leuoneN [erapay
786'€1L9'e vz ooravoeie veL'0L9'e 0SSt 6€0°1 0Z02/50/90  ZS6'EL9'E L10ZI0L/90  O¥S'L 000'519'e asn eg Ueo] sWoH [elepey
960'296' 8v292 YYZOOSELE  L8S'VS6'T 0zz'L 295 6102/64L120  TWL'966'Z SL0Z/82/80  S/8'L 000'€£6'Z o04an By [euonen [esepey
=48 L7002 LPOOLSAS Stl 2000 L Svt €L0Z/BLIL0 2000 Shi 204N ol[eD Jo yueg uoun
€20°195°L 1y00L LP00ISAS €20°19S'L £26'0 I £20°'195'L €LOZILO/L0 €760 €20'195°L unsaau} Aouaby |eo0
OAIOSY N ® O 031

6£0's80°'L § 6.8'v80°L  $ 16¢°L 169 682's80°L seey 185'220't  § abeiaay pue |ejo pung
851'280'L [T 9OENXEELE 862'280°L oov'L 669 6L0Z/L0/L0  904'280°L 210282110 S8 000'620'L asn Bg UEOT SWOH (esspag
185 €1062 €L0BLSAS 1852 ooL'e L 185 €L0Z/L0/20 0010 1852 asn Isnil yueg sn
Savg ¥Sa ga0loe Z# enss| 931

v86's52'Z  § 888'vsZ'T  $ 625°L svaL vog'osz'z  § V1% ssi'avL'z  $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pung
928'vSCT S5¥92 9EJ0LEELE 0€L'€5Z'T ors'L ova'L 0Z0Z/ZLI90  9vl'ssz'e LL0Z/8T1L0  GIE€ 000'SPL'Z asn eg UB0] SWoH felapad
851L'L 90062 S006/SAS 85L'L 0010 L 8sL'L €L0Z/L0/L0  00L'0 85L°L asn Isnuy yueg sn
ASSY sang sgvd 90102 L#Sst 031

$60'629'8 ¢ 86z'gs9's  § cee’l 8€L voo'Leg’s  $ €Ll 96£'289'8  § abesany pue [ejo] pung
$59'9rL ¥S¥9Z 603vaLELE ZBZ'OYL 669') Zir'L 1202/2L/80  8¥9'ori 2102/82/20  SsZL'L 000054 asn WA UBOT] BWOH (esepady
enjep Buikuegy # Juawwsaauy dISND  enjep 1auely PIBIA Runjep ajeq eold ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpolsny / adgsniy Jonssj

Amnb3g 03 sheq Aumey paseyaind aseyaing ysasau|
spuog
pung ¥sa 0102 L# anss| 9371
2102/L €120

Z 9bed

Kousby Jamod elusojijen ussyon

Hoday sJoinseal]

ADINIDY $232002 VINEDIVD NBIRLEON

VdON



7oA pusiiC ACENDY

NC

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 24, 2017

SUBJECT:

Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — June 30, 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

12

FROM:

Division;

Department:

Monty Hanks M

Assistant General
Manager/CFO e

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Alameda Municipal Power

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X City of Lodi
O City of Lompoc
Bay Area Rapid Transit []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville
(]

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

O
O
City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
O
O
O

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o O

SR: 186:17



Debt and Interest Rate Report — June 30, 2017
August 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Commission accept the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for
the period ending June 30, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

In accordance with the Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, Section 20, Monitoring and
Reporting Requirements, approved by the Commission in May 2017, the Finance team will
provide a written report regarding the status of all fixed and variable rate debt and the Agency’s
interest rate swaps on a semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission.

The report, for the period ending June 30, 2017, is attached for your information and acceptance.
Listed below is a summary of the report.

Fixed Rate Debt — No new fixed rate debt was issued. However, staff continues to receive
refunding opportunities for the Hydro Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding
Series C and this was discussed at length by the Finance Committee. NCPA staff was given
direction by the committee to start putting together ‘the team’ for refunding these bonds. At
today’s rates, the bonds have a projected net present value (NPV) savings around 10% or over $1
million per year in debt service savings, assuming the surety reserve can be replaced. The next
steps are completing the financial advisory services contract and then issue an RFP for
Underwriting (UW) services. The bonds are not callable until July 2018 but NCPA staff
anticipates working on the refunding in late 2017 with an expected close after April 2018. Other
highlights are included in the attached report.

Variable Rate Debt — The Agency has a total of $86.7 million of outstanding variable rate debt
($85.16 million for Hydro 2008 Series A and $1.54 million Hydro 2008 Series B). The Agency’s
variable rate debt is structured with a Letter of Credit with the Bank of Montreal. The reset rates
continue to trade at or better than the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
(SIFMA) for the Series A bonds (tax-exempt) and 1-month London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) for Series B bonds (taxable) despite Moody's downgrade of the bank on May 10". The
reset rates and index comparisons are included in the attached report.

Interest Rate Swaps — As of June 30, 2017, NCPA had $86.7 million of outstanding swaps, all
related to the Hydroelectric Project bonds, which act as a hedge against the variable rate debt.
The total fair value of the interest rate swaps was a net liability of $15.2 million (negative). This
amount has improved from the June 30, 2016 net liability of $22.3 million (negative) due to a rise
in interest rates and time value. No new swaps or defaults have occurred in the last six months.
The interest rate swaps make up approximately 25% of the outstanding Hydroelectric Project debt
portfolio. The Finance Committee was also briefed on the recent news about the future
termination of LIBOR. The U.K. Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) recently announced its
intention to phase-out LIBOR by the end of 2021 but there will be ongoing support for LIBOR
through this deadline to allow for an orderly transition to alternative reference rates. The
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) has yet to make a formal announcement
regarding any alternative reference rates. However, there is some speculation an alternative rate
to LIBOR could be based on the U.S. Treasury repurchase (“repo”) market, called the “Broad
Treasuries Repo Financing Rate” which would be based on the borrowing of short-term cash
(overnight) with U.S. Treasury bonds serving as collateral, and would be published by the U.S.
Federal Reserve. However, any speculation regarding alternative reference rates are merely

SR: 186:17



Debt and Interest Rate Report — June 30, 2017
August 16, 2017
Page 3

preliminary and it remains unclear whether current swap and loan contracts that utilize LIBOR as
the reference rate will be amended or allowed to mature. Both NCPA swaps use the LIBOR
reference rate as part of the net payment calculation. At this time, the only known fact is that
nothing is definitive. NCPA staff will continue to monitor this and report any updates as they
become available. Additional details of the swap agreements are provided in the attached report.

Counterparties — The counterparty for both interest rate swaps is Citibank, N.A. The credit ratings
for Citibank, N.A., are A+/A1/A+ by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respective. There have been no
changes since the last report. NCPA'’s swap payments and the 1992 Hydro bonds are insured by
National Public Finance Guarantee, formerly MBIA. On June 26, 2017, S&P Global Ratings
lowered its financial strength rating on National Public Finance Guarantee Corp. (National) to 'A’
from 'AA-' and its long-term counterparty credit rating on MBIA Inc. to 'BBB' from 'A-'. For the
swaps, minimum credit ratings and thresholds are found in the ISDA and Credit Support Annex
documents. Under the ISDA agreement, an Additional Termination Event (ATE) occurs if the
Insurer (National) doesn’t have a rating of at least A3/A- and NCPA's debt ratings fall below Baa3
or BBB-. Since NCPA's underlying credit rating is A1/A+, no collateral posting is required.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total projected savings over the life of the interest rate swaps was $13.9 million at the
inception of these agreements. Total projected savings through June 30, 2017 was $5.3
million with actual results at $9.1 million. The difference between expected savings and
actual savings is due to "basis risk”, or the difference between what NCPA pays on the
variable rate bonds and the index rate used in the swap transaction. Total basis risk to date
is positive, resulting in additional savings over those expected of $3.8 million. Staff
continues to monitor the potential for refinancing these bonds and terminating the swaps,
however, with rates still near historical lows, this is causing a large mark-to-market payment
due to Citibank, N.A. of over $15.2 million (net) making a potential refund not a feasible
option at this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The item was reviewed by the Finance Committee on August 9, 2017 and was recommended for
the Commission to accept the informational report.

Respectfully submitted,

-ML[M

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
Debt and Interest Rate Management Report, as of June 30, 2017

SR: 186:17



L1006 ‘0g aunf jJo sy
110doy JusmwaSeuRAl )Ry ISAINUJ pue 1¢a(]

AIN3IIV HIMOJ VINHOL4ITVI NHIHLHON

AINIOV J178Nd V



AGIEIIN BI04 VIRSOINII NYIHLYON

VdDI

\%

61
81
L1
91

qgI

(4!
61

ol

I[T-01

PUSJ ], [eOLIO}ISTH ONJeA 1B, —
yuedonaeJ £q anfep e —
uonenfe) pue Arewwing demg —
oUBULIONMDJ demg —

MIIATIA() sdemg 93.Y I1SaJ93U]

SIJIpU] SNSJI9 A OUBULIOMD] —
SULID [, [eonILI) —

MITAIIA() 1G3(J 2IrY d[qrlIBA

MOITAIDA() IG3(T 938y PaxXI
Jo1ud)) A3I0Ug] IpO] —
sonI[oe ] [eyde) —
309[01 o1130000UpA —
109[01J TewrIoyjo0n) —

109l0ag Aq ma1AIAQ 19T
SIYSTYSTH Loy



AINIOV UIMODJ YINBOIIIYD NUBHALON

'2102 ‘0¢ @unr uo uoljjiw Z'GL$ Jo anjeA sAjjebau e 0} 9L0gZ ‘0 unf uo uoijjiw
€°22$ Jo anjeA annebau e woly pabueys sdems Buipueisino ayj uo anjep Jied ay|

‘pajel Ajybiy surewas Auedisjunod ayy pue palinbai usaq
sey Auedisjunod ayj Aq Buisod |elsje||0o ou ‘awes ay} paulewsal Bunes Apedisyuno)

"pPa1IN220

9AeY ]gap 8jel a|gelieA Jo a)el paxy ‘sjuswaalbe dems aAoge ay) Japun s)nejsp oN
"SpuUOq 211J09|90JpAH 266 @Y} Jo) Jainsul puog ay}

s| (VI9IN Aiiawuoy) [euoneN -V, Wod) ,.g4g9, 03 "ou] VIigN uo Bunel ypalo Auedisjunod
wia)-6uoj sy pue -y, wol} Y, 0} (jeuonen) ‘dioD asjuelens) soueuld 21|qnd |euoneN
uo Bunes yibuasys jeroueuly sy patamo| sbuney [eqoljo 4=9S ‘2102 ‘9Z aunpe up

‘g pue Y sallag spuoq

0ipAH 8002 Y} 1o} Japinoid ypal) Jo JsjaT 8y} se Sjoe Oym Ly 0} ey wolj (INOSg)
[ealjuol\ Jo dueg ay} papelbumop sadInIaS J0)saAu| S APOOIN ‘2L0Z ‘0L AeN uO
"Hodail }se| ay} aouIs palindoo sjuswaaibe

dems Buipue}sino 1o jJgap ajel s|geleA 1o paxiy Aue 0} sabueyo |elsjew oN

"Hodal jsie| ay} aouls pajeuiwa)

JOo psoueuUlal ‘panss| a1am sdems ajel }Salajul JO Jqop d)el djgelieA 1o paxi) ON

SIYSI[YSIH Aoy




10drodd A9 M3IING3IAO 1930




¥eocilil
oL
610C/4L

Rumey jeuiy

210TiiL

sjeq 11ed

%0/9F  000'0ES'Z4$
%68C T 000'G65'2$
%000°G 000'0¥9'L$
Jed
abuzy uodno) Buipuesing

00005 L1$
000016TLS
000°019'GE$

azig anss|

ajey]-pexiy
Sley-pexi
8jeypexiy
adAj uodnon

SHOORNQ 3lqelS “+VWi-ViLY -(4/S/N) sBuney
109Q 109loid jeuLialpoas) Buipue)sinQ jo Alewuwns

dwex3-xe] v seues 9Loz
Jdwexgxe] vy seuss zZiog
dwex3-xe] v ssues 6002
snjejs xel sauag

¥ 83188 9102

V88Us5 ZI0Ce W S31RS G00Cm

aolasag Jaa( Jpalold jeulsyjosn

SYL9G
GOEED
G06E ¥¥
0e88°2
01020
00000
0189
00820}
ovi9¢
09EE0
0220
57889l
(%) a1eys
Aiepysusg

GrLOG yenin
00000 ai
GOBE i BIR|D BjURS
0£89°L B|jiAes0y
Gr180 BLBIS-SRLUN|
09519 oy ojed
0189°¢ Jodwo
008Z 0L ipo]
0v19°€ BingspiesH
0G6€°0 Asipus
01220 sbbig
GZ88°91L epaLue)y
(%) aseyg

JuswiopAu S

MOIITAIIA() 193(T 399l0a g PUIOy1090)

AINIDY YIMOd VINYOIIIVD NHIHABON

VdOl



¥20TiLiL sjous-eYe %0ZE ¥ 000'0C1'2$ 000'0CL"L$ ejey-pexi4 s|gexel g sSeuss ZI0T
Te0TiLiL TeoTiViL %000G 000'699'0.$ 000'G99'0/$ ajey-poxy Jdwexg-xey v seuss zioz
€20C/ViL 6L0Z/V/L %000'G 000'SL9'TLS 000'0SC'10LS ajey-poxi dwexgxei v seues 0L0Z
2oz 8L0Z/LIL %000'S 000'0E) 218 000°G00'STI$ ajey-poxi4 dwexgxe| O seuss go0z
0z0ziViL juaun) w OlqeUBA  D00'0VS' 1S 000'GOL'E$ ojex-a|qeleA sjgexe] g Seuss 800T
2E0TILIL juaiuny (%618°C) 1A 000'001'G8% 000'091'G8% ajey-e|geUeA Jdwexg-xe] v seues 800z
8L0¢/1iL sigeled-uoN %00€ 9 000'G65'€Z$ 000'019'G61$ ajey-poxi4 Jdwexg-xey v seuos 66l

ded

Bupu azIg anss| adAy uedno) smejs xel $8LI88

Aunjey jeuld ajeq ired aBuey uedno)

SHOORNQ 9iqeIS “#/+v/L Y (4/SW) sBupey
192 322loid 21438|901pAH Bulpuelsing Jo Aewwng

O 0 9O O O 90 0 0O .90 9O 0 . O
a« & a« g¥ & @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @V v
Rl A A A A A A A A

WS
069’1 BUOIS-SBUIN

WNOLS ooz yenin

099°GE ele|) BlUES

WNOZS  6opz1 allesoy

02622 oYy ofed

N OES 00eZ UOQEOM

0I£04 1poT]

WNOPS  poo fingspiesH

090'L Aojpug

WA 0S$ 00L'0 s6ifig

g 53195 ZIL0Z W S8UdS 7102w v S3119S 0108 000704 epauepy

0 31195 G002 ™ @ S3LIS GOOZ™ v/ SALIIS B00Z ™ W SOLAS 2661 {%) areyg Jusweppuz JOquSl

sebejuadiag uonjedionied 1oafold ougoa|a0ipAH

32IAI9S 109(] 10200id oUIaR0IPAH

MITAIIAQ) 1G3(T 3199loag ornosreoap

VdDl



%0
000 0¥S LS
S|qeLEA &

%8Vl

-
00°GZ}'15T%
paxi4

: : (wvi+ViLY) g seuss
%0CL  6L0C°60 QUEIES oo oueg  800C

. , (Wi+vily)  vseueg
%8L0  6L0Z°60 QeSS oo ioyueg 800z

jesay Jse] Andx3 007 Jspiroid 201 Sallag

adA] 1q98Q 303loid o1gI9190IpAH JO UMmopyESIg

Arewiwing Appinbi 3oaload ouyo2a|30ipAH

(+vV/Y) “ |
MOAMEN  HLOTVL'LS 000'%25°L$ 175'oves TeNiL  YOTILL  YOMEILL %DI6ZS HO4ar-asn  seuss
VN Nueqo 200Z
(+v+viLY) %S0 '
_HOAMSN - 000'09L'G8S  000°'09L'Ge$  (Ev2'855°B1S) TENIL YOWTILY FOMZAL + O8I %0618°€ seles
VN ueqnp -aSN 10 %S 200C
fyedisjuno) [euopoN jeuopoN (Z10e80408y)  apeq ajeq ajeq SIMSORM o vdON oS
yueg juaund Epul SNBAWLN  Aumew eApdsy3  epell Vd4ON :

Aewnung dems joafoig oLgosR0ipAH

MITAIIA() 31G3(T 3193[01 ] O11303[00IpAT]

AOIN3OY YIMOJ VINYDIIIYD HHAHLEON
CIRIBY TR Y



q.

S20zIL/8 020ZIVIZ iwn%.w%m 000'00V'ZE8  000'0ZL'SSS olyPoxy  JdWeXIXe; v Seues 0LOZ
”~q .

Aunepeud  aeqied  ebueyuodnod gL Lo ezis enss| adf] uodnoy  smejg xer souog

SHOORNQ 3IGYS ‘ YTV -(4/5 M) sBuney

1920 saniveS jede) Buipuelsing jo Arewwng

& S S S o o
5 %% %% & PO %%

N N N o
O A O

—— = iK%
HWINLS
M zs
P ES
W v$
’ 2|iAes0
s mm.mm uoasm
05'6€

Wil 9% il
0061 epawiery
Y 531198 010Z = (%) aseyg Juswappuz Jaquialy

saBejuasiag uonedionied saniioed [eyiden

30IAIaS 130 Sanide [eyide)

MITAIIA() 1G(T sonIIoe,] Teide))

AJNIOY YIMOJ YINHOS YD NUIHLEON

23KI0Y 30BN ¥



Apisqns gyg jo ssoib ejel Jsaiajuf 'spuog eouswy pling ajqexe] )

SE0TIL9 SlouMm-eeIN . %6.9G%0EIY 000GCCOLLS  000'SZZ0LLS Sepoxy  sgvdeigexe] g seuas 0oz
610Z/1/9 sigejieD-uoN %000'S 000'G89'6$ 000°0YS'06$ ajey-poxiy Jdwiexgxel v seues L0z
SHoORNQ 3|qE)S © AYYVIZeY :(ISml sBuney | ¥mayo—a dnois asmuaepuy
ov0zZ/Li9 ajoyp o (L %€ L 000'GZ9'0/08  000'SZ9'9L1S SlRpexl{  sgvdelgexel g seuss 0LoZ
STOTIL9 0zZ0ZILI9 %000'G 000'G11'ECS 000°0EE'82$ a1y -poxi4 Juwexgxe] v Seues 010z
SHOORNQ LS “VHYIZY -(/s /M) sBuney | v dnous aimuepuy
Aumey ey EDWSN  aBuey uodno) stﬁ%é az|5 anss| adA) E%ou smejs xej sauag
i e e i 1920 J49jua) ABiau3 1po Buipueising jo Aleurung 3
SEEEEEECELO0EEEEEE0ELT o e .
N\
© P = &P & anos VROV 15810 BLISIS-SeUIN]
. €rLL 0L am
| oLz 1581°1 yenin
WSS oaciop 005262 eIR)) BlUBS
18¥0°E 15€0¢C J0dwo
. mWoLs  GBZOZL 00056 po]
8Y¥eT 8Z¥o’l BingspjesH
ZLZSE £¥06°1 fappus
LS Z08y 0 61920 sBbig
0L66Y 15812 esnzy
WWoZS - 0005 €€ HMaD

{uonanpai %6 J0f palsnipe) Apisans gvd 10 18N 3RS 1aaa g dnoio amuspuy

(%) a1eyg 380D (%) aseyg
(uonanpas %6'9 J0) pa1snipe) APISANS GvE 10 1aN 2238 1920 v dN0JO ANJUSPUY|= vdnoigpuy  jusweppug Joquusiy

221488 343 J9juan ABisug 1po sabejuaniad uonedionied 731

MIIAIIAQ) 1GR(T 121U ABI2ur] PO

AINZDY B0 VINBOIIYD NNIRLEON
FYRIY 39N ¥



Ol

M3AINGIAO 1940 41vVd d3XI4



I
J103TUOUI 0} dNUIIUO))
910U 10 SSUIABS 94G P39S0} JOUI WGES INOQY e
(Surpunyey] paoueApPY) 0603 ‘T dunf o[qe[[E)) e
V SOLIdG ‘Io3ud)) A319Us] PO 0103 —
8105 A[1ed / L10% 93e] 93epIpued SUIpunjoy .
8105 ‘g [LIdy se A[1ea se papunjot ‘8103 ‘I A[N[ S[qR[[BD
) SILI_G ‘SpUOY SUIPUNJY OLIIOIAOIPAL] 800G —
sonrunjaioddo 3ulpunjoy

(VIFIA A[1oULIO]) 99)UBIBNL) 90URUL] OI[qNJ [BUOTIBN]
J2INSUL PUOQ UO SUIJBI 3IPIIO 9} SULIDMOT RS

0} NP PIPERIIUMOP I2M SPUOY OLIIOI[QOIPAL] 66T o

PonssI 1qop papunjod IO MU ON

MITAIIA() 3Q3(J 9IBY POXI]

ANV HIMDS YINSDINYD NYIHLSDN
VdDI



ol

M3INGIAO 1940 J1Vd F19VIdVA

W



61

AIMIBY NIMOA VINNOITYD NNIHLEON \

dﬂ.MMyx

IV 0} €BY Wouy [eajuoly Jo yueg ayj papesBumop s,Apoo £1/0L/S 8AROeyT ,
‘leanuoy Jo yueg yiim Japiroid DO oYy se padejdal SEM YN UBGRID b1/0L/6 2AROBYT |

“VVI+VILV

610Z/6/6
dq 0'6¢
|easjuo jo yueg

(3au) |enuuy-1wag

(you) jenuuy-ljweg

(10917 Ajypuow
uo paseq) ajes Buneolq
shed VdON

%162'S © paxi4

~YV/+VILVY
6102/6/6
dq 0'6¢
|ealjuop jo yueg

(jou) jenuuy-1wag

(3ou) jenuuy-1wag

r (%5 +10q17 Ajfpuow jo
%PS uo paseq) ajel Bupeo|q

SOAINY VdON

%618°¢ © paxid

, sbuney ypeiy

9)eq uonelidxg

994 |enuuy

, 48plroid 31paig jo 19Pa/A1pinbiT

Aediajunon

'VdON
'sw9) Juswifed

Aaediajunon :oj]jwouy

SOAI08Y VdON shed VdON sjuswded
dnoabnio dnoubnio :fued-1ayunog demsg
Aiyuopy Alqauop juswAeyd
Aploop Apleap pasud
000°v2S°L$ 000°091°68$ junowy
Jg8Q °jey ajqelnep
€800 0JpAH V8002 O4pAH

MITATIA() 1Q3(J 931BY O[qeLIe A




i

HOGIMWL o we {a1qexe ) 918} 3959y 98007 weemm— VIS ¢« o {1dwaxg xe 1) 212y 1955Y YB0OT e

000&002?#0000.0 A L T BN T TV TR TP TR« SN SRS SR ~ S « TR o SR o ST, S P P o
A\ A S PR SGA AR SRR OEAIA P PR R GO A A O SR IR IR IR R R X U IR L S

OF D" ® OF 07 QY 07 Q7 0V 0
o P F PP g

.,A/

ADMIDY HINO VINBOLIV) HEIHINOM

vdD

£INITY 30N ¥

QY O 0
s

spuoq ayj o0} Joedwl
Buipes; ou pey yjo| Aepy uo
OWNg Jo apesbumop sApoo

$AJIPU] SNSI\A 9OUBLIIOLIBd 1o 18} ajqeliep YVdON

MITAIIA() 193(J 3B}y O[qrLIB A\

S 07T 0T 0T 0" 07 07 0T 07 0 0T 0 0" 9V, 0Y L0 0 QY L9 O
S F IS T EESS

ovo

05’0

090

DL

080

060

011

ot

0et



gl

MIINYIAO SAVMS FLvH L1STHILNI

o



91

ASMBOW ¥AMDS VIRBOIYD NYIHLEON

VdOl

/
/

s3uiaes |endY § B Y 8007~ sSujaes pauueld g 3 VY 800Z—
S O e e S S S S
S & & & & & & ¢ ¢ & & &

uol|jiw T°6S :93ep 03 SSUIAES |ENJIY
uoljjiw £°gS :a3ep 03 ssuiaes 109fo.d |e10)
uoljjiWw 6°ETS :SPUOQ JO 3] 430 sSuines pajoalosd |10

9107 ‘0€ auny
3)eQ 0} MUeWI0IBd sdems 3103/0.ad 214309|204pAH
AduaBy Jamod eiuiojije) uidyyoN

MITAIIA() sdemg 1B 1SaJ91U]

000°000°7$
000°000°V$
000°000°9$
000°000'8$
000°000°0T$
000°000°ZT$
000°000°¥1$
000°000°9T$



L1

lec'ieL’zs  (zzz'zie'eld)

¥10'20€'988  000'vEL'98S

(3 & ‘-—°>§ L 1] & CY
(vze'ecs) 125°9rCe Y/ Y/ LY N HUEqRID ¥L0'ZPL LS 000'v25'LS
[} & & < ¥-°>§ () 13 U &
SsL2'692'¢¢  (ebr'ess'eld) Y/ +YI LY N HIEqBID 000'091'G8%  000'091°S8%
[TETE]
Bums dq os
- ».g g.-ﬁ::o BUOCNHON
- INjBA WL anfeA WL / ._.ww. / Au e N {euonoON JuBLND e
wo oeduy Bupey jueg fenuj
Auedisyunod
sieak g} Ze0Z/VL  YOOZIVT/LL  YOOTIVTLL %016Z'S dogarrasn €800C seues Nooo<-mwr¢8u demg
%S0+ 100021 L¥00Z
s1eak 1 SalD dem:
9l Zeoz/viL 80022y  YOOZIVZILL NOArH-asN 10 %bS %0618 Y800Z seuss VdON S
In ajeq ajeqg spuog adAL
apeil EETVERS) 31 £Aediu awe
Buiwewsy Aumey  aagoay3 "ea SIS HIO d 30 pajenossy N uonoIesuRIy
08195 1T ey
0019196 G1C uoyg

977 sios1apy demg Widd

MITATIA() sdemg 1Yy 1S9091U]



8T

02L'ss$ 19L°LLO'LS

191°12¢$

191°9v$

G€0'9293

229298 SZe8ZS  WWESKS  BELELTS 16 1E1°T8
@819)  (arvi®) (66579 (v93) (v8L'89) (1889) (v26'€$) (9£99) (ze8'cs) (vze'8es)
Z06'058  SYC'SZOlS 995'TEES 808'9KS 6187693 €0/'€98 6121828  LI6SHS  1I69.ZS 1169128
buims dq oS
%PO'Z %ZOLE  %OOZL %69} %Z6TT %08z %IE0} %997} %01 - omiep
Yenin  mIBOEUBS  oAsON  BUAIS-SBWNY  ONV OfEd 20dwo po7  Gingspey  Eepawmy WLW o
Joedw) [0
(695'€269) (G81'611°99) (L0v'16128) (11r6088)  (19b 26079 (18r'12v8)  (1/696818) (c86'c088) (2zz1e818)  (czzziesis)
62068 Z9z168  £85628 9018 £05'958 019'c$ ¥95'5Z8 26078 259128 1Z5'ovzs
(865'8.68) (Lv'018'98) (6v0'L2z28)  (cvo'Eles)  (vo9'eszvs) (1og'ozvs)  (evGveels)  (GL0'0088)  (vie'SSe'lS)  (ev2'855'@LS)
%0z %Z0 L8 %002} %69} %6 T %OET %IE0} %90} %0} anjep
YENN  EEDEURS  AUASSON  BLPIG-SBWN  OFY Ofed s0dwio o7 BangspesH  epawely WL [EI0L
V1020988
VOTYILS  ZE0ZML  $O0ZWELL %0L6Z'S MOEITASN 68002 SOU0S 88<..mw__4¢8~ dems
. %bS 0+ LO00FZLLH00T .
000091's8s  zeozmr  voozwEnh RIS woeige  veoozsews HOOOVCLM dewg  srmares
jeuonoN spuog
Weung sjeq fpimey  sjegaepeil  Sea@d9N WAD fed uaid peyEossy aweN

MITAIIA() sdemg 218 1SaJ21U]

VIR y\...




61

&.v& a%u.. > A%v. &V& n%..). Qv@ &O. mv&
v%%% %%v %%9@4%%@%

P & e & o & o
& !
& & & & &

o <

{000°000'0€S)
(o00‘000's2$)
{000°000°'0Z5}

(oo0’000'sT$)

{000‘000°0T$)

{000‘000°s$)

puaa) anjep Jieq sdems 103014 214193|301pAH
Aduady samod ejuiojije) widyloN

MITAIIA() sdemg 91.Y 182J91U]

=



A PLBIIG AGENLY

NC

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 24, 2017

SUBJECT:

Appointment to the NCPA Finance Committee

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Monty Hanks UH\,

Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

15

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o 0o
o oo o o o o

City of Santa Clara

if other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 187:17



Appointment to the NCPA Finance Committee
August 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Commission approve Resolution 17-73 ratifying the appointment of
David Hagele, Council Member for the City of Healdsburg, as a member and Chairperson of the
Finance Committee.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Amended and Restated Commission Rules of Procedure (a.k.a. By-Laws) provides
for a standing Committee, known as the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee
considers all financial, accounting or auditing matters referred to it by the Commission, its
Chairman, the Executive Committee, the General Manager or the Chief Financial Officer of the
Agency. Appointment to this Committee is made by the Commission Chairman, subject to
ratification by the Commission and is presently comprised of five members.

Current ratified members of the Finance Committee are as follows:

Madeline Deaton, PUC Board Member, Alameda Municipal Power, Committee Chair
Melissa Price, Rates & Resources Manager, Lodi

Philip McAvoy, Electric Finance & Administration Manager, Roseville

Ann Hatcher, Assistant Electric Director, Silicon Valley Power

Matt Michaelis, Finance Director, Gridley

Madeline Deaton requested to end her term on the Finance Committee effective at the end of
August 2017 due to her personal schedule. However, she will continue her role as a
Commissioner and as a member for the Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee. This
request means that a new Chairperson needs to be appointed and it has been customary for the
position of Chairperson to be a member of the NCPA Commission and not a staff person. On
June 14, 2017, the Nominating Committee discussed David Hagele, Council Member for the
City of Healdsburg, as a potential replacement for Madeline, but did not officially recommend
him. At the time, the committee was unaware of Madeline’s timeframe to resign from her role as
Chairperson.

David Hagele will bring a wealth of financial experience to the Finance Committee. He has
been in commercial real estate for the 20+ years and was president of an in-house property
management firm that managed and leased 3 million square feet from Anchorage, Alaska to Las
Vegas, NV. He started his own commercial real estate financing firm in 2004 and performed
work on everything from small business administration loans to commercial mortgage-backed
security (CMBS) debt.

Members of the Finance Committee and NCPA staff want to send our appreciation for
Madeline’s time, effort and contributions to the Finance Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

SR: 187:17



Appointment to the NCPA Finance Committee
August 16, 2017
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The Finance Committee discussed David Hagele as Madeline’s replacement and all Finance

Committee members are recommending his appointment. David has confirmed his acceptance
of this recommendation pending ratification of the Commission.

Respectfully submitted,

Qo § 11

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment: Resolution 17-73

SR: 187:17



RESOLUTION 17-73

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPOINTMENT TO THE NCPA FINANCE COMMITTEE

(reference Staff Report #187:17)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure for the Commission of the Northern
California Power Agency provides for a standing Committee, known as the Finance Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee shall consider and report upon all financial, accounting, or auditing
matters referred to it by the Commission, the Executive Committee, the Chair, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Agency, or by the General Manager; and

WHEREAS, members of the Finance Committee, who may be either Commission members or other staff
or officers of Members, shall be appointed by the Chair, which appointment shall be ratified by the Commission;
and

WHEREAS, current ratified members of the Finance Committee include Madeline Deaton (Alameda),
Melissa Price (Lodi), Philip McAvoy (Roseville), Matt Michaelis (Gridley) and Ann Hatcher (SVP); and

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2017, the Finance Committee considered the Chair's recommendation of David
Hagele, Council Member for the City of Healdsburg, and concurred that he be appointed as a member and
Chairperson to the NCPA Finance Committee replacing Madeline Deaton; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the appointment of David Hagele as a member and Chairperson of the NCPA Finance Committee.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PLBLIT ACENCY

"NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 24, 2017

SUBJECT: Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines

Policy 200-100

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

o o o o o

City of Healdsburg

City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

o o o o o o

FROM: Monty Hanks  [JAAQ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO i
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o g

SR: 188:17



Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines — Policy 200-100
August 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Commission approve Resolution 17-74. The resolution includes
changes to the NCPA Investment Policy No. 200-100 as follows: 1) minor language clean-up; 2)
updates to the Permitted Investments attachment; 3) changes to the Investment Fund
Objectives attachment; and 4) removal to the Authorized Financial Institutions attachment.

BACKGROUND:

The purpose of the Investment Policy is to establish cash management and investment
guidelines for the Treasurer-Controller, who is responsible for the stewardship of NCPA's
investment program. Each transaction and the entire portfolio must comply with the California
Government Code Sections 53600 and 53635 et seq., or the respective Bond Indentures
pertaining to the Agency’s outstanding debt, and the Investment Policy. The Investment Policy
conforms to the customary standards of prudent investment management and any changes to
the policy must be approved by the Commission.

The main objective with these proposed changes is creating an Investment Policy that closely
matches the State code which will allow the Treasurer-Controller to create a balanced portfolio
managing a modest amount of default risk through diversification, duration and adequate
liquidity while respecting the goals and constraints dictated by the policy.

The Investment Policy being submitted for approval includes some recommended changes —
both substantive and non-substantive — with the goal of meeting our current needs.

A brief summary of the changes are as follows:

Substantive changes:

Staff is proposing to add medium-term corporate notes, rated A or its equivalent, as a permitted
investment to the portfolio with a limitation of no more than 30% of the total portfolio in this
category. This amendment will match the language that is allowed per State code and provide
the Treasurer-Controller with additional investment options to diversify risk. A second
investment option being recommended to the Permitted Investments is the California Asset
Management Program (CAMP). The CAMP Pool is considered a permitted investment for all
local agencies under State code 53601(p) and is a short-term, money market portfolio rated
AAAm that can provide the Treasurer-Controller with an additional investment option that is
similar to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

Staff is also proposing a few changes to the maximum term of an investment within the
Investment Fund Objectives attachment. For the Operating Account, staff is proposing updating
the limitation from one year to five years. This change will allow the Treasurer-Controller to
slightly extend the duration of this portfolio which will increase the overall yield while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet current obligations. For the Geo Decommissioning Account, staff is
proposing to increase the maximum maturity from five to ten years. This request is allowed by
the Government Code as long as the Commission has granted express authority as a part of the
investment program. The funds being collected for this account are not projected to be used
until 2030-2034 (at the earliest) and allowing this change will also increase the duration and
yield without impacting liquidity requirements.

SR: 188:17



Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines — Policy 200-100
August 16, 2017
Page 3

Non-substantive changes:

There were several, minor language changes and updates made throughout the policy that
were related to formatting, duplicative statements, or footnotes that needed to be updated to
reflect the most current information. In addition, the previous Attachment 4 ‘Authorized
Financial Institutions’ is being recommended for removal. All financial institutions are discussed
at the Finance Committee and approval by the Commission through an RFP process or new
bond offering or refinancing. The purpose of this removal would require staff to update the
Investment Policy each time a financial institution was added or removed after Commission
approval.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff believes with the proposed amendments to the Investment Policy, there is the
potential of adding approximately $500,000 annually of additional interest income and
member savings through a reduction of current liquidity (determining what is adequate and
matched with current cash flow requirements) and implementing a diversified portfolio of
investments.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on August 9" and was
recommended for Commission approval. The Committee requested staff return and discuss the
investment strategy plan that will be implemented within each individual portfolio.

Respectfully submitted,

ek 3 VA

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

Resolution 17-74

NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines _redline
NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines _clean

SR: 188:17



RESOLUTION 17-74

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVE REVISIONS TO THE NCPA INVESMENT POLICY AND GUIDELINES
(Policy 200-100)

(reference Staff Report #188:17)

WHEREAS, Chapter 4 of the California Government Code, section 53600 et, seq., deals with the
financial affairs of local government agencies, including cities; and

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency Joint Powers Agreement specifies the laws
regulating general law cities as being the law that applies to the Agency; and

WHEREAS, Government Code section 53607 provides that “the authority of the legislative body to
invest or reinvest funds of a local agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased may be delegated
for a period of one year by the legislative body to the treasurer of the local agency, who shall thereafter
assume full responsibility for those transactions until the authority is revoked or expires, and shall make a
report of those transactions to the legislative body. Subject to review, the legislative body may renew the
delegation of authority pursuant to this section each year”; and

WHEREAS, staff has performed a review of policies related to the investment of NCPA funds and
recommends revisions to a resolution reference, adding medium-term corporate notes, rated A or its
equivalent, and California Asset Management Program (CAMP) as a permitted investments, adjusting the
maximum maturity of an investment from one to five years for the Operating Fund and five to ten years for
the Geo Decommissioning Reserve Fund, and modifying minor language changes and updates related to
formatting, duplicative statements, or footnotes including removal of the Authorized Financial Institutions
attachment; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has conducted a review of the changes to the Investment Policy
and Guidelines (200-100) at their meeting on August 9, 2017 and recommended the revisions to a resolution
reference, adding medium-term corporate notes, rated A or its equivalent, and California Asset Management
Program (CAMP) as a permitted investments, adjusting the maximum maturity of an investment from one to
five years for the Operating Fund and five to ten years for the Geo Decommissioning Reserve Fund, and
modifying minor language changes and updates related to formatting, duplicative statements, or footnotes
including removal of the Authorized Financial Institutions attachment; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency adopts the revisions to a resolution reference, adding medium-term corporate notes, rated A or its
equivalent, and California Asset Management Program (CAMP) as a permitted investments, adjusting the
maximum maturity of an investment from one to five years for the Operating Fund and five to ten years for
the Geo Decommissioning Reserve Fund, and modifying minor language changes and updates related to
formatting, duplicative statements, or footnotes including removal of the Authorized Financial Institutions
attachment.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

vote on roll calil:

Vote

Alameda

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-74

ATTEST:

,2017 by the following

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



POLICIES & o 22000 Effective: 9-1993
j PROCEDURES Owner: ¢ 9
LANCPA MANUAL | Acctg &Finance P
APPROVED:
. Investment Policy and
SUBJECT: Guidelines
RANDY S. HOWARD, GENERAL MANAGER
TABLE OF CONTENTS
POLICY .ot ettt
Purpose and SCOPE..........coovviiieictiee e fureeenueeaenneesanneessanannes
REIEIENCE. ... ettt e enee e eaee e
Responsibility
Prudence, Indemnification and Ethics .....................
General ObjJECtiVES........ccccceeieiieeeeeee e
Portfolio Risk Management ...........

Authorized Investment Securities
Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers
DIEGAtION ... et et
Internal Control..........cccccoeveiiiiiiiccee,
Safekeeping and Collateralization
Reporting Requirements .............ccccceeeeene.
Investment Operations Guidelines
Attachments:

1. Glossary of Investment Terms

2. Investment Fund Obijectives

3. Table of Authorized Investments

4. Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments

6.5. Credit Rating Comparison




Vi No. 200-100 | Page 1 of 7
; .ﬁj Investme_nt F_’olicy and Owner: Effective: 9-1993
| LWNCWE%M Guidelines Acctg. & Finance ;l&c!,ated 44-28468-

POLICY

It is the policy of the Agency to secure, protect and manage the funds of Agency and invest
surplus funds in a manner which will:

« comply with applicable California state laws and bond indenture provisions;

« ensure safety of the principal;

« provide an appropriate level of liquidity so that money is available when reasonably expected
to be required for payment of obligations; and,

- attain a market yield with no undue risks taken to maximize income at the expense of safety,
liquidity, or investment quality.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the management of cash and
investments of the Agency. The policy pertains to all financial assets of the Agency and any
other funds under the control of the Treasurer-Controller and concerns the deposit, investment,
maintenance, and safekeeping of all such assets.

Proceeds of debt issuance and other indentured funds shall be invested in accordance with the
Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; however, such monies are to
be invested in accordance with permitted investment provisions of their specific bond
indentures. See attachment 4.

This Policy does not apply to any pension moneys or deferred compensation funds.

REFERENCE

» California Government Code Section 53600 et seq.

« Joint Powers Agreement, Article Il, Section 4.5 (as amended)

« NCPA Resolution No. 12-72, Authorized Officers for Transactions with the State of California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

« NCPA Resolution No. 83-103, Establishing the position of Treasurer-Controller

RESPONSIBILITY

The Treasurer-Controiler is responsible for establishing proper safeguards, controls, and
procedures to maintain Agency funds in a lawful, rational, and prudent manner. The Treasurer-
Controller is responsible for the development of the overall investment policy as well as for the
development and ongoing administration of the various portfolio strategies, tactics, performance
monitoring and monthly reporting to the Commission.

The Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for overseeing the
development and implementation of investment policy review and approval of the portfolio
investment strategies, and policy compliance.



No. 200-100 Page 2 of 7
Investment Policy and Owner: Effective: 9-1993
CPA Guidelines Acctg & Finance Updated 44-20468-

o riga aLFommis Ui 2017

PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS

Prudence: Management of Agency’s investments is governed by the Prudent Investor Standard
as set forth in California Government Code Section 53600.3:

“...all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments
as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.”

Personal Responsibility. The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons responsible for
managing Agency funds, acting in accordance with the investment-investment peliey-Policy and
exercising due diligence, will be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’'s
credit risk or market price changes, provided appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

Ethics: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons involved in the investment
process (1) will refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution
of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment
decisions and (2) shall not accept honoraria, gifts or gratuities from any advisor, broker, dealer,
banker, or other person with whom the Agency conducts business, which has an aggregate
value in excess of $50.00 in any 12-month period.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

The overriding objectives of the investment program are to preserve principal, provide sufficient
liquidity, and manage-investmentrisksachieve a reasonable rate of return. The specific
objectives for the program are ranked in order of importance:

1. Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital.

2. Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles taking into
account the investment risk constraints for safety and liquidity needs.



No. 200-100 Page 3 of 7
Effective: 9-1993
Updated 44-20468-
2017

A@j’ Investment Policy and
/TINCPA Guidelines

// WIRTHERS CALIFORSIA PR/ER AGENCY

Owner:
Acctg. & Finance

PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT

Factors that can lead to an unexpected financial loss can be broadly grouped into the following
categories; credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

Mitigating credit risk in the portfolio: Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose
some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its
debt. Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting the following strategies:

1. Diversify the investment portfolio to mitigate losses due to failure of individual issues or
issuers;

2. Limit the amount of the total portfolio that may be invested in securities of a particular
type and any single issuer. Authorized investment limitations under this policy are shown
in Attachment 3; and,

3. If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by at least one Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) to a level below the quality required by this
Investment Policy, it will be the Agency’s policy to review_ and document the credit
situation and make a determination as to whether to sell or retain such securities in the
portfolio.

a. The Treasurer-Controller will use discretion in determining whether to sell or hold
the security based on its maturity, the economic outlook for the issuer, and other
relevant factors.

b. If a decision is made to retain a downgraded security in the portfolio, its presence
in the portfolio will be monitored and reported monthly to the governing board.

Mitigating market risk in the portfolio: Market risk, also referred to as interest rate risk, is the risk
that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in the-gereralHlevel-of-interest rates. The
Agency recognizes that, over time, longer-term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher
returns. On the other hand, longer-term portfolios have higher volatility when marked—to—
market. The Agency will mitigate interest rate risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term
cash needs, and by making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for
current cash flow purposes. The Agency, therefore, shall adopt the following strategies to
control and mitigate its exposure to market risk:

1. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short—term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements;

O/, .

3:2. The maximum time from investment to maturity of individual securities in the
portfolio will be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.

Mitigating Lquidity-liguidity Riskrisk in the portfolio: Liquidity risk is the inability to convert a
security to cash on a given date prior to maturity. It refers to the inability to sell a security for its
cost and therefore it may have to be sold at a loss. The Agency shall employ the following
strategies to control and mitigate its exposure to liquidity risk:
1. To the extent possible, match investment maturities with anticipated cash demands.
2. Since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, maintain portfolios largely of
securities with active secondary or resale markets.



No. 200-100 Page 4 of 7
Investment Policy and Owner: Effective: 9-1993

CPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 44-20468-

WORTHERN CAUIFORNIA PIWER AGENCY 2017

3. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short—-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES

All investments will be made in accordance with Sections 53600 ef seq. of the Government
Code of the State of California and as described within this Investment Policy. Authorized
investments under this policy are shown in Attachment 3.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish a list of approved brokers, dealers, banks and direct
issuers of commercial paper to provide investment services to the Agency. The Agency shall
conduct security transactions only with approved institutions and firms.

To be eligible for approval all broker/dealer firms must qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
and must be licensed to do business in the State of California and institutions shall have one or
more of the following attributes:

» be recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank;
« be aregional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; or

« be a national or state chartered bank which is a member of the FDIC; or

« be a direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency.

Deposits will be made only in qualified public depositories within the state of California as
established by State law. Deposits will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or, to the extent the amount exceeds the insured maximum, will be collateralized in
accordance with State law.

A pool of qualified financial institutions and dealers will be maintained by the Treasurer-
Controller using criteria based upon capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference
checks and services offered. Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to
engage in transactions with the Agency will be at the sole discretion of the Agency.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING

Authority to manage Agency's investment program is derived from the California Government
Code Sections 53600 et seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is
delegated to the Treasurer-Controller by Agency Commission Resolution No. 83-103. Pursuant
to Government Code section 53607 such delegation may be granted for a period of one—year
and must be renewed annually. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer-
Controller or his/her designee.

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls, designed to:
ensure adherence to this investment policy, the prevention and detection of errors and fraud, the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.



No. 200-100 Page 5 of 7 |

Investment Policy and Owner: Effective: 9-1993
Guidelines Acctg. & Finance lz.'&c;ated 41-20168-

WORTHERN CALIFDRIIA PUWER AGENCY

The Agency maintains its records on the basis of Plant/Program account groups, each of which
may include one or more investment funds. All investment transactions shall be recorded in the
various funds of the Agency in accordance with Generaily Accepted Accounting Principles as
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the
Agency shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held in
the name of the Agency by a third party custodian designated by the Treasurer-Controller and
evidenced by trade confirmations and safekeeping holdings report.

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and
repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for
all funds, a minimum collateralization level measured at specified times is required.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Monthly Reports: A monthly report will be provided to the Agersy-Commission by the Treasurer-
Controller. The report shall state compliance of the investment portfolio to the investment policy
and a statement that the Agency has adequate cash flow and investment maturities to meet
next month’s cash requirements and such other information as may be required by State Jaw.

The report will disclose, at a minimum, the following information:

1. An asset listing showing par value, cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts and market value of each security, type of investment, issuer, and
interest rate;

2. The Treasurer-Controller’s report shall also provide:

a. an analysis of investment maturities;
b. asummary of cash and investment activity; and,
c. an analysis of interest rates/yields with a comparison to benchmark interest rates.

Annually: The Treasurer-Controlier shall annually submit to the Commission a statement of
investmentinvestment poliey-Policy and any recommended changes to the policy.

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES

The following general operating guidelines shall be used in performing all investment functions:

« Allinvestments will be made in the name of the Northern California Power Agency.

» All investments will be made in compliance with the NCPA Investment Fund Objectives
(Attachment 2) and the NCPA Table of Authorized Investments (Attachment 3) unless
otherwise required by bond indenture.

« Investments or collateral for all outside trusteed accounts must be delivered to the trustee.

« Investments or collateral for all accounts held by NCPA will be delivered to and held in the
safekeeping of an authorized financial institution.

« All investment transactions will be recorded in the accounts of the Agency in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board.




? No. 200-100 Page 6 of 7
4 Investment Policyand [ Effective: 9-1993
A c'.:én Guidelines Acctg. & Finance | g&q,ated 44-20468-

« Allaccrued interest on purchased securities will be charged to the appropriate interest
income account.

» Funds deposited in banks or savings and loan associations must be held under a written
contract between the Agency and the institution, which requires collateralization as
prescribed by law and/or this investment policy.

« Whenever practical Agency cash is to be consolidated and invested on a pooled concept
basis. Interest earnings are allocated monthly according to monthly weighted average
balance for each fund.

» Unless otherwise restricted, all holdings will be of sufficient size and held in issues which are
actively traded to facilitate transactions at a minimum cost and accurate market valuation.

» Passive management portfolio strategies are preferred for all operating projects or other
Agency programs, unless otherwise prohibited or restricted.

« When practicable, competitive bidding will be utilized for all investment and reinvestment
activities not involving escrowed or other funds covered by a separate contract or
agreement.

Prohibited investment vehicles and practices:

6.
7. The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of

8.

. Notwithstanding that any such investment is permitted under State Law, any

investment not specifically described herein is prohibited, including, but not limited to
derivatives, futures and options.

In accordance with California Government Code Section 53601.6, investment in
inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited.

Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity
is prohibited.

Trading securities for the sole purpose of specuiating, whether on the future direction
of interest rates or otherwise, is prohibited.

Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited.

borrowing or leverage is prohibited.
The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Glossary
Attachment 2 - Investment Fund Objectives
Attachment 3 - Table of Authorized Investments

A h

Attachment 6-5 - Credit Rating Comparison

Attachment 4 - Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments

hie A ha ad nan o



/

/ Investment Policy and [~
4‘ ICPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance

/ WORTHER) CAUIFOSMA PUWER AGERCY

No. 200-100

Page 7 of 7

Effective: 9-1993
Updated 41-20168-
2017

VERSION HISTORY

No. | Explanation Date | Author
Minor language clean-up; updates to the 8117 |MH
6 | Permitted Investments; and changes to the
Investment Fund Obijectives
Revised a resolution reference 11/16 | SA
Updated maximum investment permitted by
5 LAIF
Added Authorized Financial Institution
4 | Annual review, no changes 11/15 | SA
3 | Annual review, no changes 11/14 | KWW
Combined prior policies 200-97 and 200-98;
updated to include more information on
2 | allowable investments, delegations, authorized | 11/13 | KWW
financial institutions, and operations practices,
Includes expanded attachments and glossary.
1 | Updated 9/95 | DBL
0 | Original Policy 9/93 | DBL




GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS

Agencies - Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government sponsored
enterprise (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:

« FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the agricultural
industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.

» FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market.
FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.

« FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and
liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “Freddie Mac” issues discount notes,
bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.

» FNMA. Like FHLB and Freddie Mac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known as
“Fannie Mae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass- through securities.

Certain GSE obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. An

example is:

« GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “Ginnie Mae,” issues
mortgage pass-through securities.

Callable - A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its

maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline since an

issuer issues securities, it will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of
interest. Callable securities have reinvestment risk as the investor may receive its principal back
when interest rates are lower than when the investment was initially made.

Certificate of Deposit (CD) - A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.

Large denomination CDs may be marketable.

Collateral - Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or

repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of

public monies.

Commercial paper - Short-term unsecured debt of corporations.

Coupon - The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond.

Current yield - The annual income from an investment divided by the current market value.

Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the investor's

cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security is held to

maturity.

Dealer - A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying

securities for his own position

Delivery vs. payment (DVP) - A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser's agent.

Demand Deposit = Sometimes referred to as a sight or on call deposit, can be withdrawn at

any time (on demand) without notice or penalty; e.g., deposits into checking or savings

accounts.

Derivative - Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or any

security which represents a component of another security which has been separated from
other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also defined as a financial

Attachment 1



instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the value of another instrument,
interest rate or index.

Discount - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker's acceptances, are
known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par, and return the par value to the
investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have fixed coupons, trade
at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate for securities of that
maturity and/or quality.

Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive
exposure to any one source of risk.

Duration - The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a bond to changes in
interest rates. (See modified duration).

Federal funds rate - The rate of interest charged by banks for short-term loans to other banks.
The Federal Reserve Bank through open-market operations establishes it.

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) - A self-regulatory organization for
brokerage firms doing business in the United States. FINRA operates under the supervision of
the SEC. The organization’s objectives are to protect investors and ensure market integrity.
Liquidity - refers to the requirement that some portion of cash assets be invested in securities
readily convertible into cash without loss of capital.

Make whole call - A type of call provision on a bond allowing the issuer to pay off remaining
debt early. The issuer has to make a lump sum payment derived from a formula based on the
net present value (NPV) of future coupon payments that will not be paid because of the call.
Investors will be compensated, or "made whole."

Market value - The price at which a security can be traded.

Mark to market - The process of posting current market values for securities in a portfolio.
Maturity - The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable.
Money market - The market in which short term debt instruments (Tbills, discount notes,
commercial paper and banker's acceptances) are issued and traded.

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NSRSO) - Is a credit rating agency
(CRA) that issues credit ratings that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
permits other financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. The largest NSROs are
Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Portfolio Re-Optimization - Refers to the process wherein investment broker(s) re-evaluate a
given dedicated investment portfolio using sophisticated computer programs based on the
updated program or project estimated cash flows. This is usually done to increase or protect the
portfolio's overall rate of return as a result of changing liability amounts or dates, changing
market or credit risk condition, or a change in investment policy restrictions, etc.

Portfolio Strategy — Determining investment practices to best achieve the investors’ primary
goals. Strategies may be either passive or active. Passive strategies include: buy and hold,
which includes the laddering of maturities; and bullet structure, which is designed to invest to a
particular date or portfolio horizon; and benchmarking, which is done to mirror a particular
segment of the market. Active strategies employ additional risk to take advantage of conditions
in the fixed income markets that change as economic and financial conditions change.
Premium - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is above par.

Attachment 1



Primary Dealer - a firm that buys government securities directly from a government, with the
intention of reselling them to others, thus acting as a market maker of government securities.
The government may regulate the behavior and numbers of its primary dealers and impose
conditions of entry.
Repurchase agreement (RP, Repo) - Short term purchases of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.
Risk - refers to the degree of probability of incurring a monetary loss as a result of investing in a
particular security. Three general kinds of investment risks are:

» Credit Risk - risk that an issuer of a security cannot meet its obligations.

« Market Risk - risk from fluctuations in the market prices for individual securities over a

period of time.

« Liquidity Risk- risk of an inability to sell a security at its fair market value.
Safety - refers to the varying degrees and types of risks associated with different types of
investment securities and individual issues. Safety is a matter of degree, not an absolute.
Safekeeping - A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank (as
custodian) in the customer's name.
Total rate of return - A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate of
return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it includes
interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio.
U.S. Treasury obligations - Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the
benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The Treasury issues
both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.
Treasury bills - All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as
discounted instruments, and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues three- and
six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash management” bills as needed
to smooth out cash flows.
Treasury notes - All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called
Treasury notes, and pay interest semi-annually.
Treasury bonds - All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.
Uniform Net Capital Rule - An SEC rule that requires broker-dealers to maintain sufficient
liquidity to protect securities customers, counterparties, and creditors. Broker-dealers must
maintain net capital (net worth adjusted by certain deductions for illiquid assets and reserves
against possible market losses on securities positions) such that the liabilities incurred by the
broker-dealer (aggregate indebtedness) do not exceed certain specified levels.
Volatility - The rate at which security prices change with changes in general economic
conditions or the general level of interest rates.
Yield to Maturity - The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost.

Attachment 1



INVESTMENT FUND OBJECTIVES

Primary Maximum
Investment Term of
Fund Type Objective Investment ’

Bond Financed Project Funds: 2
Construction Fund (Geo) C 1 year
Construction Revolving Acct (LEC) A 90 days
Debt Service Fund (] 1 year
Debt Service Reserve B,D 15 years
Reserve Fund B,C,D 5 years
Rebate Fund C 5 years
O&M Reserve (LEC) A.B,D 5 years
Revenue Fund A B,C 1 year
Additional Operating Funds:
Operating Account A C 45 year
General Operating Reserve A B C 5 years
SCPA Balancing Account A B 5 years
Capital Development Account (Hydro) AC 5 years
Decommissioning Account (Geo) C,D 5-10 years

Notes:
A. Provide liquidity
B. Provide reserves against uncertain liabilities
C. Match prescribed cash flow
D. Maximize long-term return on investment

1 Investments shall mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide monies
when reasonably expected to be needed for payments to be made from such fund.

2 Proceeds of debt issuance and other funds held under a bond indenture shall be invested in
accordance with the Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy;
however, such moneys are to be invested in accordance with permitted investment
provisions of their specific bond indentures.

Attachment 2



TABLE OF AUTHORIZED PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Jypeof || Maximum % of | | Rating | | Maximum | ]
Investment Portfolio Requirement Maturity Other Restrictions
MSTreasury | amoer | ST R
Securities 100% nfe &yoare
Federal | oea o | Evests -
Agencies 100% nfa &-yoars
Up to maximum
Jocal Agency | - erritted-By-- - -------mmmecgeman ]
Investment P A n/a n/a n/a
Fund (LAIF) LAIF, currently
$65,000,000
Mediumsterm | L BYaNRSRO;
Corporate 30% A or its equivalent or 5 years
Notes better
CalforniaAsget | | ol
Management
Program 100% nia n/a n/a
(CAMP)
JdimeDeposits | | By2aNRSROs; | |
(Non- Long-term of A or .
negotiable 20% short-term of A-1 or 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
CDs) better
By 2-a NRSROs;
. Long-term of A or .
Negotiable CDs_ 30%_ ... --ghort-term-of A=1-or-- _...Syears | | No more than 5% per issuer ___
better
By 2a NRSROs;
Bankers | a0 .| Long-termof Aor | peri
Agc eptances 40% shortterm of A-1 or 180-day: No-mere-than 5%-per-issuer
better
By 22 NRSROs;
Commercial Long-term of A or Assets >$500MM
A ALARA A o SRS PPN 7C | 7 W SRSk A S L L T SR . S S T4 £ 1P Ayl .
Paper 40% short-term of A-1 or 270 days No more than §% per issuer
better
By 2a NRSROs;
Highest ranking or Must be registered with SEC;
MeoneyMerkel ... 20%-+----~{---nwm- F S T B Assets > $500MM; -~~~
letter/numerical No more than 5% per fund
rating
Repurchase Collateral of at least 102% of
A Y Y e} cncaec 40Oy --- -4 -=m—mmcccccccmccccencccccfaaaaa V7 ) LT SRR oty P4 BB yir Ar L A g
Agreements 100% Tryear market value required
By 2-a NRSROs; Fully secured as to principal
Municipal Highest ranking or and interest by an escrow
"B'éhi:lg ------------- 40%-------1-------- highest -------------omomoceeooibe ---consisting of cash-or-direct----
letter/numerical obligations of the US
rating government

Attachment 3

{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

-+

--| Formatted: Font: 10 pt

\LFormatted Table

{Formatted: Font: 10 pt

_________ ‘| Formatted: Font: 10 pt

--{ Formatted: Font; 10 pt

{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

-_tw\i-‘{Formatted: Font: 10 pt

{ Formatted Table

{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

cmeeT {_Formatbed: Font: 10 pt

...----{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

tormatted: Font: 10 pt

{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

{Formau:ed: Font: 10 pt




TABLE OF BOND INDENTURE PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Project Geo/Hydro 2 Cap Facilities/LEC 3
Debt Debt
Debt Service Debt Service
Service | Reserve | All | Service | Reserve | All
Securities 1 Acct. Acct. Other | Acct. Acct. Other
Direct obligations of the United Stated of America. X X X X X X
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X x X X
America.
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are not
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X x X X X X
America.
New Housing Authority bonds or notes of public agencies or
municipalities secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be X X X !
paid by the United States or agency thereof.
Direct and general obligations of the State of California or x x
political subdivision rated A or higher.
General obligation of any state rated A2 or higher. X
Time deposits, FDIC insured or collateralized. X X
Repurchase agreements, insured or collateralized. X X
Money Market Funds rated AAAm G or AAAM or better. X
Commercial Paper rated P-1 or A1+. X
UD dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds or X
bankers' acceptances with ratings of A-1, A-1+ or P-1.
Prefunded municipal obligations rated highest rating category X
by S&P or Moody's, based on an irrevocable escrow.
Investment Agreements & GICS, supported by opinion of X X X
counsel.
California LAIF. X
Shares in a California common law trust which invests
exclusively in investment permitted under CA Code section X
56635.
X

Any other form of investment.

T Investment types are detailed in each project bond Indenture of Trust. Generally, investment securities
include those listed above, if and to the extent the same are legal for investment of Agency funds. The
securities, as listed above, are summarized and may have additional limitations as to specific issuers,

ratings, term of investment, or other requirements.

2The Geothermal Project bond indenture dated November 1, 1983 and the Hydroelectric Project bond
indenture dated March 1, 1985 have the same definition for investment securities.

% The Capital Facilities Project bond indenture dated January 1, 2010 and the Lodi Energy Center Issues

One and Two, dated June 1, 2010 have the same definition for investment securities.

Attachment 4




Attachment 5

{ Formatted: Centered

{ Formatted: Right: 0"

J

‘| Formatted: Centered

{ Formatted: Centered

{ Formatted: Centered

{ Formatted: Centered

)

mrmathed: Centered

{Ermatﬁed: Centered

{ Formatted: Centered

'LFormatbad: Centered, Tab stops: Not at 5.38"

—
)
)
,

e B—matted: Centered, Indent: Left:

stops: Not at 5.38"

0", First line: 0", Tab _]

'[ Formatted: Centered, Tab stops: Not at 5.38" ]




CREDIT RATINGS COMPARISON

Standard
Description Moody’s & Poors Fitch
Long- Short- Long- Short- Long- Short-
- term term term term term term
Prime:
Extremely Strong Aaa AAA AAA
High Grade:
Very Strong Aa1 AA+ A-1+ AA+ F1+
Aa2 P-1 AA AA
Aa3 AA- AA-
Upper Medium
Grade: B L
Strong A1l A+ A-1 A+ F1
A2 A A
A3 A- | A-
Lower Medium
Grade: P-2 A-2 F2
Adequate Baa1 BBB+ BBB+
Baa2 P-3 BBB A-3 BBB F3
| Baa3 BBB- BBB-
Non-investment
Grade speculative:
Vulnerable Ba1 BB+ BB+
Not
Ba2 Prime BB B BB B
Ba2 BB- BB-

Credit ratings are opinions about credit risk published by a rating agency. They express
opinions about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation, state or city
government, to meet its financial obligations in accordance with the terms of those obligations.

Credit ratings are also opinions about the credit quality of an issue, such as a bond or other debt
obligation, and the relative likelihood that it may default.

The Agency shall not invest in rer-investment grade-securitiesany security rated less than
single A.

Attachment 65



POLICIES & No. 200-100
PA PROCEDURES Owner: Effective: 9-1993
\ORTHERN CALIFRNIA PWER AGENGY MANUAL Acctg. & Finance Updated 08-2017
APPROVED:
Investment Policy and
SUBJECT: Guidelinesy
RANDY S. HOWARD, GENERAL MANAGER

TABLE OF CONTENTS
POLICY .t e e et e e e e e e, 1
PUIPOSE @NA SCOPE......c.ueieiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e ee e e e, 1
RETEIEINCE......c. e e et e e e 1
RESPONSIDIITY ... ettt e e e e, 1
Prudence, Indemnification and EthiCS ...............oooiueeiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 2
GeNEral ODJECLIVES........coceiiiiieiieie e et ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e e 2
Portfolio Risk Management .................ooomiiiiiiie et e e e, 3
Authorized INVesStMeENnt SECUNLIES .............ooiiiiiiiie et 4
Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers ...............cooooeoooe oo 6
DElEgALtION ...t e 6
INEEINAI CONIOL...... .o et e e e e 6
Safekeeping and Collateralization................cc.ooouiiiiiiic e, 7
Reporting REQUINEMENES .........ooiiieieie et 7
Investment Operations GUIEIINES ...............cocooiiiiiiii oo 7

Attachments:

GRWN=

Glossary of Investment Terms
Investment Fund Objectives
Table of Authorized Investments

Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments

Credit Rating Comparison




No. 200-100 Page 1 of 7

Owner: Effective: 9-1993
Acctg. & Finance Updated 8-2017

Investment Policy and
Guidelines

NORTHEAN CALIFORNIA POWER ABENCY

POLICY

It is the policy of the Agency to secure, protect and manage the funds of Agency and invest
surplus funds in a manner which will:

« comply with applicable California state laws and bond indenture provisions;

« ensure safety of the principal,

« provide an appropriate level of liquidity so that money is available when reasonably expected
to be required for payment of obligations; and,

» attain a market yield with no undue risks taken to maximize income at the expense of safety,
liquidity, or investment quality.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the management of cash and
investments of the Agency. The policy pertains to all financial assets of the Agency and any
other funds under the control of the Treasurer-Controller and concerns the deposit, investment,
maintenance, and safekeeping of all such assets.

Proceeds of debt issuance and other indentured funds shall be invested in accordance with the
Agency'’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; however, such monies are to
be invested in accordance with permitted investment provisions of their specific bond
indentures. See attachment 4.

This Policy does not apply to any pension moneys or deferred compensation funds.

REFERENCE

« California Government Code Section 53600 et seq.

« Joint Powers Agreement, Article Il, Section 4.5 (as amended)

« NCPA Resolution No. 12-72, Authorized Officers for Transactions with the State of California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

« NCPA Resolution No. 83-103, Establishing the position of Treasurer-Controller

RESPONSIBILITY

The Treasurer-Controller is responsible for establishing proper safeguards, controls, and
procedures to maintain Agency funds in a lawful, rational, and prudent manner. The Treasurer-
Controller is responsible for the development of the overall investment policy as well as for the
development and ongoing administration of the various portfolio strategies, tactics, performance
monitoring and monthly reporting to the Commission.

The Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for overseeing the
development and implementation of investment policy review and approval of the portfolio
investment strategies, and policy compliance.



/

|

V4

%NC PA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Investment Policy and
Guidelines

No. 200-100

Page 2 of 7

Owner:
Acctg. & Finance

Effective: 9-1993
Updated 8-2017

PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS

Prudence: Management of Agency’s investments is governed by the Prudent Investor Standard
as set forth in California Government Code Section 53600.3:

“...all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments
as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.”

Personal Responsibility. The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons responsible for
managing Agency funds, acting in accordance with the Investment Policy and exercising due
diligence, will be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or
market price changes, provided appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

Ethics: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons involved in the investment
process (1) will refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution
of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment
decisions and (2) shall not accept honoraria, gifts or gratuities from any advisor, broker, dealer,
banker, or other person with whom the Agency conducts business, which has an aggregate
value in excess of $50.00 in any 12-month period.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

The overriding objectives of the investment program are to preserve principal, provide sufficient
liquidity, and achieve a reasonable rate of return. The specific objectives for the program are
ranked in order of importance:

1. Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital.

2. Liquidity. The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles taking into
account the investment risk constraints for safety and liquidity needs.



/ No. 200-100 Page 3 of 7
Investment Policy and .
L Owner: Effective: 9-1993
A‘;ﬁ,ﬁﬁ, Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 8-2017

PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT

Factors that can lead to an unexpected financial loss can be broadly grouped into the following
categories; credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

Mitigating credit risk in the portfolio: Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose
some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its
debt. Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting the following strategies:

1. Diversify the investment portfolio to mitigate losses due to failure of individual issues or
issuers;

2. Limit the amount of the total portfolio that may be invested in securities of a particular
type and any single issuer. Authorized investment limitations under this policy are shown
in Attachment 3; and,

3. If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by at least one Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) to a level below the quality required by this
Investment Policy, it will be the Agency’s policy to review and document the credit
situation and make a determination as to whether to sell or retain such securities in the
portfolio.

a. The Treasurer-Controller will use discretion in determining whether to sell or hold
the security based on its maturity, the economic outlook for the issuer, and other
relevant factors.

b. If a decision is made to retain a downgraded security in the portfolio, its presence
in the portfolio will be monitored and reported monthly to the governing board.

Mitigating market risk in the portfolio: Market risk, also referred to as interest rate risk, is the risk
that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. The Agency recognizes
that, over time, longer-term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other
hand, longer-term portfolios have higher volatility when marked-to-market. The Agency will
mitigate interest rate risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow
purposes. The Agency, therefore, shall adopt the following strategies to control and mitigate its
exposure to market risk:
1. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements;
2. The maximum time from investment to maturity of individual securities in the portfolio will
be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.

Mitigating liquidity risk in the portfolio: Liquidity risk is the inability to convert a security to cash
on a given date prior to maturity. It refers to the inability to sell a security for its cost and
therefore it may have to be sold at a loss. The Agency shall employ the following strategies to
control and mitigate its exposure to liquidity risk:
1. To the extent possible, match investment maturities with anticipated cash demands.
2. Since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, maintain portfolios largely of
securities with active secondary or resale markets.
3. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.




| ?/ No. 200-100 Page 4 of 7
g%‘f} Investg;::e:::ggy and Owner: Effective: 9-1993
S e Acctg. & Finance Updated 8-2017

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES

All investments will be made in accordance with Sections 53600 et seq. of the Government
Code of the State of California and as described within this Investment Policy. Authorized
investments under this policy are shown in Attachment 3.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish a list of approved brokers, dealers, banks and direct
issuers of commercial paper to provide investment services to the Agency. The Agency shall
conduct security transactions only with approved institutions and firms.

To be eligible for approval all broker/dealer firms must qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
and must be licensed to do business in the State of California and institutions shall have one or
more of the following attributes:

« be recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank;
« be aregional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; or

« be a national or state chartered bank which is a member of the FDIC; or

« be a direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency.

Deposits will be made only in qualified public depositories within the state of California as
established by State law. Deposits will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or, to the extent the amount exceeds the insured maximum, will be collateralized in
accordance with State law.

A pool of qualified financial institutions and dealers will be maintained by the Treasurer-
Controller using criteria based upon capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference
checks and services offered. Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to
engage in transactions with the Agency will be at the sole discretion of the Agency.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING

Authority to manage Agency's investment program is derived from the California Government
Code Sections 53600 et seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is
delegated to the Treasurer-Controller by Agency Commission Resolution No. 83-103. Pursuant
to Government Code section 53607 such delegation may be granted for a period of one-year
and must be renewed annually. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer-
Controller or his/her designee.

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls, designed to:
ensure adherence to this investment policy, the prevention and detection of errors and fraud, the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.



/ No. 200-100 Page 5 of 7
Investment Policy and .
C 0 Owner: Effective: 9-1993
Aémquw Suiceiincs Acctg. & Finance | Updated 8-2017

The Agency maintains its records on the basis of Plant/Program account groups, each of which
may include one or more investment funds. All investment transactions shall be recorded in the
various funds of the Agency in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the
Agency shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held in
the name of the Agency by a third party custodian designated by the Treasurer-Controller and
evidenced by trade confirmations and safekeeping holdings report.

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and
repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for
all funds, a minimum collateralization level measured at specified times is required.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Monthly Reports: A monthly report will be provided to the Commission by the Treasurer-
Controller. The report shall state compliance of the investment portfolio to the investment policy
and a statement that the Agency has adequate cash flow and investment maturities to meet
next month’s cash requirements and such other information as may be required by State law.

The report will disclose, at a minimum, the following information:

1. An asset listing showing par value, cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts and market value of each security, type of investment, issuer, and
interest rate;

2. The Treasurer-Controller’s report shall also provide:

a. an analysis of investment maturities;
b. a summary of cash and investment activity; and,
c. an analysis of interest rates/yields with a comparison to benchmark interest rates.

Annually: The Treasurer-Controller shall annually submit to the Commission a statement of
Investment Policy and any recommended changes to the policy.

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES

The following general operating guidelines shall be used in performing all investment functions:

» Allinvestments will be made in the name of the Northern California Power Agency.

« Allinvestments will be made in compliance with the NCPA Investment Fund Objectives
(Attachment 2) and the NCPA Table of Authorized Investments (Attachment 3) unless
otherwise required by bond indenture.

» Investments or collateral for all outside trusteed accounts must be delivered to the trustee.

« Investments or collateral for all accounts held by NCPA will be delivered to and held in the
safekeeping of an authorized financial institution.

« Allinvestment transactions will be recorded in the accounts of the Agency in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board.




No. 200-100 Page 6 of 7

Investment Policy and .
’ ey Owner: Effective: 9-1993
NCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance | Updated 8-2017

/fmnmsnm CALIFORNIA POWER ABENCY

« All accrued interest on purchased securities will be charged to the appropriate interest
income account.

» Funds deposited in banks or savings and loan associations must be held under a written
contract between the Agency and the institution, which requires collateralization as
prescribed by law and/or this investment policy.

« Whenever practical Agency cash is to be consolidated and invested on a pooled concept
basis. Interest earnings are allocated monthly according to monthly weighted average
balance for each fund.

« Unless otherwise restricted, all holdings will be of sufficient size and held in issues which are
actively traded to facilitate transactions at a minimum cost and accurate market valuation.

- Passive management portfolio strategies are preferred for all operating projects or other
Agency programs, unless otherwise prohibited or restricted.

« When practicable, competitive bidding will be utilized for all investment and reinvestment
activities not involving escrowed or other funds covered by a separate contract or
agreement.

Prohibited investment vehicles and practices:

1. Notwithstanding that any such investment is permitted under State Law, any
investment not specifically described herein is prohibited, including, but not limited to
derivatives, futures and options.

2. In accordance with California Government Code Section 53601.6, investment in
inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited.

3. Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity
is prohibited.

4. Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating, whether on the future direction
of interest rates or otherwise, is prohibited.

5. Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited.

6. The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of
borrowing or leverage is prohibited.

7. The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Glossary

Attachment 2 - Investment Fund Objectives

Attachment 3 - Table of Authorized Investments

Attachment 4 - Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments
Attachment 5 — Credit Rating Comparison




No. 200-100

Page 7 of 7

Investment Policy and

e Owner: Effective: 9-1993
mmmﬁ,!:ﬂm Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 8-2017
VERSION HISTORY
No. Explanation Date | Author
Minor language clean-up; updates to the 8/17 | MH
6 | Permitted Investments; and changes to the
Investment Fund Objectives
Revised a resolution reference 11/16 | SA
Updated maximum investment permitted by
5 |LaF
Added Authorized Financial Institution
4 | Annual review, no changes 11/15 | SA
3 | Annual review, no changes 11/14 | KWW
Combined prior policies 200-97 and 200-98;
updated to include more information on
2 | allowable investments, delegations, authorized | 11/13 | KWW
financial institutions, and operations practices,
Includes expanded attachments and glossary.
1 | Updated 9/95 | DBL
0 | Original Policy 9/93 | DBL




GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS

Agencies - Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government sponsored
enterprise (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:

« FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the agricultural
industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.

« FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market.
FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.

« FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and
liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “Freddie Mac” issues discount notes,
bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.

+ FNMA. Like FHLB and Freddie Mac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known as
“Fannie Mae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass- through securities.

Certain GSE obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. An

example is:

« GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “Ginnie Mae,” issues
mortgage pass-through securities.

Callable - A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its

maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline since an

issuer issues securities, it will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of
interest. Callable securities have reinvestment risk as the investor may receive its principal back
when interest rates are lower than when the investment was initially made.

Certificate of Deposit (CD) - A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.

Large denomination CDs may be marketable.

Collateral - Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or

repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of

public monies.

Commercial paper - Short-term unsecured debt of corporations.

Coupon - The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond.

Current yield - The annual income from an investment divided by the current market value.

Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the investor’s

cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security is held to

maturity.

Dealer - A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying

securities for his own position

Delivery vs. payment (DVP) - A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser’s agent.

Demand Deposit — Sometimes referred to as a sight or on call deposit, can be withdrawn at

any time (on demand) without notice or penalty; e.g., deposits into checking or savings

accounts.

Derivative - Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or any

security which represents a component of another security which has been separated from
other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also defined as a financial

Attachment 1



instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the value of another instrument,
interest rate or index.

Discount - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker’s acceptances, are
known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par, and return the par value to the
investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have fixed coupons, trade
at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate for securities of that
maturity and/or quality.

Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive
exposure to any one source of risk.

Duration - The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a bond to changes in
interest rates. (See modified duration).

Federal funds rate - The rate of interest charged by banks for short-term loans to other banks.
The Federal Reserve Bank through open-market operations establishes it.

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) - A self-regulatory organization for
brokerage firms doing business in the United States. FINRA operates under the supervision of
the SEC. The organization’s objectives are to protect investors and ensure market integrity.
Liquidity - refers to the requirement that some portion of cash assets be invested in securities
readily convertible into cash without loss of capital.

Make whole call - A type of call provision on a bond allowing the issuer to pay off remaining
debt early. The issuer has to make a lump sum payment derived from a formula based on the
net present value (NPV) of future coupon payments that will not be paid because of the call.
Investors will be compensated, or "made whole."

Market value - The price at which a security can be traded.

Mark to market - The process of posting current market values for securities in a portfolio.
Maturity - The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable.
Money market - The market in which short term debt instruments (Tbills, discount notes,
commercial paper and banker's acceptances) are issued and traded.

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NSRSO) - Is a credit rating agency
(CRA) that issues credit ratings that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
permits other financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. The largest NSROs are
Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Portfolio Re-Optimization - Refers to the process wherein investment broker(s) re-evaluate a
given dedicated investment portfolio using sophisticated computer programs based on the
updated program or project estimated cash flows. This is usually done to increase or protect the
portfolio’s overall rate of return as a result of changing liability amounts or dates, changing
market or credit risk condition, or a change in investment policy restrictions, etc.

Portfolio Strategy — Determining investment practices to best achieve the investors’ primary
goals. Strategies may be either passive or active. Passive strategies include: buy and hold,
which includes the laddering of maturities; and bullet structure, which is designed to invest to a
particular date or portfolio horizon; and benchmarking, which is done to mirror a particular
segment of the market. Active strategies employ additional risk to take advantage of conditions
in the fixed income markets that change as economic and financial conditions change.
Premium - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is above par.

Attachment 1



Primary Dealer - a firm that buys government securities directly from a government, with the
intention of reselling them to others, thus acting as a market maker of government securities.
The government may regulate the behavior and numbers of its primary dealers and impose
conditions of entry.
Repurchase agreement (RP, Repo) - Short term purchases of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.
Risk - refers to the degree of probability of incurring a monetary loss as a result of investing in a
particular security. Three general kinds of investment risks are:

« Credit Risk - risk that an issuer of a security cannot meet its obligations.

« Market Risk - risk from fluctuations in the market prices for individual securities over a

period of time.

« Liquidity Risk- risk of an inability to sell a security at its fair market value.
Safety - refers to the varying degrees and types of risks associated with different types of
investment securities and individual issues. Safety is a matter of degree, not an absolute.
Safekeeping - A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank (as
custodian) in the customer’s name.
Total rate of return - A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate of
return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it includes
interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio.
U.S. Treasury obligations - Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the
benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The Treasury issues
both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.
Treasury bills - All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as
discounted instruments, and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues three- and
six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash management” bills as needed
to smooth out cash flows.
Treasury notes - All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called
Treasury notes, and pay interest semi-annually.
Treasury bonds - All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.
Uniform Net Capital Rule - An SEC rule that requires broker-dealers to maintain sufficient
liquidity to protect securities customers, counterparties, and creditors. Broker-dealers must
maintain net capital (net worth adjusted by certain deductions for illiquid assets and reserves
against possible market losses on securities positions) such that the liabilities incurred by the
broker-dealer (aggregate indebtedness) do not exceed certain specified levels.
Volatility - The rate at which security prices change with changes in general economic
conditions or the general level of interest rates.
Yield to Maturity - The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost.

Attachment 1



INVESTMENT FUND OBJECTIVES

Primary Maximum
Investment Term of
Fund Type Objective Investment '
Bond Financed Project Funds: ?
Construction Fund (Geo) C 1 year
Construction Revolving Acct (LEC) A 90 days
Debt Service Fund C 1 year

Debt Service Reserve B, D 15 years

Reserve Fund B,C,D 5 years

Rebate Fund C 5 years
O&M Reserve (LEC) A B,D 5 years
Revenue Fund A B C 1 year

Additional Operating Funds:

Operating Account A C 5 years
General Operating Reserve A B, C 5 years
SCPA Balancing Account A B 5 years
Capital Development Account (Hydro) A C 5 years
Decommissioning Account (Geo) C,D 10 years

Notes:
A. Provide liquidity
B. Provide reserves against uncertain liabilities
C. Match prescribed cash flow
D. Maximize long-term return on investment

! Investments shall mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide monies
when reasonably expected to be needed for payments to be made from such fund.

2 Proceeds of debt issuance and other funds held under a bond indenture shall be invested in
accordance with the Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy;
however, such moneys are to be invested in accordance with permitted investment
provisions of their specific bond indentures.

Attachment 2



TABLE OF PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Type of Maximum % of Rating Maximum
Investment Portfolio Requirement Maturity Other Restrictions
US Treasury o
Securities 100% n/a
Federal o
Agencies 100% n/a
Local Agency Uz et;)mrril?:én;;m
Investment LAIF. currentl n/a n/a n/a
Fund (LAIF) ’ y
$65,000,000
Medium-term By a NRSRO;
Corporate 30% A or its equivalent or 5 years
Notes better
California Asset
M?D”rf)gfg’nf"t 100% nia na n/a
(CAMP)
T oSt By a NRSRO; Long-
negotiable 20% term of A or short- 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
%Ds) term of A-1 or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
Negotiable CDs 30% term of A or short- 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
term of A-1 or better
Bankers By a NRSRO; Long-
Acceptances 40% term of A or short- 180 days No more than 5% per issuer
P term of A-1 or better
. By a NRSRO; Long-
Commercial ’ Assets >$500MM
40% term of A or short- 270 days o .
Paper term of A-1 or better No more than 5% per issuer
By a NRSRO;
Highest ranking or Must be registered with SEC;
Money Narket 20% highest Assets > $500MM;
letter/numerical No more than 5% per fund
rating
Repurchase o Collateral of at least 102% of
Agreements 100% 1year market value required
By a NRSRO; Fully secured as to principal
Municioal Highest ranking or and interest by an escrow
Bon d‘; 10% highest consisting of cash or direct
letter/numerical obligations of the US
rating government

Attachment 3




TABLE OF BOND INDENTURE PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Project Geo/Hydro 2 Cap Facilities/LEC *
Debt Debt
Debt Service Debt Service
Service | Reserve | All | Service | Reserve | All
Securities 1 Acct. Acct. Other | Acct. Acct. Other
Direct obligations of the United Stated of America. X X X X X X
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X X
America.
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are not
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X X
America.
New Housing Authority bonds or notes of public agencies or
municipalities secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be X X X X
paid by the United States or agency thereof.
Direct and general obligations of the State of California or X X
political subdivision rated A or higher.
General obligation of any state rated A2 or higher. X
Time deposits, FDIC insured or collateralized. X X
Repurchase agreements, insured or collateralized. X X
Money Market Funds rated AAAm G or AAAM or better. X
Commercial Paper rated P-1 or A1+. X
UD dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds or X
bankers' acceptances with ratings of A-1, A-1+ or P-1.
Prefunded municipal obligations rated highest rating category X
by S&P or Moody's, based on an irrevocable escrow.
Investment Agreements & GICS, supported by opinion of X X X
counsel.
California LAIF. X
Shares in a California common law trust which invests
exclusively in investment permitted under CA Code section X
56635.
X

Any other form of investment.

! Investment types are detailed in each project bond Indenture of Trust. Generally, investment securities
include those listed above, if and to the extent the same are legal for investment of Agency funds. The
securities, as listed above, are summarized and may have additional limitations as to specific issuers,

ratings, term of investment, or other requirements.

2The Geothermal Project bond indenture dated November 1, 1983 and the Hydroelectric Project bond
indenture dated March 1, 1985 have the same definition for investment securities.

® The Capital Facilities Project bond indenture dated January 1, 2010 and the Lodi Energy Center Issues

One and Two, dated June 1, 2010 have the same definition for investment securities.

Attachment 4




CREDIT RATINGS COMPARISON

Standard
Description Moody’s & Poors Fitch
Long- Short- Long- Short- Long- Short-
term term term term term term
Prime:
Extremely Strong Aaa AAA AAA
High Grade:
Very Strong Aa1l AA+ A-1+ AA+ F1+
Aa2 P-1 AA AA
Aa3 AA- AA-
Upper Medium
Grade:
Strong A1 A+ A-1 A+ F1
A2 A A
A3 A- A-
Lower Medium
Grade: P-2 A-2 F2
Adequate Baa1 BBB+ BBB+
Baa2 P-3 BBB A-3 BBB F3
Baa3 BBB- BBB-
Non-investment
Grade speculative:
Vulnerable Ba1 BB+ BB+
Not
Ba2 Prime BB B BB B
Ba2 BB- BB-

Credit ratings are opinions about credit risk published by a rating agency. They express
opinions about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation, state or city
government, to meet its financial obligations in accordance with the terms of those obligations.

Credit ratings are also opinions about the credit quality of an issue, such as a bond or other debt
obligation, and the relative likelihood that it may default.

The Agency shall not invest in any security rated less than single A.

Attachment 5



/

A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 16, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017
SUBJECT: Approval of CY 2018 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

5

AGM, Power Management N/A

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

FROM: David Dockhamgvy METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [] City of Lodi
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto X
City of Biggs City of Redding [
City of Gridley City of Roseville [1
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara []

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X X O

o 0O X

SR: 191:17



Approval of CY 2018 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates
August 24, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission approve and adopt the Local Area and
System Resource Adequacy capacity rates proposed herein for use in the NCPA Capacity
Pool, as described in Pooling Schedule 4 of the Second Amended and Restated Pooling
Agreement, during the 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Capacity Pool was developed and incorporated into the Second Amended and
Restated Pooling Agreement to provide a mechanism for Pool members’ to voluntarily transact
Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity in an efficient manner through the NCPA
All Resources Bill. In accordance with Pooling Schedule 4, Section 3.8, an ad hoc group of
Pool members is to be organized to develop and propose Local Area and System Resource
Adequacy capacity rates to the Commission for approval, and pending such approval will be
used to price Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity transactions executed in the
NCPA Capacity Pool.

DISCUSSION:

An ad hoc group of Pool members has been organized to develop Local Area and System
Resource Adequacy capacity rates to be used in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2018
Resource Adequacy compliance year?. The ad hoc group of Pool members organized to
develop Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity rates used a combination of
formal and informal market price surveys to develop a negotiated rate for Local Area and
System Resource Adequacy capacity to be used within the NCPA Capacity Pool. NCPA, on
behalf of the Pool members, is seeking Commission approval of the developed Local Area and
System Resource capacity rates for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2018 Resource
Adequacy compliance year.

CAPACITY RATES:

The following Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity rates have been developed
for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year:

e Local Area Capacity Rate - $1.85 / kW-Month
o System Capacity Rate - $1.00 / KW-Month

FISCAL IMPACT:
Work associated with development of the NCPA Capacity Pool Local Area and System

Resource Adequacy capacity rates has been undertaken pursuant to approved Power
Management budget categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in

T NCPA Pool members include the Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo
Alto, Ukiah, the Port of Oakland, and Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.

2 The 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year encompasses the period of January 2018 through
December 2018.

SR: 191:17



Approval of CY 2018 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates
August 24, 2017
Page 3

accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual
budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation provided herein was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2,
2017, and was recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

QreA N LA

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Resolution 17-67

SR: 191:17



RESOLUTION 17-67

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF CY 2018 NCPA CAPACITY POOL RATES

(reference Staff Report #191:17)

WHEREAS, the NCPA Capacity Pool was developed and incorporated into the Second Amended and
Restated Pooling Agreement to provide a mechanism for Pool members' to voluntarily transact Local Area and
System Resource Adequacy capacity in an efficient manner through the NCPA All Resources Bill; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Pooling Schedule 4, Section 3.8, an ad hoc group of Pool members is to
be organized to develop and propose Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity rates to the
Commission for approval, and pending such approval will be used to price Local Area and System Resource
Adequacy capacity transactions executed in the NCPA Capacity Pool; and

WHEREAS, an ad hoc group of Pool members has been organized to develop Local Area and System
Resource Adequacy capacity rates to be used in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2018 Resource Adequacy
compliance year?; and

WHEREAS, the ad hoc group of Pool members organized to develop Local Area and System Resource
Adequacy capacity rates used a combination of formal and informal market price surveys to develop a negotiated
rate for Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity to be used within the NCPA Capacity Pool; and

WHEREAS, the following Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity rates have been
developed for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year: (1) Local
Area Capacity Rate of $1.85/kW-month, and (2) System Capacity Rate of $1.00/kW-month; and

WHEREAS, work associated with development of the NCPA Capacity Pool Local Area and System
Resource Adequacy capacity rates has been undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget
categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves the Local Area and System Resource Adequacy capacity rates proposed herein for use
in the NCPA Capacity Pool, as further described in Pooling Schedule 4 of the Second Amended and Restated
Pooling Agreement, during the 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year.

TNCPA Pool members include the Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Ukiah, the
Port of Oakland, and Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.
2 The 2018 Resource Adequacy compliance year encompasses the period of January 2018 through December 2018.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

on roll call;

Vote
Alameda

, 2017 by the following vote

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-67

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



W A PUBLIS ACENLY

/INCP

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 16, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017
SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment to Facilities Agreement Schedule 2

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: David Dockham METHOD OF SELECTION:

AGM, Power Management N/A

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members [] City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc X City of Ukiah
Bay Area Rapid Transit X City of Palo Alto X Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara X Other

X X 0O

X

o o

SR: 192:17

1%



Approval of Amendment to Facilities Agreement Schedule 2
August 24, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt and approve an amendment to
Facilities Schedule 2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, to include the
Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility as a NCPA Project.

BACKGROUND:

Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) recently entered into a renewable energy power
purchase agreement under which NCPA, on behalf of certain participating Members, will
purchase renewable energy output produced by the Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility.
When the Commission authorized NCPA to enter into said power purchase agreement, the
Commission also officially deemed the power purchase agreement to be a NCPA Project.
Pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, all NCPA Projects
shall be listed in Facilities Schedule 2.

AMENDMENT:
To ensure the Facilities Schedule 2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement is
consistent with Commission action, Facilities Schedule 2 needs to be amended to include the

Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility in the list of NCPA Projects. NCPA staff propose to
amended the Facilities Schedule 2 to include the Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility.

For your reference, please find attached an amended Facilities Schedule 2, which includes the
Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with development of this amendment are included as part of the NCPA annual
budget, and such costs shall be allocated in accordance with the NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2, 2017, and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

7,”/\& l%"/l

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Resolution 17-68
Facilities Schedule 2, NCPA Projects

SR: 192:17



RESOLUTION 17-68

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO FACILITIES AGREEMENT SCHEDULE 2

(reference Staff Report #192:17)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”") recently entered into a renewable energy power
purchase agreement under which NCPA, on behalf of certain participating Members, will purchase renewable
energy output produced by the Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility; and

WHEREAS, when the Commission authorized NCPA to enter into said power purchase agreement, the
Commission also officially deemed the power purchase agreement to be a NCPA Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, all NCPA
Projects shall be listed in Facilities Schedule 2; and

WHEREAS, to ensure the Facilities Schedule 2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement is
consistent with Commission action, Facilities Schedule 2 needs to be amended to include the Antelope
Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility in the list of NCPA Projects; and

WHEREAS, NCPA staff propose to amended the Facilities Schedule 2 to include the Antelope Expansion
Phase 1 Solar Facility, and such amendment is attached to Staff Report #192:17 for reference (the
“‘“Amendment’); and

WHEREAS, costs associated with development of this amendment are included as part of the NCPA
annual budget, and such costs shall be allocated in accordance with the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves the Amendment to Facilities Schedule 2 of the Amendment and Restated Facilities
Agreement, to include the Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility as a NCPA project.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

call:

Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

, 2017 by the following vote on roll

Vote Abstained

Absent

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-68

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT

ASSISTANT SECRETARY



FACILITIES SCHEDULE 2
NCPA PROJECTS

Each of the following Projects have been designated by the Commission as a
NCPA Project, therefore subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement:

North Fork Stanislaus River Hydroelectric Development Project
Combustion Turbine Project Number One
Combustion Turbine Project Number Two-Unit One
NCPA Geothermal Generating Unit #2 Project
Geothermal Generating Project Number 3
Seattle City Light Capacity and Energy Exchange Third Phase Agreement
Amended NCPA Green Power Project Third Phase Agreement
* NCPA Solar PV Project

Antelope Expansion Phase 1 Solar Facility

1
AMENDED AND RESTATED FACILITIES AGREEMENT
FACILITIES SCHEDULE 2



/
r 4

A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

August 24, 2017

SUBJECT: Kinectrics North America, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for generator testing and assessment services; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA

Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Department: Hydroelectric

FROM: Ken Speer \(/S

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o 0o 0O O O

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0o o o o o

SR: 193:17

7



Kinectrics North America, Inc — 5 Year MTPSA
August 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-69 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics North America, Inc. for generator
testing and assessment services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Generator testing and assessment services are required from time to time related to project
support at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements with
similar service providers including Andritz Hydro, HDR Engineering, Quality Generator Services,
and Siemens Energy. NCPA seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services
are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 193:17



Kinectrics North America, Inc — 5 Year MTPSA
August 15, 2017

Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on consent calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 14, 2017 and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics North America, Inc.

SR: 193:17



RESOLUTION 17-69

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
KINECTRICS NORTH AMERICA, INC.

(reference Staff Report #193:17)

WHEREAS, generator testing and assessment services are periodically required at the facilities
owned and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its members, the Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, Kinectrics North America, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, on August 14, 2017, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the
agreement with Kinectrics North America, Inc., in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over five years;
and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement with Kinectrics North America, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for
engineering consulting services related to project support and plant operations for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), or by SCPPA members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ____ day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call;

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
COMMISSION VICE CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
KINECTRICS NORTH AMERICA, INC.

This agreement for professional services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (‘Agency”) and Kinectrics North America, Inc., a corporation with its office
located at 800 Kipling Avenue, Unit 2, Toronto, Ontario, M8Z 5G5 Canada (“Consultant”) (together

sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 201_ (“Effective Date”) in Roseville,
California.
Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant

shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the manner specified therein.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth
herein.

Consultant warrants that the Services, excluding any as may be performed under the
direction or supervision of the Agency, performed pursuant to this Agreement will be
performed in a professional manner consistent with the standards of quality and care
typical within the industry at the time of performance for similar work. Such warranty will be
effective for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion of the Service. Any such
Services performed by Consultant which do not conform with Consultant's above-stated
warranty obligation will be re-performed by Consultant at Consultant’ expense upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency; or if in Consultant’s reasonable judgment re-
performance is impracticable or impossible, Consultant will refund to Agency the price paid
to Consultant for the non-conforming Services. The warranties and remedies set forth
herein are exclusive, and no other warranty or remedy of any kind, whether statutory,
written, oral, express, or implied, including without limitation warranties of performance,
merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, shall apply.

Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall,

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
26516171

Page 1 of 22



1.4

1.5

Section 2.

21

immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may include
Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's Services
under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall
identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested Services"), may include a not-to-
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed.
Consultant shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency'’s issuance of the
Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the
Requested Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period
specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services on the
terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO
EXCEED One Million dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Consultant performing services hereunder where work is performed on a time &
materials basis only; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks, for each
work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries showing the name of
the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of
the work, and each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 2 of 22



22

2.3

24

25

Section 3.

Agency's reasonable satisfaction, for work performed on a time & materials basis
only.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of
written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant fails to submit
an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is
deemed to have waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole

cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,

Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41

Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. Consultant shall ensure that any
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance (or similar,
non-U.S. coverage) maintained by Consultant covers any and all persons employed
directly or indirectly to perform Services under this Agreement, no matter where such
persons perform the Services.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 3 of 22



4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4,22 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3  Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in connection with this
Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and two million
dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Consultant's errors and omissions. Any
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($250,000) per claim. Such insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the
following conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective
Date of this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be
provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services,
coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
the Services and, if requested by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 4 of 22
2651617.1



4.4

4.5

4.6

Section 5.

5.1

All Policies Requirements.

441 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

443 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Consultant.

444 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides services to
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, Agency shall have the right
to require the Consultant to provide certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific Agency
member, SCPPPA or Agency member for which the Services are to be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. For any U.S.-based Workers' Compensation policy, the policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by
Consultant, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 5 of 22



5.2

Section 6.

indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims that arise out of, pertain to
or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its
performance of Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs,
damages, expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such
obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the
extent that such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful
misconduct of the Agency.

Notwithstanding the above, Consultant’s total aggregate liability for damages arising from
any cause or action whatsoever shall be limited to the applicable policy limit amounts
detailed in Section 4 above (as long as Consultant maintains in effect and applicability the
required insurance, including but not limited to the amounts, deductibles, and scope
referenced herein) or, for claims not covered by insurance, one million dollars ($1 million).
In no event shall Consultant at any time be liable to the Agency for any indirect, incidental
or consequential damages which may be sustained by them, including but not limited to
loss of revenue, profit, business reputation or opportunity whether such liability arises out
of contract, tort, strict liability, warranty or other legal theory whether at law, in equity or
otherwise.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 6 of 22



Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant’s failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that for any U.S. employees, it is responsible for the provision of group
healthcare benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold
harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act
resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor
of Consultant

6.2  Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Revd 5/4/16 Page 7 of 22
26516171



6.4

Section 7.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71
7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination, as well as Consultant’s
actual, direct, unavoidable direct costs resulting from such termination. “Actual, direct,
unavoidable costs” means the cost of any preapproved uncancellable commitments
incurred prior to the date of termination and similar costs, but shall not include profit or
overhead expenses of Consultant. Consultant shall make every reasonable effort to
minimize such costs upon termination. In no event shall the compensation of Consultant
provided for in this Section exceed the cost of the applicable Purchase Order(s); Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.41 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
26516171

Page 8 of 22



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain adifferent consultant to complete the Services not finished by Consultant;
and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the Services that

is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, Consultant will own the
entire right, title and interest to its own background intellectual property and nothing in this
Agreement is intended to diminish that ownership interest and/or transfer, grant or bestow
any right, title or interest in the Agency or any other party, including any ownership or
license interest therein.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, Agency shall not audit

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 9 of 22



the cost or pricing components of any fixed price work. Note: Agency makes no
guarantees or representations concerning the scope of an audit by the State Auditor
pursuant to California law.

94 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

9.43 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 10 of 22
2651617.1



Section 10.

9.44 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastem District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 11 of 22



Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

10.7  Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or hisfher designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

10.8  Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Kinectrics Inc.

Attn: Jeff Lewis, Legal Counsel
800 Kipling Avenue, Unit 2
Toronto, Ontario M8Z 5G5
Canada

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9  Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, for engineering
work, the first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional
responsible for the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 12 of 22

2651617.1



10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process falils, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a
Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In the case of any
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Consultant's Proposal, the
Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 13 of 22

2651617.1



10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively for the purpose of this Section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the
parties recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the
Purchase Order and Requested Services relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY KINECTRICS NORTH AMERICA, INC.
Date Date

RANDY HOWARD, General Manager SHAHROKH ZANGENEH, VP of Sales
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 14 of 22

2651617.1



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Kinectrics North America, Inc. ("Contractor”) as requested by Northern California Power Agency ("Agency"),
Agency Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members, shall perform the following services including, without
limitation:

Standard Generator Testing and Assessment;

Perform limited visual inspection and off-line diagnostic testing of one generator stator winding,
includes the following:

Stator Winding Insulation Resistance and Polarization Index:

Both single phase (A, B, C) and three phase testing (ABC) are required for assessment of the
condition of the insulation system at 5 kV.

Testing is a requirement to ensure a minimum insulation condition prior to proceeding with
diagnostic testing in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 43. Table 4 of this standard
indicates the minimum recommended insulation resistance, in MQ at 40°C, of the entire machine
winding (ABC) of 100 MQ as a prerequisite for further testing.

Stator Winding Capacitance and Dissipation Factor (tan 5) Test:

Typically single phase testing (A, B, C) is required for assessment of the condition of the insulation
system.

Note: An advance Capacitance & Dissipation Factor measurements between phase to phase can
also be performed to obtain additional information of the insulation condition. However, in order to
perform this test a higher capacity power supply may be required to energize the winding with
additional cost.

Tan & testing evaluates various factors that influence the performance of the overall electrical
insulation. Bridge techniques will be employed to properly measure and assess the extent of
pulseless and pseudo glow discharge activity. Testing is performed in accordance with the
requirements of IEEE 286 on each phase at up to rated line to neutral voltage.

Stator Winding Off-Line Partial Discharge Testing:
Measurement of the partial discharge quantities Qiec and Qu, as well as PDEV and PDIV are

required, in the single phase (A, B, C) configuration with coupling capacitors installed at both the
line end and neutral end of the winding for simultaneous measurements.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 15 of 22

2651617.1



Note: An advance PD measurements for additional cost can also be performed by connecting all
three phases together so as to distinguish between the slot and endwinding discharges; however in
this case a higher capacity power supply is normally required due to high capacitance of the
complete machine.

Two different methods of measuring PD will be performed with instrumentation using different
frequency ranges and sensitivities to different types of PD activity. Measurements of Qiec will be
performed first, followed by measurements of Q.

Off-line partial discharge testing evaluates various factors that influence the performance of
electrical insulation associated with electrical discharges near the Line End of the stator winding.
Testing is normally performed in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 1434 and/or IEC
60034-27-1.

<

Stator Winding Electromagnetic (Corona or TVA) Test

Single phase (A, B, C) testing is required. During testing of each phase, all slots containing a stator
coil in either the top or bottom of the slot are scanned. The slots are divided into at least two
sections, to allow differentiation of PD originating from each end of the core.

It is recommended that an AC overvoltage voltage test in accordance with IEEE 62.2 7.1.5 of at
least 1.10 to 1.25 times the rated line-to-neutral voltage of the machine is performed prior to
performing a TVA probe test (for safety). This overvoltage test provides some assurance of the
integrity of the winding being tested.

=

Stator Winding Ultrasonic Inspection and/or Corona Camera/Corona Scope Inspection of
Winding Connection End

Testing is used to identify locations of PD within the end arm region of a stator winding. A scan of
the end arm region of the connection end of the stator is performed using the ultrasonic detector to
identify locations of partial discharge. An audio scans can localize areas of partial discharge which
are not within line of sight

A corona scope and/or daylight corona camera, can be used to perform limited localization of PD in
end winding region and requires direct line of sight.

VIl.  Stator Winding Resistance
Winding resistance testing can detect the presence of any high resistance joints, corrosion, or

fractures of the conductors. The DC winding resistance of each phase (A1, A2, B1, B2, C1, C2) is
measured using a Kelvin bridge in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between (GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 16 of 22

26516171



=

>

<

=

[

[0

Stator AC Overvoltage Withstand Test

AC testing results in the highest stress levels on the insulation system within the slot section of the
stator core. Acceptance test levels for new machines are 2E+1, while typical maintenance levels
are 1.25 to 1.50E (E = Rated line to line voltage). Withstand testing provides some assurance that
the winding insulation has a minimum level of electrical strength required to successfully operate
for the expected design life or certain period of time. Testing is performed on each phase in
accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2 on each phase for one minute, with the remaining
phases grounded. Partial discharge measurements are performed at the withstand voltage level
during the test.

Stator Winding DC Ramped Overvoltage Test

DC testing results in the highest stress levels on the insulation system in the end arm region.
Typical maintenance levels are 1.25 to 1.50E (E = Rated line to line voltage, AC X 1.7 = DC).
Ramp testing provides some assurance that the winding insulation has a minimum level of
electrical strength required for continued operation. Testing is performed in accordance with the

requirements of IEEE 95 on each phase using a 2 KV/min ramping rate, with the remaining phases
grounded.

Stator Winding Limited Stator Winding Inspection

Visual Inspection of the stator winding assembly in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2
Additional Generator Tests;

Stator Slot Wedge Tightness

The stator Slot Wedge Tightness of the machine will be checked, and areas of concern would be
noted. Testing is performed in accordance with the requirements of |[EEE 62.2

Stator Core Low Energy (EICID) Test

The condition of the interlaminar resistance between stator punchings of the machine core is
evaluated. Testing is performed in accordance with the requirements of [EEE 62.2 using a digital
EICID test set and findings are recorded.

Isolated Phase Bus Test
Perform an AC Hipot of 27 kV for 1 minute (15 kV Class Iso-Phase Bus), followed by measurement

of Partial discharge activity at 10.5 kV. Testing is amenable to detecting cracked insulators,
moisture, loose connections and mounting hardware, and foreign materials.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 17 of 22

2651617.1



l.  Failure Analysis and Other Miscellaneous Technical Assistance

Perform document review for NCPA on an as requested basis.

lll. Qualification Testing of 13.8kV stator bars and coils in accordance with IEEE 1310, IEEE
1043 and IEEE 1553.

The following qualification testing consisting of Thermal Cycling Test (TCT) in accordance with [EEE
1310 followed by Voltage Endurance Test (VET) in accordance with IEEE 1043 and 1553 is performed
on newly manufactured stator bars and coils.:

Note: In case of bars normally five bars are required to perform the qualification test and in case of
coils normally three coils are required.

THERMAL CYCLING TEST:

The thermal cycling work to be performed on stator bars/coils consists of:

1. Uncrating and performance of an incoming inspection of the stator bars/coils to ensure that no transit
damage has occurred.

Perform an initial diagnostic sub-cycle on each stator bar/coil consisting of

N>

Tap tests on the coils.

Slot corona protection surface resistance measurement.

Capacitance, dissipation factor at 0.2, 0.4, 0.6, 0.8, 1.0 Un of rated line to line voltage.

Partial discharge measurements up to 8 kV or 13.8kV ac rms.

Dimensional measurements in accordance with IEEE 1310

Surge testing (coils only): The initial surge testing of the tum insulation will be performed at 40 kV
(3.5 p.u.), 100ns as per IEEE 522. The final surge testing will be performed on completion of 500
cycles on thermal cycling. The final turn insulation will be performed at 75% i.e. 30kV on each cail.

ulutieliefle-l:-

floo

Performance of thermal cycling test on stator bars/coils as per the requirements of IEEE 1310-1996.
Control bar/coil will be used to provide copper temperature measurements and hence to control the
thermal cycling process. The thermal cycle profile will be 40°C-155°C-40°C with an average rate of
increase/decrease as permitted by IEEE 1310-1996. The number of thermal cycles shall be 500.

[l

Perform a diagnostic sub-cycle after 100, 250 and 500 thermal cycles on each bar/coil that has been
subjected to thermal cycling. The measurements to be performed as per clause 2 above.

VOLTAGE ENDURANCE TEST:
The voltage endurance test will be performed on bars/coils on successful completion of Thermal Cycling and
surge testing in case of coils in accordance to [EEE 1043 and 1553.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Revd 5/4/16 Page 18 of 22
2651617.1



The test conditions shall be as follows:
e Bars/coils at 30kV (Schedule ‘A’) for 400 hours or (Schedule ‘B’) for 250 hours as per I[EEE 1553.
Temperature between 90 °C and 130°C (TBD).

Pass/Fail Criteria:
Surge Test (Coils Only):
This is a pass or fail test with no failures permitted.

The waveform from this test is to be compare with the original test to ensure no shorts have developed
between turns. A waveshape resulting from any applied surge voltage on any coil that does not match the
waveshape on the master coil is considered a fail.

If a failure occurs, the entire lot of bars/coils will be rejected.

The additional expense for dissection and failure analysis will be mutually discussed and agreed
upon between Kinectrics and Agency.

Thermal Cycling Test:

During the thermal cycling process, the diagnostic testing of the bars/coils at the 100, 250 and 500 cycle
mark will assist in determining how any one bar/coil is performing as the test is progressing and how any one
bar/coil performed when the test is completed. Based on experience with these diagnostic tests, it will
determine if the testing of any said bar/coil should continue through to the voltage endurance test or not.
Utility and Vendor shall discuss, in detail, precisely what constitutes a failed thermal cycled bar/coil before
testing begins.

Voltage Endurance Testing:
The bars/coils shall be subject to the acceptance criteria as outline in IEEE 1553, Section 5.

Note 1: Failure of the insulation system anywhere on the bar/coil, including the semi-con / grading interface
is not permitted, this will be considered a fail.

Note 2: The area of the bar/coil that encompasses the semiconducting to grading tape interface shall not
show any signs of physical erosion of the grading or semiconducting tape of any kind such as but not limited
to, cracking, abrading, flaking, bumn through, etc. The interface area shall be defined as the area where the
grading tape overlaps the semi-conducting tape, plus up to 3.0 linear inches towards the end winding as
followed along the grading tape surface.

Physical erosion of this interface area shall be considered a failure for this bar/coil. Discoloration of this
interface area is permitted. There are no exceptions to this qualifying point.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 19 of 22
2651617.1



Dissections: Upon completion of the thermal cycling and post-TC testing, a minimum of one bar/coil per

lab test shall be dissected and microscopically examined to determine the failure mechanism or to confirm

the winding quality. Any delamination within the ground-wall insulation or de-bonding between the

conductor strands and the ground-wall insulation and/or turn insulation as well as discoloration in the

insulation structure shall result in rejection of the bars/coils.

a. Delamination is defined as the separation of the ground-wall tape layers due to loss of bonding
strength and/or impregnating compound.

b. De-bonding is defined as the lack of adhesion between the layers in an insulation system due to

improperly cured resins or lack of resin or a fracturing of the crystalline resin in the insulation

matrix.

Discoloration is defined as a change in the colour of the insulation structure from the normal

translucent brown colour (securely bonded regions) to an opaque white colour (poorly bonded or

delaminated regions).

[©

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 20 of 22
2651617.1



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed $1,000,000 subject to
Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount

of expenses is as follows:

Standard Generator Testing and Assessment: $39,000
Advance Generator Testing and Assessment: TBD
Additional Generator Tests

1. Wedge Test: $9,500

2. ELCID Test: $11,500

3. Iso-Phase Bus Test: $4,500
Additional Day (Mon-Fri): $6,000
Additional Day (Sat-Sun): $8,000
Technical Assistance and Document Review:

1. Hourly Rate: $200/Hour
2. Expenses: Expenses + 15% Handling Fee

Qualification Testing of 13.8kV stator bars/coils: $55,000 (Does not include any failure analysis
and/or repeat testing in case of any failure of the samples)

=<

NOTES:

e Pricing is valid to December 31, 2018 and is subject to a 3% per year escalation for following
years.

¢ Reimbursable expenses will be billed as separate line items.

» As apublic agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Intemal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-055

Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2651617.1

Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT
SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE
PROJECT MANAGER.

2830776.3

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics Inc.

Revd 5/4/16
2651617.1

GS-VEN-2017-055

Page 22 of 22



2%

M0 A PuBLIC AGENCY

PA

r 4
; =)N('JRT('lEFH’d CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 16, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017

SUBJECT: Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech — First Amendment to Five
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Generation Plant Facilities, Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer 7(5 METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager  N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD []

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 194:17



Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc., dba Martech — First Amendment to Five Year MTGSA
August 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-70 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Mechanical Analysis/Repair,
Inc., dba Martech, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $550,000 over five years for use at any facilities
owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, SCPPA or SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Various machining services are required at the NCPA, member, SCPPA and SCPPA member
locations from time to time. Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech is a provider of these
services. NCPA entered into a Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech effective June 9, 2014 for an amount not to
exceed $200,000. The Agency has utilized this vendor more often than originally estimated and
the agreement has run low on funds. This amendment will increase the not to exceed amount
from $200,000 to $550,000 and add additional facility locations. This agreement will be for use
at any facility owned and/or operated by the Agency, its Members, SCPPA or SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $550,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 194:17



Mechanical Analysis/Repair, inc., dba Martech — First Amendment to Five Year MTGSA
August 15, 2017
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilites Committee on August 2, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on consent calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 14, 2017 and was approved.

Respecitfully submitted,

o 8 1A

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement for with Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba
Martech
o First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement for with Mechanical
Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

SR: 194:17



RESOLUTION 17-70

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH MECHANICAL ANALYSIS/REPAIR, INC. DBA MARTECH
(reference Staff Report #194:17)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) facilities, its Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) and SCPPA Members require machining services at its various locations;
and

WHEREAS, Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech entered into a five year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement effective June 9, 2014; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $550,000; and add
additional delivery facility locations including all NCPA facilities, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members:
and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech, with any non-substantial changes as
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $550,000 over five years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIE AGENEY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
MECHANICAL ANALYSIS/REPAIR, INC. dba MARTECH

This agreement for general services ("Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (*Agency”) and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech, a CA corporation with its office
located at 142 N. Cluff Avenue, Lodi, CA 95240 {"Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the
"Parties”) as of {Q[C[ Z , 2014 (“Effective Date") in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing fo provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work'"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shaII :nclude a tlme by whlch the
Requested Workshall-becompleted: - :

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO
EXCEED TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($200,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech.

6/25/12
1926708.1

G-t 2D Db>



Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

» The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with alf of the

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In

~ therevent Contractor fails to-submit-an-invoice toAgency forany-amounts-due-within-the-

ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final

21
Work performed;
Contractor performing work hereunder.
Inveices shall be sent to:
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
2.2
requirements above to pay Contractor.
23
24
Order from the Contract Administrator.
2.5
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.
Section 3.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole

- cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 2 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,

Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41  Workers’ Compensation. if Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain

Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.22

423

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
fiability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum fimit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a selfinsured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

General Liability/lUmbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally.left blank.

44  All Policies Requirements.

4.4

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 30f 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



4.5

4.6

Section 5.

Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant fo this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice fo Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Contractor.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents
or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does nof relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without fimitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 4 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

independent Contractor. Confractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, faw, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement fo any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.
6.1
Contractor.
6.2
to bind Agency fo any obligation whatsoever.
6.3

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to_ Agency for entering into this Agreement was and_is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such Work. The

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 5 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



6.4

subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its

obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71
7.2

7.3

74

Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shali comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Work Requiring Payment of Prevailing Wages. If applicable, in accordance with
California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which these services are to be
performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and
overtime work fixed as provided in the California Labor Code shall be paid to all workers
engaged in performing the services under this Agreement,

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitied to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 6 of 18

6/25/12
1826708.1



Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain adifferent Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
8.44 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is

unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor to this

8.4
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;
and/or
Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.
9.1
documents.
9.2
Agreement.
9.3

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying-at-any time-during regularbusiness hours; upon-oratorwritten-request-of the--
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 7 0f 18

6/25/12
1926708.1




9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor fo provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, Contractors, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, govemment or

regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and
9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Conclusion of Agreement. Receiving
Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential Information (including
all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if requested by Disclosing
Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 8 0f 18

6/25/12
1826708.1



copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of

this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal

department files; and {(c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such

copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the

Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving

Party’s employees, agents, Contractors, contractors and subcontractors who have
- aneed to know in connection with this Agreement.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as fo cause a minimum of
interference with Agency’s operations and the operations of other contractors at the
Project site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Agency will not be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials
which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such.
Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Agency may assume that anything left on the
Project site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed has been
abandoned. Any transportation furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommeodation
and Agency shall have no liability therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized
vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is
utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractorin
the Work shall be new and in good condition:

Use of Agency Equipment, Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any Agency owned equipment and property provided by Agency for the

Section 10. = PROJECT SITE.
10.1
Contractor's Work.
10.2
10.3
performance of Work.
Section11.  WARRANTY.
111

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 8 of 18

6/25/12
1826708.1



11.2

11.3

Section 12.

other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. f during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and

enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all Agency site programs.

124

12.2

12.3

12.4

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to

comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 10 of 18

6/25112
1926708.1



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

Section 13

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subconiractors that any employee, who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials to include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

133

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, fo enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable aftorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement, -

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, inc. dba Martech. Page 11 0f 18

6/2512
1926708.1



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Martech

Attention: Rick Leddy
142 N. Cluff Avenue
Lodi, CA 95240

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

James H. Pope

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 120f 18

6/26/12
1926708.1



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10 [ntegration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits aftached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

13.114 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition te this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
" notTintended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods forfiling
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 13 0f 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY MECHANICAL ANALYSIS/REPAIR, INC. dba
MARTECH

Date alq !H" Dat é}, }:\' 2(),1/ %

JAMES H. POPE, General Manager

Attest:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 14 of 18
6/25/12

1926708.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Martech (“Contractor”) shall provide machining services as requested by the Northern California Power
Agency (‘Agency”).

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Machining

Balancing

Hydroelectric Services

AC/DC Motor Rewind and Rebuild
Rebuild or re-manufacturing of equipment
Maintenance

e @ @& @ o o

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, [nc. dba Martech. Page 15 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount as set forth in
Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount

of expenses is as follows:

Prevailing Wage Rate Sheet by County — 2014

San Joaquin County
Electrician/Wireman
o Straight Time $108.00
e Overtime $130.50
e Double Time $153.00
Millwright
e Straight Time $118.00
e Qvertime $141.50
¢ Double Time $165.00
Laborer
e Straight Time $ 94.00
e Overtime $110.50
Double Time $128.00
Calaveras County
Electrician/Wireman
e Straight Time $ 105.00
e Overtime $ 130.50
e Double Time $156.00
Millwright
e Straight Time : $116.00
e Overtime $ 139.00
e Double Time $161.50
Laborer
e Straight Time $ 93.00
~ e Overtime "~ $110:50
Double Time $128.00

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northemn California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 16 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



Alameda County

Electrician/Wireman :
e Straight Time $ 135.00
e Overtime $ 167.50
e Double Time $200.00
Millwright
e Straight Time $123.00
e Overtime $139.00
¢ Double Time $ 162.00
Laborer
e Straight Time $ 94.50
e Overtime $ 112,50
¢ Double Time A $ 130.50
Lake County
Electrician/Wireman
e Straight Time $112.00
e Overtime $ 142,50
¢ Double Time $173.00
Millwright
e Straight Time $ 116.00
e Overtime $139.00
¢ Double Time $161.50
Laborer
e Straight Time $ 93.00
e Overtime $110.50
e Double Time $ 128.00

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 17 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

" Rachard AL Resdont

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
Mechmx@.&ﬁ@,&@&@

(Company name)

for contract work at

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as regu
above-named project.

-

~ (Bignatuire of offcer or agent)

_
Dated this 5 dayot_ VL (Y

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT
SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE
PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech. Page 18 of 18

6/25/12
1926708.1



NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND MECHANICAL ANALYSIS/REPAIR, INC. DBA
MARTECH

This First Amendment (“Amendment’) to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by and
between the Northern California Power Agency (‘Agency”) and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc, dba
Martech (“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2017.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective June 9, 2014, (the “Agreement”) for Contractor to provide machining services (“Work”), as more
specifically detailed in the Agreement to NCPA; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total compensation
authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $200,000.00 to a ‘NOT TO EXCEED
amount of $550,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to allow Contractor to provide Work
to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and/or SCPPA members on
the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, as amended herein; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to add miscellaneous provisions as
set forth below; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
A. Section 1.4-Work Provided is replaced in its entirety by the following Section 1.4.
1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this

Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA") or
SCPPA members.

B. Section 1.5-Request for Work to be Performed is added to the Agreement as follows:

1.5  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed (“Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech
Page 10f 8



expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the
date of the Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to perform
the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within
the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

C. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED
FIFTY THOUSAND dollars ($550,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs,
expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that
Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

D. Section 4.5.4-Additional Certificates and Endorsements is added to the Agreement as follows:

454 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for Agency

members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement, Agency shall the
right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

E. Section 6.1-Independent Contractor is amended to add the following to that section;

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor’s failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

F. Section 6.5-Maintenance Labor Agreement is added to the Agreement as follows:

6.5

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar
documentation as to compliance.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

Page 2 of 8



G. Section 7-LEGAL REQUIREMENTS of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Section 7.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71
7.2

7.3

74

7.5

1.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

Page 3 of 8



Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

H. Section 10-PROJECT SITE of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Section 10.

PROJECT SITE.

101

10.2

10.3

Project Site Locations. The Project site at which Contractor may perform Work under
this Agreement shall include any facilities owned and/or operated by the Agency, by the
Agency's members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA members.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with Agency’s operations; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is
performing the Work as referenced in Section 1.4, and the operations of other contractors
at the Project site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury.
Upon completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site
clean and free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or
relating to Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the work as referenced in Section 1.4, may assume that
anything left on the Project site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed
has been abandoned. Any transportation furnished by Agency and, if applicable, by the
entity for which Contractor is performing the work as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation without any liability therefor to Contractor or other party.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

Page 4 of 8



10.4

Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and
hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All
materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment and property owned and/or provided by Agency, its members,
SCPPA, or SCPPA members for the performance of Work.

l. Section 12.10 is added to the Agreement to read as follows:

12.10

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to Section 1.4
hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency under Sections 12.1,
12.2,12.4,12.5, and 12.6 hereof. In addition, Contractor’s actions under the initial
paragraph of Section 12 shall comply with all site programs established by Member if
Contractor is performing Work for that Member.

J. Section 13.8-Notices is amended to specify, as to NCPA only, the following:

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

K. Section 13.12-Controlling Provisions is replaced in its entirety by the following:

13.12

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Amendment
and the Agreement, the Amendment shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
terms of this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's
Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits shall
control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the
Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

L. Section 13.15-No Third Party Beneficiaries is replaced in its entirety by the following:

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

Page 5 of 8



13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member.

M. Exhibit A- SCOPE OF SERVICES is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the

attached Exhibit A.
N. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically
set forth herein.
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY MECHANICAL ANALYSIS/REPAIR, INC.
DBA MARTECH
Date: Date:
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager RICHARD LEDDY, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Ruthann G. Ziegler, Assistant General Counsel

2698437.3

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063

Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech
Page 6 of 8



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech ("Contractor") shall provide machining services as requested
by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Machining

Balancing

Hydroelectric Services

AC/DC Motor Rewind and Rebuild

Rebuild or Re-Manufacturing of Equipment
Maintenance

Contractor may provide services at all Project Site Locations.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech
Page 7 of 8



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

DATED:

Itis an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform
Covered Work.

Name of Employer

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2014-063
Northern California Power Agency and Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. dba Martech

Page 8 of 8



’ 4

A PUBLIC AGENCY

/INCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 15, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017

SUBJECT: Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba Summit Crane — Five Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement for crane services; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer Lg METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah []
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [] Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [J City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 195:17



Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba Summit Crane — 5 Year MTGSA
August 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-71 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba
Summit Crane. for crane services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Crane services are required from time to time related to project support at facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $500,000 over five years to be
used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements with
similar service providers including Titan Crane & Rigging and Maxim Crane Works. NCPA
seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded
to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of
the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on consent calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 14, 2017 and was approved.

SR: 195:17



Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba Summit Crane — 5 Year MTGSA
August 15, 2017
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc.
dba Summit Crane

SR: 195:17



RESOLUTION 17-71

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SUMMIT
CRANE COMPANY OF SOLANO INC. DBA SUMMIT CRANE

(reference Staff Report #195:17)

WHEREAS, crane services are periodically required at the facilities owned and/or operated by
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its members, the Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba Summit Crane is a provider of these
services; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Summit Crane Company of Solano Inc. dba Summit Crane, with any non-substantial
changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five
years for crane services for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



AlcPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND

SUMMIT CRANE COMPANY OF SOLANO, INC. DBA SUMMIT CRANE

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Summit Crane Company of
Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane, a corporation with its office located at 892 Aldridge Road,
Vacaville, CA 95688 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of

, 2017 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. = GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

» At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 23



25

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 23



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

4.6 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.7 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 23



Section 5.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 23



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 6 of 23



Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

6.6
Section7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.
71
Agreement.
7.2
work hereunder.
7.3
to practice their respective professions.
7.4
7.5
7.6

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmiess from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 23



Section 8.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 ef seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 23



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

-8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by

Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 23



proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 23



Section 10.

subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

1.1

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 23



11.2

11.3

Section 12.

including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. ltis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 12 of 23



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 23



13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane
Attention: Curt Posthuma

P.O. Box 6714

Vacaville, CA 95696

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 14 of 23



With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 15 of 23



13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’'s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY SUMMIT CRANE COMPANY OF SOLANO,

Date

INC. dba SUMMIT CRANE

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, CURT POSTHUMA, President
General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 16 of 23



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane (“Contractor”) shall provide crane
services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities
owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Crane Equipment

Crane Operators

On-Site Safety Training

Operate crane and related equipment, including all necessary mobilization and
demobilization

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 18 of 23



CAPACITY

48-19 Ton Boom Truck
with trailer

26 Ton Boom Truck
40 Ton Boom Truck
40 Ton TC
55 Ton RT
65-70 Ton
75 Ton (LB}
90 Ton (9k)
75 Ton (15Kk)
100 Ton {36k)
110 Ton {48k)
120 Ton
160 Ton
200 Ton
240 Ton
275 Ton
350 Ton
CREW CHARGES

One Man Crew
Two Man Crew

ILING CHAS

TrctriFlatbed
Tretr/8 tire lowbed
Tretr/16 tire lowbed
Pilot Car

Permits

Notes:

(LB denotes long hoom self contained unit)

BOOM
57'-83

106"
126'
o4'

13
110°
126'
142
126"
142
14z
197
197
197"
2%
223

262

$115.00
$225.00

$120.00
$130.00
$140.00
$65.00
$60.00

hr
hr

hrst
hr st
hr st
hr st
each

{RT denotes Rough Terrain Hyd Crane)
{C/W denotes counterweight)

{9k, 15k, 36k, 48k denotes counterweight configuration)

CREW SIZE

1

nla

4T
3
49
50
56"
T
66'
57
8g'
8g'
47"
47
129
12¢
121
121

HOURLY HAULING REQUIREMENTS

$170.00

$180.00
$200.00
$205.00
$220.00
$240.00
$265.00
$315.00
$325.00
$355.00
$365.00
$385.00
$415.00
$445.00
$475.00
$495.00

$595.00
OVERTIME

{add to st rates)

$38.00 bhr
$76.00 hr

self contained

self contained
self contained

self contained

lowhed haul required

self contained
self contained
self contained
1 ciw load

1 ciw load

1 ciw load

1 ¢/w load

2 c/w loads

2 clw loads

3 ciw loads

4 ¢c/w loads

6 ciw loads

DOUBLETIME
{add to st rates)
$76.00 hr
$152.00 hr

RIGGING SERVICES
Rigger Foreman witruck $150.00

Rigger (ea)

$188.00
$226.00
$125.00
$163.00
$201.00

(5% fuel & insurance surcharge on all trucking & crane invoices, unless provided by others)
(all terms & conditions governed by Operating Engineers local # 3 crane rental master agreement)

hr st
hr ot
he dt
hr st
hr ot
hr dt

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

GS-VEN-2017-062

Page 19 of 23



Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
SUMMIT CRANE COMPANY OF SOLANO, INC. DBA SUMMIT CRANE

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 21 of 23



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to

time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. dba Summit Crane. GS-VEN-2017-062
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 23 of 23



Micea

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: August 24, 2017

SUBJECT: THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA
Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer ,(5 METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi I City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [J
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [] Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD []
O a a

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara Other

If other, please specify

SR: 196:17



The Avogadro Group, LLC. Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC - First Amendment to Five
Year MTGSA

August 15, 2017

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-72 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with The Avogadro Group, LLC,
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $250,000 over five years for use at any facilities owned and/or operated
by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

Various testing services are required at the NCPA locations as well as its Members, SCPPA
and SCPPA Member facilities from time to time. The Avogadro Group, LLC is a provider of
these services. NCPA and The Avogadro Group, LLC entered into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement dated effective October 25, 2013.

Effective June 30, 2017, The Avogadro Group, LLC merged with Montrose Air Quality Services,
LLC. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement and accept the assignment.

In addition, the original agreement was for services at NCPA locations only. This amendment
will open up the agreement for use at NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Member facilities
as well.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $250,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 196:17



The Avogadro Group, LLC. Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC — First Amendment to Five
Year MTGSA

August 15, 2017

Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on consent calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 14, 2017 and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Yo & W

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with The Avogadro Group, LLC
¢ First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with The Avogadro Group,
LLC

SR: 196:17



RESOLUTION 17-72

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC

(reference Staff Report #196:17)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) facilities, its Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) and SCPPA Members require testing services at its various locations; and

WHEREAS, The Avogadro Group, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and The Avogadro Group, LLC entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement effective October 25, 2013; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to modify the vendor name as well as amend Exhibit A to include for use at
Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Member facilities; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with The Avogadro Group, LLC., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $250,000 over five years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra




BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 13-xx -2-



A PUBLIC ADCNCY

NORTHERN CALIFDRNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND.
‘THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (*Agency”) and The Avogadro Group, LLC, a limited liability company, with its office located at
2825 VVeme Roberts Circle, Antioch, CA 94509 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the
“Parties”) as of HQ! Z@Z 2013 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work aftached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein {"Work").

11  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed.

Section 2, COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO
EXCEED TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($250,000) for the Work, which shall include all
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC.

6/25/12
1926708.1

gsven - 201 -ODD



2.1

22

23

24

25

Section 3.

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior fo the invoice date. . Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time

entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing

the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and

each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of

_ Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Atin: Accounts Payable

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on inveices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the
requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and focal taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole

cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 2 of 17

6/25/12 -
1926708.1



Section 4.

INSURANCE REQU\IREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,

Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

4,23 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

All Policies Requirements.

441 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califoia Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 3 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



4.5

4.6

Section 5.

51

5.2

Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4,42 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.43 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

" the Contractor.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary fo effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents
or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs {including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, Its officers, officlals, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

6/25112
1926708.1

SO et

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 4 of 17



Section 6.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the resuits of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right o control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any-incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than fo the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such Work. The

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 5 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



6.4

subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subconfractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective

Work Requiring Payment of Prevailing Wages. If applicable, in accordance with
California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which these services are to be
performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and
overtime work fixed as provided in the California Labor Code shall be paid to all workers

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compénsation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the

74
7.2
7.3
professions.
74
engaged in performing the services under this Agreement.
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.
8.1
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).
8.2
Parties.
8.3

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC.

612512
1926708.1

Page 6 of 17



8.4

Section 9.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

841 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

84.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain adifferent Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees fo
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
fo any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor to this
Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor fo maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand doltars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 7 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

943

9.4.4

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or frade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information fo the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
fo Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, Contractors, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a rieed to know in
connection with this Agreement.

- 9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or

regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Conclusion of Agreement. Receiving
Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential Information (including
all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if requested by Disclosing
Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 8 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of
this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal -
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party's Information fo any person other than those of the Receiving
Party's employees, agents, Contractors, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with Agency’s operations and the operations of other contractors at the
Project site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely

responsible for the fransportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Agency will not be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials
which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such.
Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Agency may assume that anything left on the
Project site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed has been
abandoned. Any fransportation furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommodation
and Agency shall have no liability therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized
vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is
utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in
the Work shall be new and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any Agency owned equipment and property provided by Agency for the

Section10. PROJECT SITE.
- 101
Contractor's Work.
10.2
10.3
performance of Work.
Section11. WARRANTY.
111

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 9 of 17

/25112
1926708.1



1.2

1.3

Section 12.

other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and

enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all Agency site programs.

12.1

122

12.3

12.4

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary fo safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for erisuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Confractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 10 of 17

6/25/12
19267081



125

12,6

12.7

12.8

12.9

Section 13

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee, who
jeopardizes hisfher safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials to mclude diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitied. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 11 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement. .

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of location, would place
Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Govemment Code Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

The Avogadro Group, LLC
2825 Verne Roberts Circle
Antioch, CA 94509

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

James H. Pope

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 12 of 17

6/26/12
1926708.1



139 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10

13.11

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be

settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Confractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

- 131141

13.12

13.11.2

13.11.3

13.11.4

13.11.5

13.11.6

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute. ‘

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition fo this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement

and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

6/25112
1926708.1

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 13 of 17



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in mulfiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC
Date IO!Z'S![} | Date c” 27,/"3
JAMES H. POPE, General Manager KEVIN CROSBY, 4

Vice President, Technical

Approved as to Form:

oy

General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. ) Page 14 of 17

6/25/112
1826708.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

The Avogadro Group, LLC. (“Contractor”) shall provide testing services as requested by the
Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”). Services to include, but not be limited to the

following:

e Source Testing
¢ Rata Testing
e Emissions Testing

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC. Page 15 of 17

6/25/12
1926708.1



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

. Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount as set forth in
Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount

of expenses is as follows:

Field Testine Personnel Hourlv Rate (3}
Consultant. e
Senior Project Manager i85
Project Manager 145
Test Team Leader 125
Senior Techmician 125
Field Technician as
Support Personnel Houzly Rate (5)
Senior Office Worker. 135
Office Worker 85
Dyertime Rate for Hourly Emplovees Hourlr Rate (S}
Over § bows per day or between 40 and 60 hours per week Standard Katex 1.5
Orver [2 hours per day or over §0 hours per week Standard Rate x 2.0
Nese: dvopadro aito accovnts for overtinne awetig Hie "consecusive day™ rujes.

Overhead Direct Cosis Tnit Rat
PerDiem 145/ day
Mobile Lab Vehicle Mileage 1.50/mile
Other Overhead Divect Costs, including analytical costs Cost Plus 15%
Testinz Fouipment Fees . Dailx Rate (5)
Mobile Laboratory, no CEMS — (milsage not included) 350
Chase vehicle - {(mileage charged seperately) 130
Portable Sampling System 200
Data A equisition Sysiem 100
S&ip Chart Recorders 100
O, Anatyzer {calitration gases charged sepavately for all analysers) 125
COs Analyzer 125
CO Analyzer. 175
NOy Analyzer. 75
50; Analyzer 300
THC Anslvzer 300
FTIR Analyzer (on site) 750
Gas Chromatograph (on site) 150
Heated sample line, 50 or 100 Fi. 100
Isokinetic Sampling System - Complete 250
Non-Tsokinetic Pump & Meter 175
VOST Meter Box 235
2014 { OTM-027 Cyclone f Cascade Impactor. 125
Inpinger Sat 100
Midget hmpinzer Assembly. 150
Lung Sampler 100
Tedlar Bags {each). 35

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in

- excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement befiveen

Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC.

6/25/12
1926708.1

Page 16 of 17



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

L Kevin J. Crosby

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

The (&
(Company name)

for contract work at

NePA  Facilvhes

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the

above-named project. P -

(Signature of bficer or agent)

Datedthis < FTh day of §’elw’rew‘aw 12013,

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT

SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE

FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE
"PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC.

6/25/12
1926708.1

Page 17 of 17



Aicia

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC ACCEPTING
ASSIGNMENT TO MONTROSE AIR QUALITY SERVICES, LLC

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-Task General Services Agreement (*Agreement’) is entered
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and The Avogadro Group, LLC
(collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2017.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective October 25, 2013, (the “Agreement”) for The Avogadro Group, LLC to provide testing services
(“Work™), as more specifically detailed in the Agreement to Agency; and

WHEREAS, effective June 30, 2017, The Avogadro Group, LLC was merged into Montrose Air
Quality Services, LLC (“Montrose”); and

WHEREAS, The Avogadro Group, LLC and the Agency desire to agree to the assignment of the
Agreement to Montrose , and Montrose desires to agree to the assignment; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to allow Montrose to provide Work
to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), and/or SCPPA members on
the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, as amended herein; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to add miscellaneous provisions as
set forth below; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties;

WHEREAS, consistent with the intent of this Amendment, the term “Contractor” in the Agreement
and in the Amendment shall hereafter refer to Montrose;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
A. Section 1.4-Work Provided is replaced in its entirety by the following Section 1.4.
1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this

Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or
SCPPA members.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC
GS-VEN-2013-055

Page 1 of 6



B. Section 1.5-Request for Work to be Performed is added to the Agreement as follows:

1.5  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have fourteen (14) calendar days
from the date of the Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in
writing that Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees
to perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not
respond within the fourteen-day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to
perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement
and its Exhibits.

C. Section 4.4.4-Additional Certificates and Endorsements is added to the Agreement as follows:

444 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for Agency
members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement, Agency shall
have the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

D. Section 6.1-Independent Contractor is amended to add the following to that section:

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor’s failure to secure workers'
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

E. Section 7-LEGAL REQUIREMENTS of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as

follows:
Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC

GS-VEN-2013-055
Page 2 of 6



7.3

7.4

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

[Intentionally deleted.]

F. Section 10-PROJECT SITE of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Section 10.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Project Site Locations. The Project site at which Contractor may perform Work under
this Agreement shall include any facilities owned and/or operated by the Agency, by the
Agency's members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA members.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with Agency’s operations; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is
performing the Work as referenced in Section 1.4, and the operations of other contractors
at the Project site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury.
Upon completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site
clean and free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or
relating to Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the work as referenced in Section 1.4, may assume that
anything left on the Project site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed
has been abandoned. Any transportation fumished by Agency and, if applicable, by the
entity for which Contractor is performing the work as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation without any liability therefor to Contractor or other party.
Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and
hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All
materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC

GS-VEN-2013-055

Page 3 of 6



10.4

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment and property owned and/or provided by Agency, its members,
SCPPA, or SCPPA members for the performance of Work.

G. Section 12.10 is added to the Agreement to read as follows:

12.10

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to Section 1.4
hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency under Sections 12.1,
12.2,12.4,12.5, and 12.6 hereof. In addition, Contractor’s actions under the initial
paragraph of Section 12 shall comply with all site programs established by Member if
Contractor is performing Work for that Member.

H. Section 13.8-Notices is amended to read the following:

Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC
2825 Verne Roberts Circle
Antioch, CA 94509

Attn: Shane Mascitelli

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

l. Section 13.12-Controlling Provisions is replaced in its entirety by the following:

13.12

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Amendment
and the Agreement, the Amendment shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
terms of this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's
Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits shall
control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the
Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC

GS-VEN-2013-055

Page 4 of 6



J. Section 13.15-No Third Party Beneficiaries is replaced in its entirety by the following:

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the

parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member.

K. Exhibit A - SCOPE OF SERVICES is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the

attached Exhibit A.

L. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically

set forth herein.
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date:

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Ruthann G. Ziegler, Assistant General Counsel

2839657.2

MONTROSE AIR QUALITY SERVICES, LLC

Date:

SHANE MASCITELLI, Interim Regional Vice
President

THE AVOGADRO GROUP, LLC
Consents to the foregoing:

By:

KEVIN CROSBY, Vice President, Technical

Date:

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC

GS-VEN-2013-055

Page 5 of 6



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC (“Contractor”) shall provide testing services as requested by the
Northern California Power Agency (‘Agency”), at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members,
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members. Services to include, but not be
limited to the following:

e Source Testing
e Rata Testing
e Emissions Testing

Contractor may provide services at all Project Site Locations.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and The Avogadro Group, LLC Accepting Assignment to Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC

GS-VEN-2013-055
Page 6 of 6



NCPA Commission Meeting Agenda

No Staff Report included for Item 21 - staff will
provide an oral report.

New Hometown Connections, Inc., — Northern California Power
Agency membership in a new nonprofit corporation, new
Hometown Connections, Inc., that will provide advanced
metering systems and data management services to public
power entities. The corporation may also provide access to

reduced cost vendor services, and public power management
and strategic consulting.



	Commission_Packet_August_2017
	Commission_Minutes_July_27_2017
	Item_5_draft_Facilities_Committee_Minutes
	Item_6_draft_Finance_Committee_Minutes
	Item_8_draft_LR_Committee_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report_July_2017
	Item_11_Treasurer_Report_July_31_2017
	Item_12_Debt_Interest_Rate_Management_Report_June_2017
	Item_13_Finance_Committee_Appointment
	Item_14_Amendments_Investment_Policy_Guidelines_Policy
	Item_15_CY2018_NCPA_Capacity_Pool_Rates
	Item_16_Facilities_Agreement_Schedule_2
	Item_17_Kinectrics_North_Agreement
	Item_18_Mechanical_Analysis_Martech_Agreement
	Item_19_Summit_Crane_Agreement
	Item_20_Avogadro_Agreement

	Item_21_Hometown_Connections

